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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

To,

The Shareholders,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 34th Annual Report, together 
with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2022. The consolidated performance of the company and its 
Subsidiary has been referred to wherever required. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
 (` in Lakhs except EPS)

Particulars

Standalone Consolidated
For the 

year ended 
31.03.2022

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2022

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2021

Total revenue (Net of tax collected) 7216.57 5122.12 7214.81 5121.03
Profit before finance cost, depreciation 
and amortization

1367.77 853.27 1361.30 819.22

Finance costs 88.67 65.11 88.67 65.12
Profit before depreciation and 
amortization

1279.10 788.16 1272.63 754.10

Depreciation and amortization 183.98 160.92 187.60 164.29
Profit before exceptional items & tax 1095.12 627.24 1085.03 589.81
Less: Exceptional items (138.18) 197.61 (138.18) 197.61
Profit before tax 1233.30 429.63 1223.21 392.20
Tax expense 311.39 120.48 311.39 120.48
Net profit after tax 921.91 309.15 911.82 271.72
Add: Other comprehensive income 
(net of tax)

(1.64) 5.62 (1.64) 5.62 

Total comprehensive income 920.27 314.77 910.18 277.34
Balance brought forward 2820.67 2505.90 2722.63 2445.29
Balance carried forward 3740.94 2820.67 3632.81 2722.63
Earning per Equity Share:
Basic ` 8.26 2.77 8.17 2.43
Diluted ` 8.26 2.77 8.17 2.43

GRAPH OF THE FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (STANDALONE) FOR THE LAST 
TwO YEARS

COMPANY OVERVIEw: 

At Rexnord, we offer a wide range of products like AC Axial Fans, DC Brushless 
fans, Shaded Pole Motors and Energy Saving Fans manufactured at our state-
of the art factory in Maharashtra, backed by our robust R&D capabilities, well-
penetrated distribution network and strong brand recall.

Over the years, we have established a strong presence in the domestic 
electronic equipment and Refrigeration market, which is being bolstered by 
increasing penetration in the Global markets. 

Despite the challenging macro context, business stayed firm, riding on focused 
execution and market share gains. Another challenging year was well managed, 
owing to the strategic choices and perseverance of team Rexnord. While 
navigating the short-term challenges of the pandemic and cost inflation, we 
continued with investments towards branding, expanding the distribution network, 
and innovation.

Our organic growth was strong, with broad-based market share gains. We 
limited the impact of unprecedented commodity inflation through efficiency and 
calibrated price increases.

The Electronic equipment and Refrigeration industry has enormous growth 
potential, given the improvement in electronic equipment and Refrigeration 
availability and demand. Today, the consumer is far more aware and aspirational. 
Rising internet penetration has further accelerated the adoption of smart 
solutions. We, at Rexnord, are cognisant of this opportunity, and are investing 
in R&D directed towards this. Recently, there has been a lot of attention on 
self-reliance in manufacturing, as part of the central government’s ‘Aatmanirbhar 
Bharat’ project. Various government initiatives such as Production Linked 
Incentive (PLI) scheme, and targeted investment towards manufacturing of 
electronics, among others, are charting a positive, long-term prospect for the 
economy, and consequently, the Company. At Rexnord, self-reliance has always 
been at the core, as we strongly believe in maximising in-house manufacturing 
to have a better control over quality, supply chain and margins. 

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY:
COVID-19 continued to impact the business across segments. With the onset 
of the second wave in Q1 FY 2021-22, even though the demand for summer 
products was severely impacted we at Rexnord relied on agility and a pragmatic 
approach to manage the situation. We worked closely with our channel partners, 
ensuring their business continuity and well-being thus achieving a pragmatic 
growth in sales and margins. Accelerated use of technology was encouraged. 
The latter half of the year continued to be positive with ascending growth of the 
Electronic as well as Refrigeration segment. Commodity Costs remained volatile 
and inflationary, impacting our margins as we went for calibrated price increases. 
We fuelled our growth agenda through disciplined cost management, and 
improving operational efficiency at all levels of the business. In combination with 
sales growth, this enabled reinvestment in product innovation, brand building, 
and sustainability initiatives, while creating value for our shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEw:
On Standalone Basis: Your Company achieved a Total Revenue of ` 7216.57 
lakhs as against ` 5122.12 lakhs in the previous Year. The total expenditure 
during the Year under review was ` 5983.27 lakhs as against ` 4692.49 lakhs in 
the previous year. The Profit before tax was ` 1233.30 lakhs as against ` 429.63 
lakhs in the previous year and the Net Profit after tax was ` 921.91 lakhs as 
against ` 309.15 lakhs in the previous year.

On Consolidated Basis: Your Company achieved a Total Revenue of ` 7214.81 
lakhs as against ` 5121.03 lakhs in the previous Year. The total expenditure 
during the year under review was ` 5991.60 lakhs as against ` 4728.80 lakhs in 
the previous Year. The Profit before tax was ` 1223.21 lakhs as against ` 392.20 
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lakhs in the previous year and the Net Profit after tax was ` 911.82 lakhs as 
against ` 271.72 lakhs in the previous year.

FUTURE OUTLOOK:
Sustainability has always been at the core. We remain committed to inclusive 
growth with due consideration towards social impact. The thrust in our value 
proposition has been to create opportunities for our stakeholders, where we 
can be partners in sustainable growth. As a part of our commitment to combat 
climate change, we have taken our step towards installing the solar-energy 
plant during the year with a capital cost of ` 120.93 Lakhs and are aggressively 
pursuing means and technologies of switching to cleaner fuels. Product 
stewardship would be a key approach in our climate action. In line with this, we 
are ramping up investments in R&D on aspects of energy efficiency, circularity, 
long-term durability and performance of our products, to provide our consumers 
sustainable and eco-conscious product offerings. 

Over 90% of all our products are manufactured in-house. We have always 
been at the forefront of adopting and integrating new and innovative systems 
of manufacturing, to create globally benchmarked products that cater to the 
diverse demands of our customers across geographies. We continuously invest 
to upgrade our plant machineries and equipment, and also drive efficiency.

We have developed a strong financial capital framework with adequate foresight 
and agility to drive effective growth. Our strong balance sheet enables us to 
direct our growth capital swiftly and efficiently towards emerging opportunities 
for long-term value creation. Armed with this prudent approach, we navigated 
through exceptional circumstances brought on by the pandemic, transforming 
into a future-ready organization with confidence and purpose.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:
During the year, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

DIVIDEND:
To consolidate the financial position of the Company, the Board does not 
recommend any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2022.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 
No amount is proposed to be transferred to Reserves out of the profits earned 
during the Financial Year 2021-2022.

DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepted deposits from the public falling within the ambit 
of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder.

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY:
 Authorised Share Capital 
 The Authorised Capital of the Company as at March 31, 2022 was 

` 1500.00 Lakhs (Rupees One Thousand Five Hundred Lakhs Only) 
divided into 1,50,00,000 (One Crore Fifty Lakhs) equity shares of ` 10/- 
each.

 Issued and Paid-up Share Capital 
 The Paid-up Equity Share Capital as at March 31, 2022 was ` 1116 Lakhs 

divided into 1,11,60,000 Equity Shares, having face value of ` 10/- each 
fully paid up.

 During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares 
or convertible securities with differential voting rights nor has granted any 
stock options or sweat equity or warrants. As on March 31, 2022, none 
of the Directors of the Company hold instruments convertible into Equity 
Shares of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:
The details of loans given and investment made by the Company which are 
required to be disclosed in the financial statements of the Company as per 
the provisions of section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
34 (3) read with Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the SEBI Listing Regulations) are as follows:

A. Details of investments made by the Company outstanding as on 31st 
March, 2022:

i. Investments in Equity Shares:
 (` in Lakhs)

Name of entity Amount as at March 
31, 2022

Rexnord Enterprise Private Limited (WOS) 200.00
Infosys Limited of Face Value of ` 5/- each 0.10

ii. Investments in Debentures & Bonds:
 (` in Lakhs)

Name of entity Amount as at March 
31, 2022

Reliance Capital Limited (Face Value of 
`1,00,000/- each)

31.12

iii. Investments in Mutual funds:
 (` in Lakhs)

Name of entity Amount as at March 
31, 2022

SBI Liquid Fund Regular Growth of face 
value of ` 1000/- per unit

26.09

UTI Liquid Cash Plan- Regular Plan Growth 
of face value of ` 1000/- per unit

25.09

ICICI Prudential banking and PSU Debt 
Fund - Growth of face Value of ` 10/- per 
unit

25.10

B. Details of loans given by the Company to its wholly owned subsidiary 
outstanding as on 31st March, 2022:

 (` in Lakhs)

Name of entity Amount as at March 
31, 2022

Rexnord Enterprise Private Limited 28.00
C. The Company has also granted loans to its employees other than directors 

in accordance with the Remuneration Policy of the Company. The 
Outstanding loans to employees as on 31st March 2022 are ` 8.16 lakhs. 

D. The Company has not given any guarantee and provided any security in 
accordance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Rules issued there under.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

a) DIRECTORS 

 i) Composition:
 The Board of Directors includes the Executive and Independent 

Directors so as to ensure proper governance and management. 
The Board consists of Five (5) Directors comprising of Two (2) 
Executive Director including One (1) Woman Director and Three (3) 
Independent Directors as on March 31, 2022.

 ii) Re-appointments: 
  Director liable to retire by rotation:

 In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 (6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, 
Mrs. Nainy K. Tanna, Director of the Company, retires by rotation, 
and being eligible, has offered herself for reappointment. 

  Independent Non-Executive Directors:
 Based on performance evaluation and recommendations of 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and in terms of the 
provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and any 
other applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the 
Board recommends re-appointment of Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan 
and Mr. Sriram Shrinivasan as Independent Non-Executive Directors 
for a second term of five consecutive years with effect from May 16, 
2023 to May 15, 2028, for the approval of Members.

  Executive Directors:
 The Board of Directors on the recommendation of Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee has approved the re-appointment of 
Mr. Kishorechand Talwar as Chairman & Managing Director and 
Mrs. Nainy Tanna as Whole Time Director of the Company for a 
period of 3 years with effect from April 01, 2023. Their appointment 
is subject to approval of members of the Company at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting.

 Also Members approval is sought by way of Special Resolution 
for continuation of employment of Mr. Kishorechand Talwar at his 
office upon attaining the age of 70 (seventy) years on April 3, 2023. 
While such continuation of employment may not require any further 
approval of the shareholders, as a matter of abundant caution, it 
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is proposed to obtain approval of the shareholders at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting.

b) KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
 The Company is having the following persons as the Key Managerial 

Personnel.

Sr. 
No. Name of Personnel Designation

1. Mr. Kishore Chand Talwar Chairman & Managing Director
2. Mr. Kundan Talwar Chief Financial Officer
3. Mrs. Shweta Kalantri Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer
 During the Financial Year under review, there was no change in the Key 

Managerial Personnel of the Company.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
All the Independent Directors of the Company have given their respective 
declaration/ disclosures under Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulation 25(8) 
of the Listing Regulations and have confirmed that they fulfill the independence 
criteria as specified under section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16 of the 
Listing Regulations and have also confirmed that they are not aware of any 
circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that 
could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective 
independent judgment and without any external influence. 

Further, the Board after taking these declarations/disclosures on record and 
acknowledging the veracity of the same, concluded that the Independent 
Directors are persons of integrity and possess the relevant expertise and 
experience to qualify as Independent Directors of the Company and are 
Independent of the Management. 

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the 
Company’s Code of Business Conduct & Ethics.

SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND JOINT VENTURE: 
The Company has One (1) Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company i.e., Rexnord 
Enterprise Private Limited within the meaning of Section 2(87) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

The Subsidiary Company is carrying on the business of Agro & Trading Activities 
and the Company holds 100% of the Equity Share Capital in Rexnord Enterprise 
Private Limited as on March 31, 2022. 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act read with rule 5 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement containing salient features of 
the financial statements of its Subsidiary Company in Form AOC-1 forms part of 
this Annual Report and is appended as Annexure ‘A’.
The Company does not have joint venture or associate companies within the 
meaning of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards notified under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The Audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 along with 
Auditors’ Report forms part of this Annual Report.

In accordance with third proviso of Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Audited Annual Report of the Company, containing therein its standalone 
and the consolidated financial statements has been placed on the website of the 
Company, www.rexnordindia.com. 

Further, as per fourth proviso of the said section, Audited Annual Accounts of the 
subsidiary company has also been placed on the website of the Company, www.
rexnordindia.com. Shareholders interested in obtaining a copy of the Audited 
Annual Accounts of the subsidiary company may write to the Company at the 
Company’s registered office. 

ANNUAL RETURN:
In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, read with the applicable Rules, the 
Annual Return in the prescribed format can be accessed at www.rexnordindia.
com.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Board of Directors met Seven (7) times in the financial year. The details 
of the Board Meetings and the attendance of the Directors are provided in the 
Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the Annual Report. 

COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Company has constituted various Committees pursuant to the requirements 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and Companies Act, 2013. Presently, the Company has following Committees of 
the Board of Directors:

 Audit Committee

 Nomination & Remuneration Committee

 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The details with respect to the composition, meetings, powers, roles, terms of 
reference, etc. of these Committees are given in the ‘Corporate Governance 
Report’ of the Company which forms part of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act, with respect to Directors Responsibility 
statement it is hereby confirmed:

a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting 
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures, if any;

b) that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the 
company for that period;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the 
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were 
operating effectively;

f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing 
Regulations the company has implemented a system of evaluating performance 
of the Board of Directors and of its committees and individual directors on the 
basis of evaluation criteria suggested by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and the SEBI Listing Regulations. Accordingly, the Board has carried 
out an evaluation of its performance after taking into consideration various 
performance related aspects of the Board’s functioning, composition of the 
Board and its Committees, culture, execution and performance of specific duties, 
remuneration, obligations and governance. The performance evaluation of the 
Board as a whole, Chairperson and Executive Directors was also carried out by 
the Independent Directors in their meeting held on February 12, 2022.

Similarly, the performance of various committees, individual Independent and 
Executive Directors was evaluated by the entire Board of Directors (excluding 
the Director being evaluated) on various parameters like engagement, analysis, 
decision making, communication and interest of stakeholders.

The Board of Directors expressed its satisfaction with the performance of the 
Board, its committees and individual directors.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, REMUNERATION AND OTHER 
DETAILS:
The Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment, remuneration and other 
matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been 
disclosed in the Corporate Governance report, which forms part of the Annual 
Report and is also available on the Company’s website viz. www.rexnordindia.
com.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year 
were on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of the business 
and in compliance with the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. Further, disclosure in Form AOC – 2 is not 
given as the Company has not entered into any material significant related party 
transactions with Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated 
persons as per the materiality defined by the Board. 

http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
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All Related Party Transactions are placed on a quarterly basis before the Audit 
Committee for which Omnibus approval was obtained from the Committee and 
also before the Board for approval.

The Policy for determining the materiality of related party transactions and 
dealing with related party transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on 
the Company’s website www.rexnordindia.com

AUDITORS:
a) Statutory Auditor
 M/s. Rakesh Soni & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration 

No. 114625W) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors for a period 
of five (5) years commencing from the conclusion of the 29th Annual 
General Meeting until the conclusion of the 34th Annual General Meeting. 
Accordingly, M/s. Rakesh Soni & Co., Chartered Accountants will be 
completing their term of five (5) years and retiring at the conclusion of the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

 Your Board proposes to appoint M/s. R. S. Agrawal & Associates (Firm 
Registration No. 100156W), Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors 
for a term of five (5) years commencing from the conclusion of the 34th 
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 39th Annual General 
Meeting to be held in 2027.

 M/s. R. S. Agrawal & Associates, Chartered Accountants have consented 
to the said appointment, and confirmed that their appointment, if made, 
would be within the limits mentioned under Section 141(3)(g) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014. Further, they have confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued 
by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI).

 The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors recommend the 
appointment of M/s. R. S. Agrawal & Associates, Chartered Accountants as 
Statutory Auditors of the company from the conclusion of the 34th Annual 
General Meeting till the conclusion of the 39th Annual General Meeting. 

 The Board places on record its appreciation for the services of M/s. 
Rakesh Soni & Co., Chartered Accountants, Chartered Accountants, during 
their tenure as the Statutory Auditors of your company. 

 The Auditors’ Report for financial year 2021-2022 on the financial 
statements forms part of this Annual Report. There has been no 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in their Report. 
The Auditors have also confirmed that they satisfy the independence 
criteria required under Companies Act, 2013 and Code of Ethics issued by 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Auditors attend the Annual 
General meeting of the Company.

 During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors had not reported any 
matter under Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required to 
be disclosed under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Act.

b) Internal Auditor
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board on recommendation 
of the Audit Committee has appointed M/s. R J Rathi & Co. Chartered 
Accountants, as internal auditors of the Company for the financial year 
ending 31st March, 2023.

c) Secretarial Auditor
 The Secretarial Audit was carried out by M/s. GMJ & Associates, Company 

Secretaries for the Financial Year 2021-2022. The Report given by the 
Secretarial Auditors is annexed as Annexure ‘B’ to this Report. There has 
been no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in their 
Report.

 During the year under review, the Secretarial Auditors had not reported any 
matter under Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required to 
be disclosed under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Act.

 In terms of Section 204 of the Act, read with the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Audit 
Committee recommended and the Board of Directors have appointed 
M/s. GMJ & Associates, Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditors 
of the Company in relation to the financial year ending March 31, 2023. 
The Company has received their written consent that the appointment is in 
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and rules framed there 
under.

 Secretarial Compliance Report: - The Company has undertaken an audit 
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 for all applicable compliances 
as per the Securities and Exchange Board of India Regulations and 

Circulars/Guidelines issued thereunder. The Secretarial Compliance 
Report issued by M/s. GMJ & Associates, Company Secretaries has been 
submitted to the Stock Exchange within 60 days of the end of the Financial 
Year.

d) Cost Auditor:
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 read 

with Rules made thereunder, Cost Audit is not applicable to the Company 
for the Financial Year 2021-2022 and 2022-23. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 for Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) are applicable to the Company for the Financial Year 
2021-2022 and accordingly, the Company has in place the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee.

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the 
Company and Annual Report on CSR activities during the year under review 
are set out in Annexure ‘C’ of this report. For other details regarding the CSR 
Committee, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which is a part of 
this report. The CSR policy is available on www.rexnordindia.com. The role of 
the committee has been defined as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 
and Schedule VII thereof.

CODE OF CONDUCT:
Your Company is committed to conducting its business in accordance with 
the applicable laws, rules and regulations and highest standards of business 
ethics. In recognition thereof, the Board of Directors has implemented a Code 
of Conduct for adherence by the Directors, Senior Management Personnel and 
Employees of the Company. This Code of Conduct deals with ethical issues and 
also foster a culture of accountability and integrity. The Code is in accordance 
with the requirements of Listing Regulations has been posted on the Company’s 
website www.rexnordindia.com.

All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have confirmed 
compliance with the Code. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) 
and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names of the top ten 
employees in terms of remuneration drawn and names and other particulars of 
the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said 
rules forms part of this Report. Disclosures relating to remuneration and other 
details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 forms part of this Report. Having regard to the provisions of the second 
proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act and as advised, the Annual Report excluding 
the aforesaid information is being sent to the members of the Company. The 
said information is available for inspection by the members at the registered 
office of the Company during working hours on working days upto the date of 
the Annual General Meeting and if any member is interested in obtaining as 
copy thereof, such member may write to the Company Secretary.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:
The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, 
scale and complexity of its operations. The internal audit functions of the 
Company are carried out by a firm of Chartered Accountants. The scope and 
authority of the Internal Audit function is defined by the Audit Committee. The 
Internal Auditors reports to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of 
internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, 
accounting procedures and policies of the Company.

Based on the report of internal auditors, the Company undertakes corrective 
action in their respective areas and thereby strengthens the controls. Significant 
audit observations and recommendations along with corrective actions thereon 
are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING:
The Company has documented its internal financial controls considering the 
essential components of various critical processes, physical and operational. This 
includes its design, implementation and maintenance, along with periodical internal 
review of operational effectiveness and sustenance, which are commensurate with 
the nature of its business and the size and complexity of its operations.

This ensures orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention of errors, 

http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
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accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information. The internal financial controls with reference to 
the financial statements were adequate and operating effectively. 

RISK MANAGEMENT:
Your Company recognizes that risk is an integral part of business and is 
committed to managing the risks in a proactive and efficient manner; your 
Company periodically assesses risks in the internal and external environment, 
along with the cost of treating risks and incorporates risk treatment plans in the 
strategy, business and operational plans.

The Company has a Risk Management Policy with the Objective to formalize the 
process of Identification of Potential risk and adopt appropriate risk mitigation 
measures through a risk management structure. The Policy is a step by the 
Company towards strengthening the existing internal controls and updating the 
same as may be required from time to time.

VIGIL MECHANISM / wHISTLE BLOwER POLICY:
The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a formal 
mechanism to the Directors and Employees to report their concerns about 
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s 
Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The policy provides for adequate safeguards 
against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also 
provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed 
that no personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Audit 
Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on the website of the 
Company www.rexnordindia.com

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF wOMEN AT wORK 
PLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
The Company has a Policy on prohibition, prevention and redressal of sexual 
harassment of women at workplace and matters connected therewith or 
incidental thereto covering all the aspects as contained under “The Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013”. 

During the financial year 2021-2022, no complaint was received under the policy.

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:
The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
given as under:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
 Efficient use of energy in all form has been a consistent corporate trust 

in the Company. Better maintenance of equipment’s, improved operating 
practice and installation of most modern machinery has resulted in lot of 
saving in energy cost and consumption of raw materials.

(i) The Company is consistently doing research in the field of saving 
energy by implementing new cost-effective ideas. The steps taken 
during the year for conservation of energy are as under:

- Due consideration has been given to energy consumption while 
procuring equipment’s.

- As a responsible Corporate Citizen and in adherence to our 
climate change strategy, Company is continuously taking 
effective steps to conserve energy.

- With the installation of solar energy plant, the Company is 
saving a substantial cost of power consumption. 

- Except the emergency lights, all lights and electrical gadgets 
are turned off after working hours and on holidays at office 
premises of the Company to help in minimizing the energy 
consumption.

(ii) The Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate source of 
energy: The Company is constantly exploring avenues for cost saving 
as an ongoing process.

(iii) The Capital invested on energy equipment’s: ` 120.93 Lakhs on 
Solar Energy plant 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

 a) Research & Development
 The Research & Development department of the Company has been 

arduously working to provide quality and value for money to the 

customer in keeping with market trends. Research and Development 
is being carried out in the following areas.

l Making design modifications in the products so as to simplify 
the manufacturing process and enhance productivity.

l Developing Jigs, Fixtures and devices to increase productivity.

l Improvements to tool design.

l Up gradation of machines.

l Design and development of special machines required for 
increasing capacity.

l Development of equipment required for testing product 
reliability at various stages.

 b) Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation.
 Technology for the manufacture of Instrument Cooling Fans of 

various sizes has been successfully absorbed.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNED AND USED:
 The particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings and expenditure 

during the Financial Year 2021–22 is as under:

 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-2022 2020-21
Foreign Exchange Earning 1513.15 957.68
Foreign Exchange Outgo 1512.06 1295.73

ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY:
The Company is committed to:

l Maintain an organizational culture of Health, Safety & Environmental 
excellence by conducting its business in a manner that will promote 
consistent development.

l Safe work, resource conservation, waste management and emergency 
response measures for continual improvement in performance.

l Design, construct, operate & maintain its facilities while assuring the 
best material and service quality and operate in a way that mitigates and 
minimizes risks and hazards.

l Prevention of ill-health, injuries and pollution by adopting best practices, 
carrying out periodic risk assessments, reviews, inspections and providing 
awareness to employees and concerned stakeholders.

DEPOSITORY SERVICES:
The Company’s Equity Shares have been admitted to the depository mechanism 
of the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and also the Central 
Depository Services Limited (CDSL). As a result, the investors have an option 
to hold the shares of the Company in a dematerialized form in either of the two 
Depositories. The Company has been allotted ISIN No. INE687C01012.

Shareholders therefore are requested to take full benefit of the same and lodge 
their holdings with Depository Participants [DPs] with whom they have their 
Demat Accounts for getting their holdings in electronic form.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE 
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETwEEN THE 
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO wHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial 
statement relate and on the date of this report.

THE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY 
THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING 
CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:
There were no significant or material orders which were passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern status and the 
Company’s operations in future.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND 
ANALYSIS REPORT:
Pursuant to Regulation 15(2) read with Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations 
the Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis Report, 
which form an integral part of this Report, are set out as separate Annexure’s 
‘D’ & ‘E’, together with the Certificate from the Auditors of the Company 
regarding compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in Listing Regulations.

http://www.rexnordindia.in
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The Company is complying with the Regulations of SEBI Listing Regulations with 
regard to Corporate Governance and reports to that effect are regularly filed with 
the Stock Exchange. 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORTING: 
The Business Responsibility Reporting as required by Regulation 34(2) of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations is not applicable to the Company for the financial year 
ending March 31, 2022.

FINANCIAL YEAR:
The Company and its subsidiary Company in India which have been following 
April to March as the Financial Year.

COMPLIANCE wITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETINGS:
The Company has complied with secretarial standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings and Annual General Meetings.

THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING 
UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) 
DURING THE YEAR ALONGwITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR.
During the year under review, no such application or proceeding has been 
initiated or pending against the Company. The requirement to disclose the 
details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at 
the end of the financial year is not applicable.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETwEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION 
DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION 
DONE wHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS ALONG wITH THE REASONS THEREOF.
The requirement to disclose the details of difference between amount of the 
valuation done at the time of onetime settlement and the valuation done while 
taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons 
thereof, is not applicable.

ISO CERTIFICATION:
The Company’s products are awarded as ISO 9001:2015 Certification.

ACKNOwLEDGMENT:
The Directors wish to convey their appreciation to the Company’s shareholders, 
customers, suppliers, bankers and distributors for the support they have given to 
the Company and the confidence, which they have reposed in its management 
and the employees for the commitment and dedication shown by them.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
REXNORD ELECTRONICS AND CONTROLS LIMITED

KISHORECHAND TALwAR
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR

(DIN: 00351751)

Registered Office:
92-D Govt. Ind. Estate,
Charkop, Kandivali (W),
Mumbai - 400 067
Dated: August 10, 2022
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Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts ` in Lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars Details

1. Name of the subsidiary Rexnord Enterprise Private Limited

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding 
company’s reporting period

Same as Holding Company

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant 
financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

Not Applicable

4. Share capital Authorised Share Capital: 300.00

Paid Up Share Capital: 200.00

5. Reserves & surplus (Other equity) (108.13)

6. Total assets 120.57

7. Total Liabilities (excluding share capital and reserves & surplus) 28.70

8. Investments -

9. Turnover 0.00

10. Profit before taxation (10.09)

11. Provision for taxation -

12. Profit after taxation (10.09)

13. Proposed Dividend -

14. % of shareholding 100%

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures: Not Applicable  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited

Kishore Chand Talwar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00351751

Nainy K. Tanna 
Wholetime Director 
DIN 00351762

Krishnamoorthy Krishnan
Director
DIN 08129657

Kundan Talwar
Chief Financial Officer

Shweta Kalantri
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2021-2022
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FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,
The Members,
REXNORD ELECTRONICS AND CONTROLS LIMITED
92-D, Govt Ind. Estate, Charkop,
Kandivali (West),
Mumbai – 400067.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by REXNORD 
ELECTRONICS AND CONTROLS LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions of the applicable Acts listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner  and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by REXNORD ELECTRONICS AND CONTROLS LIMITED 
for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of: 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder,

ii. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA”) and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA) and the rules made thereunder;

v. The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz

a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. (Except as specified in the Secretarial 
Compliance Report)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; [Not applicable during the period of audit]

e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 [Formerly known as Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014]; [Not applicable during the period of audit]

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations. 2008; [Not applicable during the period of audit]

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; [Not applicable during the period of audit]

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; [Not applicable during the period of audit]

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i. Secretarial Standards 1 & 2 with respect to Board and General meetings, respectively, issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Further, the Company being into manufacturing and trading of Instrument Cooling Fans, Motors and other related goods, there are no specific applicable laws to the 
Company, which requires approvals or compliances under any Act or Regulations.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above, to the 
extent applicable.

We report having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and as per explanations and management representations obtained and relied upon by 
us the Company has adequate systems and processes commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines etc.

We report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like Direct, Indirect tax laws and Goods and Service Tax Act, has not been reviewed in this 
Audit since the same has been subject to review by statutory auditor and other designated professionals.

We further report that:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.  There 
were no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review. 

2. That there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

3. Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent well 
in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. Majority decisions are carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of Minutes. 

ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2021-2022
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We further report that during the audit period, no events/actions occurred which had a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, 
rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.

As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to notices received from various statutory/regulatory authorities including initiating actions for corrective 
measures, wherever found necessary. 

For GMJ & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

[Mahesh Soni]
Partner
FCS: 3706 COP: 2324 
UDIN: F003706D000431232 

PLACE : MUMBAI
DATE : MAY 30, 2022

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE A’ and forms an integral part of this report.

ANNEXURE  A

To,

The Members,
REXNORD ELECTRONICS AND CONTROLS LIMITED
92-D, Govt Ind. Estate, Charkop,
Kandivali (West),
Mumbai – 400067.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial 
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we 
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For GMJ & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries

[Mahesh Soni] 
Partner 
FCS: 3706 COP: 2324 
UDIN: F003706D000431232 

PLACE : MUMBAI 
DATE : MAY 30, 2022
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ANNEXURE ‘C’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2021-2022

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: -  
 The Board of Directors of Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited, after taking into account the recommendations of the CSR Committee, has approved this CSR 

Policy for the Company. As required under section 135(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, this policy is uploaded on the company’s website www.rexnordindia.com. As 
per the CSR policy, Promotion of Education which inter-alia includes creation of infrastructure and necessary facilities, are the focus areas for CSR engagement.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sr. 
No Name of Director Designation/ Nature of 

Directorship
Number of meetings of CSR 

Committee held during the year
Number of meetings of CSR 

Committee attended during the year
1. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan Chairperson

(Independent Director)
1 1

2. Ayyaswami Sundaram Member
(Independent Director)

1 1

3. Nainy K. Tanna Member
(Wholetime Director)

1 1

3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company.  
www.rexnordindia.com.

4. The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014: - Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount 
required for set off for the financial year, if any: - NIL

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): ` 503.95 Lakhs
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): ` 10.08 Lakhs

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: - NIL
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: - NIL
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): ` 10.08 Lakhs

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 2021-22.
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Total Amount Spent for the 
Financial Year.

Amount Unspent

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR 
Account as per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as per 
second proviso to section 135(5).

Amount. Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount. Date of transfer

11.00 – – – – –

 (b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

 (Amount in ` Lakhs)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
Sr. 
No.

Name of 
the Project.

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
Schedule 
VII to the 

Act.

Local area 
(Yes / No).

Location of the project. Project 
duration

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project 

Amount 
spent in 

the current 
financial 

Year 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account 
for the 

project as 
per Section 

135(6) 

Mode of 
Implementation 

- Direct (Yes/
No).

Mode of Implementation 
- Through Implementing 

Agency
State District Name CSR 

Registration 
number.

1. Nil
Total

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Project Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
schedule VII 
to the Act.

Local 
area (Yes 

/ No).

Location of the project. Amount 
spent for 

the project 

Mode of 
implementation 

- Direct (Yes/
No).

Mode of implementation 
- Through implementing 

agency.

State District Name. CSR 
registration 

number

1. Financial Assistance to 
Educational institution

Promoting 
Education

Yes Maharashtra Solapur 11.00 No M M Patel 
Public 

Charitable Trust

CSR00003931

Total 11.00
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e):  ` 11.00 Lakhs
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

(Amount ` in Lakhs)

Sr. No. Particular Amount

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 10.08

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 11.00

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.92

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any -

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 0.00

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years NIL
 (Amount in ` Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Preceding Financial 
Year.

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
section 135 (6) 

Amount spent 
in the reporting 
Financial Year 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule 
VII as per section 135(6), if any.

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial years. 
Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer.

1.

Total
 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): - NIL 

 (Amount in ` Lakhs)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sr. 
No.

Project ID. Name of the 
Project.

Financial Year 
in which the 
project was 
commenced.

Project 
duration.

Total amount 
allocated for 
the project 

Amount 
spent on the 

project in 
the reporting 
Financial Year 

Cumulative 
amount spent 

at the end 
of reporting 

Financial Year. 

Status of 
the project - 
Completed / 

Ongoing.

1
2

Total

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: - Not 
Applicable (Asset-wise details).
Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

(a) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(b) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.

(c) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): - Not Applicable 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
REXNORD ELECTRONICS AND CONTROLS LIMITED  

KISHORE CHAND TALwAR KRISHNAMOORTHY KRISHNAN
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR CHAIRPERSON, CSR COMMITTEE DIRECTOR 
(DIN: 00351751) (DIN: 08129657)

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 30, 2022
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ANNEXURE ‘D’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2021-2022

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report on Corporate Governance in accordance with Regulation 34(3) 
read with Schedule V of The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), and forming part 
of the Directors’ Report for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Corporate Governance and Statement on Company’s philosophy on Code 
of Governance:
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited (“the Company” or “Rexnord”) is 
committed to do business in an efficient, responsible, honest and ethical manner. 
The core values of the Company’s Governance process include independence, 
integrity, accountability, transparency, responsibility and fairness.

The Corporate Governance structure specifies the distribution of rights, 
responsibilities and powers among different participants in the corporation. 
All strategic decisions regarding investment, diversification, major decisions 
regarding procurement, commercial and finance are preceded ahead after 
approval of the Board.

The Company is also committed to enhance shareholders value in the fair and 
transparent manner and has been in the forefront for bench marking itself with 
the best business practices globally.

Roles of various constituents of Corporate Governance in the Company
a) Board of Directors (Board):
 The Directors of the Company are in a fiduciary position, empowered to 

oversee the management functions with a view to ensure its effectiveness 
and enhancement of stakeholder value. The Board reviews and approves 
management’s strategic business plan & business objectives and monitors 
the Company’s strategic direction.

b) Chairman & Managing Director (CMD):
 The CMD is the Chairman of the Board and also the Managing Director of 

the Company. His primary role is to provide leadership to the Board and 

the Management for realizing the approved strategic business plan and 
business objectives. He presides over the meetings of the Board and the 
Shareholders.

c) Non-Executive Independent Directors:
 The Non-Executive Directors play a vital role in improving the Board 

effectiveness with their independent judgment on issues of strategy, 
performance, resources, standards of conduct etc., besides providing the 
Board with valuable inputs.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
a) Composition and Committee
 As on March 31, 2022 the Board consists of Five (5) Directors. Besides 

the Chairman & Managing Director, who is an Executive Director, the 
Board comprises of One (1) Executive Woman Director and Three (3) 
Independent Directors. The composition of the Board represents an 
optimal mix of eminent personalities from various walks of life having 
rich experience in the field of marketing, finance, industry, business and 
management.

 The Board met Seven (7) times during the year on May 12, 2021, June 30, 
2021, August 13, 2021, November 12, 2021, December 20, 2021, February 
12, 2022 and March 23, 2022. The maximum time gap between any two 
consecutive meetings did not exceed One Hundred and Twenty days. The 
necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

 The details of composition of the Board, category, attendance of Directors 
at Board Meetings held during the financial year and last Annual General 
Meeting, number of other directorships and committee chairmanships / 
memberships, excluding this listed entity are given herein below:

Sr 
No Name of Director Category

No. of
Board

Meeting
attended

Attendance
at last AGM

No. of Companies in 
which directorships 

is held

No. of committee 
position held in public 

companies

Name of other listed 
entities where the 

directors of the 
Company are director 

and the category of their 
Directorship

Public Private Member Chairman Other 
Listed 
Entity

Category

1. Mr. Kishore Chand Talwar
(CMD)

Promoter and 
Executive Director 7 Yes - 1 - - - -

2. Mrs. Nainy Kunal Tanna
(WTD)

Promoter and
Executive Director 7 Yes - 1 - - - -

3. Mr. Ayyaswami Sundaram
Non-Executive
Independent 

Director
6 Yes - 1 - - - -

4. Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan
Non-Executive
Independent 

Director
7 Yes 1 - 3 1 D C W 

Limited

Non-
Executive

Independent 
Director

5. Mr. Sriram Shrinivasan
Non-Executive
Independent 

Director
7 Yes - - - - - -

CMD stands for Chairman & Managing Director, WTD stands for Whole-time Director.

Note: 
1. Nos. of other Directorships of Companies excludes foreign companies and Section 8 companies.

2. Membership/Chairmanship in only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been considered for Committee positions as per the Listing 
Regulations.

3. As mandated by Regulation 26 of Listing Regulations, none of the Directors are members of more than 10 Board level committees, nor are they Chairpersons of 
more than 5 committees in which they are members of such committees.

4. None of the Directors of the Company hold directorships in more than 7 Listed Companies w.e.f. 1st April, 2020. Further, none of the Director acts as a member of 
more than 10 committees or acts as a chairman of more than 5 committees across all Listed Companies.
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 Relationships between Directors inter-se:

 Mr. Kishore Chand Talwar (Chairman and Managing Director) is related 
to Mrs. Nainy Kunal Tanna (Whole Time Director) and Mr. Kundan Talwar 
(Chief Financial Officer) as their father. None of the other Directors except 
as aforementioned are related to each other.

 Shareholding of Independent Directors:

 None of the Non-Executive Independent Directors hold Equity Shares of 
the Company in their own name as on 31st March, 2022.

b)  Minimum information being placed before the Board on occurrence of 
specific events:

 The Board has complete access to all information with the Company.

 All Board meetings are governed by a structured agenda which is backed 
by comprehensive background information. Inter-alia, the following 
information is regularly provided to the Board, as part of the agenda 
papers well in advance of the Board meetings, or is tabled in the course of 
the Board meeting.

l Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates. 

l Capital budgets and any updates. 

l Quarterly results for the Company and its operating divisions or 
business segments. 

l Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the 
Board.

l The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers 
just below the Board level, including appointment or removal of Chief 
Financial Officer and the Company Secretary.

l Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices which 
are materially important. 

l Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material 
effluent or pollution problems. 

l Any material default in financial obligations to and by the Company, 
or substantial non-payment for goods sold by the Company.

l Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims 
of substantial nature, including any judgement or order which, may 
have passed strictures on the conduct of the Company or taken an 
adverse view regarding another enterprise that can have negative 
implications on the Company. 

l Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement. 

l Any transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, 
brand equity, or intellectual property. 

l Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions. Any 
significant development in Human Resources/ Industrial Relations 
front like signing of wage agreement, implementation of Voluntary 
Retirement Scheme etc. 

l Sale of material nature, of investments, assets, which is not in 
normal course of business. 

l Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps 
taken by management to limit the risks of adverse exchange rate 
movement, if material.

l Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements 
and shareholders service such as non-payment of dividend, delay in 
share transfer etc.

 The Board has an effective post meeting follow up procedure. The 
Action taken report on the decisions taken in a meeting is placed at the 
immediately succeeding meeting for information of the Board.

 The Board has established procedures to enable the Board to periodically 
review compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company, prepared 
by the Company, as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify 
instances of non-compliance.

 The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors has been 
carried out by the entire Board of Directors to its satisfaction. In the above 
evaluation process the Directors, who were subjected to evaluation did not 
participate.

a) Board Procedures:
 Agenda papers containing all necessary information/documents are made 

available to the Board in advance to enable the Board to take informed 
decisions and to discharge its functions effectively. Where it is not 

practicable to attach the relevant information as a part of agenda papers, 
the same are tabled at the Meeting of the Board.

COMMITTEES OF BOARD:
Currently the Board has 4 (Four) Committees: The Audit Committee, 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The Composition of various 
committees and compliances, as per the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as follows:

AUDIT COMMITTEE:
The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in accordance with 
the Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 comprising 
of Three (3) qualified members (i.e. 2 Independent Directors and 1 Executive 
Director) All the members have financial and accounting knowledge.

The Committee acts as a link between the Management, the Internal Auditors, 
the Statutory Auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company. The 
Committee focuses its attention on monitoring the financial reporting system 
within the Company, considering Quarterly & Annual Financial Results of the 
Company and submitting its observations to the Board of Directors before its 
adoption by the Board, review of the internal control system, audit methodology 
and process, major accounting policies and practice, compliance with accounting 
standards. Committee also reviews the legal compliance reporting system.

a)  The terms of reference of the Audit Committee in accordance 
with section 177 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as 
under:
l Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the 

disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial 
statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

l Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of 
appointment of auditors of the Company; 

l Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services 
rendered by the statutory auditors; 

l Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements 
and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the Board for 
approval, with particular reference to: 

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility 
Statement to be included in the Board’s report in terms of 
clause (c) of sub-Section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and 
reasons for the same.

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the 
exercise of judgment by management.

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising 
out of audit findings.

e.  Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to 
financial statements.

f.  Disclosure of any related party transactions.

g.  Modified opinions in the draft audit report.

l Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements 
before submission to the Board for approval; 

l Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application 
of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential 
issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the 
report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation 
of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter; 

l Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and 
performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

l Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the 
Company with related parties; 

l Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

l Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is 
necessary; 
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l Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management 
systems; 

l Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and 
internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems; 

l Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit functions;

l Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow 
up there on; 

l Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal 
auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or 
a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the Board; 

l Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about 
the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to 
ascertain any area of concern; 

l To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the 
depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment 
of declared dividends) and creditors; 

l To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 

l Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance 
Director or any other person heading the finance function or 
discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, 
experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 

l Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of 
reference of the Audit Committee;

l To review the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment 
by the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 
crores or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower; 

l To consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact 
of schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the 
listed entity and its shareholder; 

l Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and 
results of operations; 

l Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by 
Audit Committee) submitted by the management, if any; 

l Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by 
the statutory auditors, if any;

l Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses, if any;

l Statement of deviations, if any; in terms of Regulation 32(1) & 32(7) 
of the Listing Regulations; and 

l Review of appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the 
Internal Auditors.

b) Composition & Meetings: 
 The Committee met Five (5) times during the year on May 12, 2021, 

June 30, 2021, August 13, 2021 November 12, 2021, and February 12, 
2022. The maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings did 
not exceed One Hundred and Twenty days. The necessary quorum was 
present for all the meetings.

 The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of meetings 
attended by its members are given below:

Name of the 
Members Category Designation

Audit Committee Meetings 
(2021-2022)

No. 
Meetings 
Entitled 

to 
Attended

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

May 
12, 

2021

June 
30, 

2021

Aug 
13, 

2021

Nov 
12, 

2021

Feb 
12, 

2022
Mr. 
Krishnamoorthy 
Krishnan

Non-
Executive 
Independent

Chairperson Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 5 5

Mr. Ayyaswami 
Sundaram

Non-
Executive
Independent

Member Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 5 5

Mrs. Nainy K. 
Tanna

Executive
Director

Member Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 5 5

 The Audit Committee invites executives, as it considers appropriate 
particularly the head of the Finance and Accounts Department, 
representatives of the statutory auditors to be present at its meetings. The 
Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Audit Committee.

 The previous Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company was held on 
September 01, 2021 and was attended by Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan, 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted 
in accordance with the Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013 comprising of Three (3) Non-executive Independent Directors as members.

a)  Terms of Reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, 
inter-alia are as follows:
- Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes 

and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a 
policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees.

- For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, 
knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such 
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required 
of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board 
for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities 
identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable 
candidates, the Committee may:

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;

b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having 
due regard to diversity; and

c. consider the time commitments of the candidates.

- Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and 
the Board.

- Devising a policy on the Board diversity.

- Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may 
be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria 
laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and 
removal. Removal should be strictly in terms of the applicable law/s 
and in compliance of principles of natural justice.

- Recommend to the Board, remuneration including salary, perquisite 
and commission to be paid to the Company’s Executive Directors on 
an annual basis or as may be permissible by laws applicable.

- To decide whether to extend or continue the term of appointment 
of the independent Director(s), on the basis of the report of 
performance evaluation of independent Director(s).

- Recommend to the Board, the Sitting Fees payable for attending the 
meetings of the Board/Committee thereof, and, any other benefits 
such as Commission, if any, payable to the Non- Executive Directors.

- Setting the overall Remuneration Policy and other terms of 
employment of Directors, wherever required.

 The role of the committee has been defined as per section 178(3) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

b) Composition & Meetings:
 The Committee met One (1) time during the year on June 30, 2021. The 

necessary quorum was present throughout the meeting.

 The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the 
details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name of the 
Members Category Designation

NRC 
Meetings 

Dates 
(2021-2022)

No. 
Meetings 
Entitled 

to 
Attended

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

June 30,
2021

Mr. Krishnamoorthy 
Krishnan

Independent
Non-Executive

Chairperson Yes 1 1

Mr. Ayyaswami 
Sundaram

Independent
Non-Executive

Member Yes 1 1

Mr. Sriram 
Shrinivasan

Independent
Non-Executive

Member Yes 1 1
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c) Nomination and Remuneration Policy:
-  To ensure that the level and components of remuneration is 

reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors, 
KMP and other employees of the quality required to run the 
Company successfully. 

- No director/KMP/ other employee is involved in deciding his or her 
own remuneration. 

-  The trend prevalent in the similar industry, nature and size of 
business is kept in view and given due weightage to arrive at a 
competitive quantum of remuneration. 

-  It is to be ensured that relationship of remuneration to the 
performance is clear & meets appropriate performance benchmarks 
which are unambiguously laid down and communicated. 

-  Improved performance should be rewarded by increase in 
remuneration and suitable authority for value addition in future. 

- Remuneration packages should strike a balance between fixed 
and incentive pay, where applicable, reflecting short and long-term 
performance objectives appropriate to the Company’s working and 
goals. 

Following criteria are also to be considered:
l Responsibilities and duties; 
l Time & efforts devoted; 
l Value addition; 
l Profitability of the Company & growth of its business; 
l Analyzing each and every position and skills for fixing the remuneration 

yardstick; 
l Standards for certain functions where there is a scarcity of qualified 

resources. 
l Ensuring tax efficient remuneration structures. 
l Ensuring that remuneration structure is simple and that the cost to 

the Company (CTC) is not shown inflated and the effective take home 
remuneration is not low. 

l Other criteria as may be applicable. 
- Consistent application of remuneration parameters across the 

organization. 
- Provisions of law with regard making payment of remuneration, as 

may be applicable, are complied.
- Whenever, there is any deviation from the Policy, the justification /

reasons should also be indicated / disclosed adequately. 

d)  Details of remuneration paid to Executive Directors for the year ended 
March 31, 2022:

 The Company pays remuneration to its Chairman & Managing Director 
and Whole-time Director by way of Salary, commission, perquisites and 
allowances. Salary is paid within the range as approved by the Shareholders 
and as per Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. The Board approves 
all the revisions in salary, perquisites and allowances subject to the overall 
ceiling prescribed by Section 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Non-Executive Independent Directors have not been paid any remuneration 
except sitting fees during the Financial Year 2021-22.

 The details of remuneration paid to Executive Directors during the 
Financial Year 2021-22 are given below: 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Mr. Kishore 
Chand Talwar

Mrs. Nainy K. 
Tanna

Salary 113.64 54.24
Allowances & Perquisites 0.07 0.37
Bonus - -
Pension - -
Fixed Components:
Contribution to Provident Fund 0.36 0.36
Performance linked Incentive - -
Commission 51.85 -
Service Contract - -
Severance Fees -* -
Stock Options - -
Total  165.92 54.97

e)  Details of remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors during the 
Financial Year 2021-22 are given below: 

 Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees of Rs. 10,000/- for every 
meeting of the Board of Directors.

 The details of remuneration paid to non-executive directors during the 
financial year 2021-22 are as follows:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 
Mr. 

Krishnamoorthy 
Krishnan

Mr. 
Ayyaswami 
Sundaram

Mr. Sriram 
Shrinivasan

Sitting Fees 
(` in Lakhs) 

0.70 0.60 0.70

Shareholding in the 
Company

Nil Nil Nil

 The Non-Executive Independent Directors have not been paid any 
remuneration except sitting fees during the financial year 2021-22.

 The Company does not have any stock option plans and hence such 
instrument does not form part of the remuneration package payable to any 
Executive Director and/or Non-Executive Director. 

 During the period under review, none of the directors were paid any 
performance linked incentive. 

 The performance of Independent Directors was evaluated on the following 
criteria: 

l Exercise of independent judgment in the best interest of Company; 

l Ability to contribute to and monitor corporate governance practice; 

l Adherence to the code of conduct for independent directors. 

 The Committee reviewed the performance of the Directors i.e. Non-
Executive Independent, Executive Directors and also the senior managerial 
personnel including Key Managerial Personnel during the year. The 
Director being evaluated did not participate in the Evaluation process at the 
time of the respective evaluation process of the individual director.

f)  Details of Equity Shares held by Directors as on March 31, 2022 are 
given below:

Name Number of Equity 
Shares

Mr. Kishore Chand Talwar 53,25,446
Mrs. Nainy Kunal Tanna 3,62,200

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company is constituted in 
accordance with the Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 comprising of Three (3) Non- Executive Independent Directors as 
members. 

The role and functions of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are inter-alia 
include the following:

l Resolving the grievances of security holders of the Company including 
complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of 
annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new duplicate 
certificates, general meeting etc. 

l Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by 
shareholders

l Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity 
in respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent.

l Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for 
reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt 
of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of 
the company

The Committee overviews the steps to be taken for further value addition in the 
quality of service to the security holders.

The Company has designated the e-mail ID finance@rexnordindia.com 
exclusively for the purpose of registering complaint by investors electronically. 
This e-mail ID is displayed on the Company’s website i.e. www.rexnordindia.com 

The following table shows the nature of complaints received from the 
shareholders during the years 2021-2022:

mailto:finance@rexnordindia.com
http://www.rexnordindia.in


17

Sr. 
No. Nature of Complaints Received Disposed 

off Pending

1 Non receipt of Share Certificate 
(After Transfer)

1 1 0

2 Non receipt of Demat Rejected 
S/C’s

0 0 0

3 Non receipt of Dividend Warrant 0 0 0

4 Non receipt of Annual Report 0 0 0

5 From SEBI 1 1 0

6 Others 0 0 0

Total 2 2 0

There were no complaints pending as on 31st March, 2022.

Composition & Meetings
The Committee met One (1) time during the year on June 30, 2021. The 
necessary quorum was present at the meeting.

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and the details of 
meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name of the 
Members

Category Designation SRC 
Committee 
Meetings

(2021-2022)

No. 
Meetings 

Entitled to 
Attended

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

June 30,
2021

Mr. Krishnamoorthy 
Krishnan

Non-Executive 
Independent

Chairperson Yes 1 1

Mr. Ayyaswami 
Sundaram

Independent
Non-Executive

Member Yes 1 1

Mr. Sriram Shrinivasan Independent
Non-Executive

Member Yes 1 1

Mrs. Shweta Kalantri is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
The Company has already in place the Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) rules, 2014. 

The Committee meets as and when required. The Committee will devise / 
recommend to the Board which shall indicate activities, programmes, projects 
which shall be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII of 
the Companies Act, 2013. The activities / programmes undertaken by the 
Company and the amount spent by the Company are given in the Annexure to 
the Directors Report. This policy can be accessed from the Company’s website 
www.rexnordindia.com.

Composition & Meetings
The Committee met once during the year on February 12, 2022. The necessary 
quorum was present at the meeting.

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and the 
details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name of Member Category Designation

Corporate 
Social 

Responsibility 
Committee 
(2021-2022)

No. of 
Meetings 
entitled 

to attend

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

February 12, 
2022

Mr. Krishnamoorthy 
Krishnan

Non-Executive 
Independent

Chairperson Yes 1 1

Mr. Ayyaswami 
Sundaram

Non-Executive
Independent 

Member Yes 1 1

Mrs. Nainy Tanna Executive Member Yes 1 1

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING:
As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under Schedule IV of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Independent Directors of the Company 
shall hold at least one meeting in a year without the presence of Non-
Independent Directors and members of the management. All the independent 
directors shall strive to be present at such meeting.

The independent directors in their meeting shall, inter alia-

(a) review the performance of non-independent directors and the board of 
directors as a whole; 

(b) review the performance of the chairman of the Company, taking into 
account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors; 

(c) assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between 
the management of the Company and the board of directors that is 
necessary for the board of directors to effectively and reasonably perform 
their duties.

Independent Directors met once during the year on February 12, 2022. The 
meeting was attended by all Independent Directors. 

Accordingly, the performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-
Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Board 
of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Independent directors’ databank registration - All the Independent Directors have 
registered their name in the data bank maintained by IICA for a period of one 
year/ five years/ for a life-time, and ensured that they will take steps to renew 
the registration, till they continue to hold the office of Independent Director in 
the Company. Further, the Independent Directors who are not exempted from 
the said test, have complied with the online proficiency self-assessment test 
conducted by the IICA within the prescribed time lines.

Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors:
The Company has framed a policy for familiarization programme for Independent 
Directors and the same is disclosed on the website of the Company i.e. www.
rexnordindia.com

Chart or matrix setting out skills/expertise/competence of the Board of 
Directors:

Name of Director

List of core Skills / Expertise / Competencies identified by the 
Board of Directors as required in the context our Business and 

sector to function effectively and actually available with the Board 
along with the names of directors who have such skills / expertise 

/ competence.

Planning Technical Finance / 
Taxation Legal Administration Marketing 

/ publicity

Mr. Kishore Chand Talwar   -- -- -- 

Mrs. Nainy Tanna -- --    

Mr. Ayyaswami Sundaram --  -- -- -- --

Mr. Krishnamoorthy 
Krishnan

-- --   -- --

Mr. Sriram Shrinivasan  -- -- --  --

Confirmation of Board for the independence of Independent Directors:
In the Opinion of Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified 
in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and are independent of the Management.

OTHER POLICIES MANDATED UNDER SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015:
Archival Policy: In Compliance with Regulation 30(8) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company shall 
disclose on its website all such events, information which has been disclosed to 
the Stock Exchange(s) under Regulations 30. Such disclosures shall be posted 
on website of the Company for minimum five years and thereafter determine 
further action as per the archival policy of the Company. This policy can be 
accessed from the Company’s website: www.rexnordindia.com
Policy for Preservation of Documents: In Compliance with Regulation 9 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Board of Directors has adopted policy on preservation of Documents. This policy 
for preservation of Documents can be accessed from the Company’s website: 
www.rexnordindia.com
Policy for Determining Materiality of Events: In Compliance with Regulations 
30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

http://www.rexnordindia.com
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
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2015, the Board of Directors has adopted a policy on Determining Materiality 
of Events or information. The objective of this policy is to ensure timely and 
adequate disclosure of events or Information. This Policy can be accessed from 
the Company’s website: www.rexnordindia.com

Policy on Board Diversity: The Company recognizes and embraces the benefit 
of having a diverse Board of Directors and views increasing diversity at the 
Board level as an essential element in maintaining competitive advantage in the 
Business in which it operates. This Policy can be accessed from the Company’s 
website: www.rexnordindia.com

Policy on Related Party Transactions: The policy regulates all transactions 
between the Company and its related parties. This Policy can be accessed from 
the Company’s website: www.rexnordindia.com

Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility: The policy outlines the Company’s 
strategy to bring about a positive impact on society through programs relating to 
hunger, poverty, education, healthcare, environment and lowering its resource 
footprint. The policy was revised in the Board Meeting dated February 12, 2021. 
This Policy can be accessed from the Company’s website: www.rexnordindia.
com

Policy for Determining Materiality of Subsidiaries: The policy is used to 
determine the material subsidiaries and material unlisted Indian subsidiaries of 
the Company and to provide the governance framework for them. This Policy 
can be accessed from the Company’s website: www.rexnordindia.com

Policy for Prevention of Insider Trading: In compliance with the requirements 
of the Regulation 8 & Regulation 9 of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time. The Board of Directors 
has formulated and adopted the Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair 
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and Code of Conduct 
to regulate, monitor and report trading by its employees and other connected 
persons. The same is uploaded on the website of the Company www.
rexnordindia.com

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

a) Annual General Meeting:
 The particulars of Annual General Meetings of the Company held in last 

three years are as under:

Financial Year 
ended on Date Time Venue

31.03.2019 27.09.2019 10.30 
a.m.

Sangam Banquets, Plot No. 366-
386, RSC 37, Mangalmurti Road, 
Opposite MangalMurti Hospital, 
Gorai-II, Borivali (West), Mumbai – 
400 092

31.03.2020 23.09.2020 11.00 
a.m.

92-D Govt. Ind. Estate, Charkop, 
Kandivali (W), Mumbai - 400067 
through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”)

31.03.2021 01.09.2021 11.00 
a.m.

92-D Govt. Ind. Estate, Charkop, 
Kandivali (W), Mumbai- 400067 
through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”)

(b) Whether any Special Resolution passed in previous 3 AGM’s:

Date of AGM Description of Special Resolution

27.09.2019 i) Approval of limits for the Loans, Investment and 
Guarantees by the Company in terms of the 
provision section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

ii) To approve continuation of payment of 
remuneration to Executive Directors who are 
promoters in excess of threshold limits as 
per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations, 2015

23.09.2020 i) Re-appointment of Mr. Kishorechand Talwar as 
Chairman & Managing Director of the Company.

ii) Re-appointment of Mrs. Nainy Kunal Tanna as 
Whole Time Director of the Company.

01.09.2021 No Special resolution was passed.

c) Postal Ballot:
 During the year, no resolution was passed through Postal Ballot. 

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
i. Quarterly results: Results are submitted to Stock Exchanges electronically 

as provided by the respective exchange & published in newspapers and 
uploaded on the Company’s website.

ii. Newspapers wherein results normally published: Navshakti and Free Press 
Journal

iii. Any website where displayed: www.rexnordindia.com 

iv. Whether it also displays official news releases: No official news release 
was made

v. The presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts: No 
presentations were made during the year.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION: 
a) 34th Annual General Meeting Schedule to be held on 
 DAY & DATE : September 27, 2022

 TIME : 11:00 IST

 VENUE :  Sangam Banquets, Plot No. 366-386, RSC 37, Mangal 
Murti Road, Opposite Mangal Murti Hospital, Gorai-II, 
Borivali (West), Mumbai – 400 092

b) Financial Year:
 The Company follows the period of April to March, as the Financial Year. 

Tentative Financial calendar for the financial year 2022-23 is as under:

Financial Reporting for the Financial 
Year 2022-23

Tentative month of reporting

Un-audited Financial Results for the 
quarter ending June 30, 2022

On or before August 14, 2022

Un-audited Financial Results for the 
quarter and half-year ending September 
30, 2022

On or before November 14, 
2022

Un-audited Financial Results for the 
quarter ending December 31, 2022

On or before February 14, 
2023

Audited Financial Results for the quarter 
and year ending March 31, 2023

On or before May 30, 2023

c) Book Closure:
 The Company was not required to close Register of Members and Share 

Transfer Books for the purpose of AGM.

d) Dividend Payment Date: Not Applicable

e) Listing on Stock Exchanges:
 Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited, Mumbai (BSE). 

Annual listing fee for the financial year 2021-2022 has been paid to the 
BSE Limited, Mumbai.

f) Stock Code:
 Scrip Name   : Rexnord Electronics and Controls Ltd.
 Scrip Code   : 531888
 Electronic Mode (ISIN) : INE687C01012

g) Stock Price / Market Price Data: 
 Month wise high and low price of the Company’s Shares at BSE Limited 

(BSE) from April, 2021 to March, 2022 are as under:

Month Company’s Share [`] BSE Sensex
High Low High Low

April, 2021 37.75 25.20 50,375.77 47,204.50
May, 2021 58.90 34.05 52,013.22 48,028.07
June, 2021 62.00 46.00 53,126.73 51,450.58
July, 2021 74.90 51.95 53,290.81 51,802.73
August, 2021 69.00 43.60 57,625.26 52,804.08
September, 2021 58.45 46.20 60,412.32 57,263.90
October, 2021 54.80 46.25 62,245.43 58,551.14
November, 2021 60.00 40.20 61,036.56 56,382.93
December, 2021 68.50 47.50 59,203.37 55,132.68
January, 2022 93.00 56.70 61,475.15 56,409.63
February, 2022 88.50 60.25 59,618.51 54,383.20
March, 2022 77.40 60.60 58,890.92 52,260.82

http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.in
http://www.rexnordindia.com
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h) Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agents:
 M/S. BIG SHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
 Office No S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park,
 Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road,
 Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400093.
 Tel: 022 – 62638200/222
 Email: investor@bigshareonline.com

i) Share Transfer System:
 In terms of Regulation 40(1) of Listing Regulations, as amended, securities 

can be transferred only in dematerialized form w.e.f. April 1, 2019, except 
in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. 
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider 
converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Transfers of equity shares 
in electronic form are affected through the depositories with no involvement 
of the Company. 

j) Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2022:
 The shareholding of different categories of the shareholders as on March 

31, 2022 is given below:

Category No. of shares 
held

% of 
shareholding

Promoters & Promoter Group 77,94,046 69.84
Mutual Funds/UTI 0 -
Financial Institutions/Banks 1000 0.01
Bodies Corporate 1,39,206 1.25
Indian Public 31,54,162 28.26
Clearing Members 4,332 0.04
NRI/FN 67,254 0.60
Total 1,11,60,000 100.00

k) Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2022:

No. of Equity Shares 
held

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares 
held

% of Equity 
Capital

Upto 500 6110 827947 7.42

501-1000 447 376654 3.37

1001-2000 198 311187 2.79

2001-3000 76 198346 1.78

3001-4000 24 86637 0.78

4001-5000 24 113465 1.02

5001-10000 40 292933 2.62

10001 & above 30 8952831 80.22

Total 6949 11160000 100.00

l) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:
 Trading in Equity Shares of the Company is permitted only in 

dematerialized form with effect from January 29, 2001 as per notification 
issued by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI). As on 
March 31, 2022, out of total Equity Capital 1,11,60,000 Equity Shares, 
1,05,81,880 Equity Shares representing 94.82% of the total Equity Shares 
are held in de-materialized form with NSDL and CDSL.

m) Liquidity: Average Monthly Trading of the Company’s Shares on BSE 
during the year:

 Number of Trades: 4139
 Number of Shares: 4,34,694 Equity Shares

n) In case the securities are suspended from trading, the Directors 
report shall explain the reason thereof: Not Applicable

o) Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible instruments, 
conversion date and likely impact on equity: NIL

p) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: 
 The Company carries the normal foreign exchange risk and whenever it is 

thought appropriate foreign exchange risk is hedged by forward contract 
and currency options.

q) Plant Locations: Plot Survey No. 62, 74 & 75, Village –Devadal, Kaman, 
Taluka: Vasai, Dist. Palghar (MS)

r) Address for Correspondence:
 REXNORD ELECTRONICS AND CONTROLS LIMITED
 92D, Government Industrial Estate, Charkop,
 Kandivali (West), Mumbai - 400067
 E-mail:finance@rexnordindia.com
 Telephone No. 022-62401800

OTHER INFORMATION / DISCLOSURES:
a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions 

that may have potential conflict with the interests of listed entity 
at large: All related party transactions that were entered into during 
the Financial Year were on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary 
course of the business. None of the transactions with any of the related 
parties were conflicting with the interests of the Company. All the related 
party transactions as per Ind AS-24 have been disclosed in Note 46 to 
the Standalone Financial Statements and Note 45 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

b) Details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures 
imposed on the listed entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any 
statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during 
the last three years: None 

c) Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy, 
and affirmation that no personnel have been denied access to the 
audit committee: Pursuant to Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations the Company has 
adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy. The Company believes 
in professionalism, transparency, integrity and ethical behaviour and had 
thus established a ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ to facilitate employees to report 
concerns of any unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation 
of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. No person has been 
denied access to the Audit Committee.

d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of 
the non-mandatory requirements: The Company has complied with all 
mandatory requirements of Listing Regulations and has implemented the 
following non mandatory requirements:

l The Board: Not Applicable since the Company has an Executive 
Chairman

l Shareholders Rights: Presently the Company is not sending half 
yearly communication for declaration of financial performance 
including summary of significant events in last six months. 

l Modified opinion(s) in the Audit Report: It is always the 
Company’s endeavor to present unqualified financial statements. 
There is no audit modified opinions in the Company’s financial 
statement for the year under review. 

l Separate posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director or the 
Chief Executive Officer – Currently, Mr. Kishorechand Talwar is the 
Chairman & Managing Director of the Company who is an Executive 
Director of the Company. Going forward, the Company will strive to 
have separate posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director. 

l Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor is directly 
reporting to Audit Committee

e) Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is 
disclosed: http://www.rexnordindia.com/Policies.aspx

f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions; 
http://www.rexnordindia.com/Policies.aspx

g) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or 
qualified institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A). 
Not Applicable

h) A certificate from M/s. GMJ & Associates, Company Secretary in practice 
have been obtained and annexed as Annexure “A” to this report certifying 
that none of the directors on the board of the company have been debarred 
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies 
by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

i) Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any 
committee of the board which is mandatorily required, in the relevant 
financial year. Not Applicable

j) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, 
on a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the 
network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part: 
Total fees for all the services paid by the Company and its subsidiary on a 
consolidated basis to the statutory auditors are ` 4.35 Lakhs.

mailto:investor@bigshareonline.com
mailto:finance@rexnordindia.com
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k) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The 
details of number of complaints filed and disposed of during the year and 
pending as on March 31, 2022 is given in the Directors’ Report. However, 
there were no cases during the year under review. 

l) Non-Compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report 
of sub-paras (2) to (10) of Para C of Corporate Governance Report of 
Schedule V Annual Report of Listing Regulations: None 

m) Disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements 
specified in Regulation 17 To 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-Regulation 
(2) of Regulation 46 shall be made in the section on corporate governance 
of the Annual Report. 

 The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Requirements 
specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) 
of Listing Regulations; required information has been hosted on the 
Company’s website www.rexnordindia.com

n) Code of Conduct & Declaration:
 The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Directors, Senior 

Management Personnel and Employees of the Company. The members of 
the Board and Senior Management of the Company have submitted their 
affirmation on compliance with the code for the effective period. Certificate 
from the Managing Director affirming compliance of the said code by all 
the Board members and members of senior management of the Company 
to whom the code is applicable is annexed separately to this report as 
Annexure “B”. 

o) CEO / CFO Certification:
 Managing Director / Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have issued certificate 

as specified in Part B of Schedule II of the regulation 17 (8) SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2022 certifying that the financial statements 
do not contain any materially untrue statement and these statements 
represent a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs which is annexed to 
this report as Annexure “C”.

p) Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance:
 The Company has obtained a Certificate from Auditors of the Company 

regarding compliance with the provisions relating to the corporate 
governance laid down in the Listing Regulations. This Certificate is 
annexed to this report as Annexure “D”.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
REXNORD ELECTRONICS AND CONTROLS LIMITED

Kishorechand Talwar
Chairman & Managing Director

(DIN: 00351751)

Registered Office:
92-D Govt. Ind. Estate,
Charkop, Kandivali (W),
Mumbai- 400 067

Dated: May 30, 2022

http://www.rexnordindia.in
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ANNEXURE ‘E‘TO DIRECTORS REPORT 2021-2022

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ECONOMIC OVERVIEw
The year was characterised by volatility, cost inflation and continued pandemic-
led disruptions. In the face of these challenges, we steered ahead with agility, 
minimising the impact on our customers. Our strategy of maintaining a diversified 
product portfolio, both in terms of category and channel, enables us to excel 
even in difficult situations. Our commitment to grow responsibly and nurture with 
a strongly led brand value contribute to consistent financial performance. Rising 
income levels, lower debt ratios’, having a comprehensive product range and 
robust supply chain, Rexnord is well prepared to capitalise on this opportunity.

The finance cost decreased tremendously as the Company leveraged posing a 
robust capital management plan. The company aimed at increasing its liquidity 
to meet its working capital requirements. As Company generated healthy 
cashflows, a significant part of the borrowings was repaid within the same fiscal 
year. 

Economic environment continues to remain uncertain and challenging owing 
to Covid impact across the country. However, the Company as an organisation 
remain vigilant to the ground developments with confidence and optimism to 
manage emerging scenarios. 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEw 
The Electronic and Refrigeration industry grew substantially, however a large 
portion predicated on rise of raw material prices. Increase in commodity costs 
was effectively passed on to the consumers, resulting in cost effectiveness and 
increase in margins. Shift from unorganised to organised and channel expansion 
helped the domestic business to register volume growth despite the inflationary 
deterrents. 

Today, more than financial challenges, leading businesses face environmental 
and social risks. The society at large is facing extreme conditions such as 
pandemic, unpredictable climate and unprecedented inflation. A fragmented 
recovery from the crisis created by the COVID-19 pandemic risks widening the 
global divides at a time when countries urgently need to collaborate to combat 
Climate Change. Under these circumstances, sustainability initiatives by the 
business world could become key to resiliency and long-term value. 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 
Opportunities:
(A)  Electronic market: The growth in the electronic market has been improving 

substantially, developing a new market in semi-urban for electronic 
equipment such as switchgear, electrical panels, etc. 

(B)  Under penetration: Electronic equipment industry in India is highly under 
penetrated and the segment is be disproportionately benefited upon with 
the improvement in the disposable income. 

(C)  Shift towards organised: With formalisation of economy and rising base 
of aspiring customers, the demand for branded goods and organised 
companies is increasing.

(D)  Infrastructure development: Government’s focus on Infrastructure 
developments such as roads, railways, ports, housing is increasing and is 
expected to create demand for electronic goods. 

(E)  Exports: The world market is evaluating Indian companies as an alternative 
to other Asian countries. Having a large manufacturing base, gives an 
opportunity to capture the export market. 

(F)  Product basket: Having a large product basket is a great opportunity to 
increase the shelf space at the retail counter and the OEM warehouse. 

(H)  Distribution Network: Often referred to as the ‘traditional’ channel, it is the 
strongest pillar of our distribution network, and has been growing steadily 
both vertically and horizontally. It has been a journey of mutual growth. 

Risk and Concerns: 
(A)  Economic slowdown: Slowdown in the Indian economy due to global 

developments could adversely impact growth in the short-term. 

(B)  Commodity inflation: Sharp increase in commodity prices could lead to 
increase in cost of finished goods impacting the affordability and consumer 
sentiment.

(C)  Slower than expected pick-up in Electronic and Refrigeration segment: Due 
to the backlash of the Pandemic these segments are yet to receive the 
expected push in growth.

(D)  Increase in competition: Hyper competitiveness is normal, but it becomes a 
risk in case it leads to irrational behaviour in the market in terms of pricing 
and other trade practices. 

(E)  Pandemic: Deterioration in supply chain and demand due to pandemic 
such as COVID-19.

OUTLOOK
The challenges related to inflationary trends in commodity pricing and the impact 
of Covid-19 might affect consumer sentiment in the short- term. However, we 
are confident of the medium to long-term demand trends. With strategic building 
blocks in place – strengthening the core, broadening our portfolio and investing 
in people and process capability we are looking at improved and sustainable 
growth. 

Last fiscal, we gained market share along with increased distribution penetration. 
We will continue to strengthen our credentials in product development, emerging 
consumer trends and serving through vastly distributed supply chain network. We 
believe that Rexnord will definitely achieve greater heights in the coming time. 

COMPETITION
Your Company maintain a constant focus on sharpening our competitive edge on 
all fronts – operational efficiency, optimal use of assets, high level of automation 
and backward integration. Strong relationships with dealers, vendors and an 
effective governance framework have been the key to our enduring enterprise. 
An effective organisational culture, environment-friendly and socially responsible 
practices further help deliver holistic change to achieve long-term social and 
environmental sustainability.

The following strategies have been adopted in order to suppress competition:

1. Robust balance sheet, domestic manufacturing, transparent and fair-
trade practices and increasing the depth of our supply chain have helped 
to create a long-term sustainable business model. Regular and acute 
investment in technology, R&D and Brand building have enabled to build a 
strong and scalable portfolio.

2. Your Company has gradually aimed at widening our product base in order 
to include high profit-making products and there thereby increase the 
turnover of the company.

3. Your Company has also planned in investing in advanced technology in 
order to produce and provide Low cost and high efficiency products. 

4. Your Company also set customer satisfaction in the highest platform by 
providing customized products to suit the ever-changing needs of the 
industry and our customers thereby proving an edge over the cheaper 
competition.

5. The technical competence of our engineers is the key success factor 
for your organization. Our comprehensive understanding of customer’s 
business and his processes, deep know-how of key equipment and 
applications help us in designing and providing efficient and sustainable 
solutions far beyond a mere supply of products to our customers.

6. Your Company is regularly investing in modernization and up gradation 
of its production facilities that poised the Company to take maximum 
advantage of demand of its products. 

7. Your Company aims at improving its cost management by providing focus 
on better cost management, reducing inefficiency, improving supply chain 
and improving productivity so that it can continue to improve its operating 
performance. 

8. Strengthening our competitive market positioning through Intellectual 
Capital by blocking competition from copying our ideas. We do this by 
protecting our intellectual property primarily through patent filings and trade 
mark registrations.

EXPORTS
Rexnord has established its credentials as a credible, quality and ethical 
manufacturer in key markets. Manufacturing and technical capabilities, brand 
name and wide product range are the biggest strengths of Rexnord. Exports 
is one of the important pillars of our growth strategy and we are strengthening 
the channel by investing in people, new product development and strategic 
partnership with our distribution network.

Shaded Pole Motors has been the spearhead product for the export markets. 
Egypt, United Kingdom and Middle-East are strong markets for us. Our approach 
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is to go beyond a goods supplier and establish our brand in key markets. We 
expect that Indian electronic exports are in a sweet spot with global customers, 
as they are looking beyond China. This places Rexnord attractively to capitalise 
on emerging opportunities.

During FY 2021-22, our international business, grew across all product 
categories i.e ` 1516.78 Lakhs compared to ` 963.47 Lakhs last year. We are 
continuing the investment on Certifications, Product Development for Different 
markets, Brand building & Channel expansions across markets and geographies. 

The world market is evaluating India companies as an alternative to other Asian 
countries. Having a large manufacturing base, gives an opportunity to capture 
the export market.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has robust internal financial controls systems, which is in line 
with requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, which is intended to increase 
transparency & accountability in an organisation’s process of designing and 
implementing a system of internal control. The Company has a clearly defined 
Governance, Standard Operating Procedures, Financial & Operational systems. 
Our SAP ERP system facilitate mapping with role-based authority to business 
& functional team to ensure smooth conduct of their operations across the 
organisation. The Company has well established Internal audit function 
conducted by a firm of chartered accountants. Regular audits are performed 
for all locations (Plants and Head office). The Internal Auditors reports to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board. The Internal Auditors monitors 
and evaluates the efficiency and adequacy of internal control system in the 
Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and 
policies of the Company. Based on the report of internal auditors, the Company 
undertakes corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthens 
the controls. Significant audit observations and recommendations along with 
corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Company has documented its internal financial controls considering the 
essential components of various critical processes, physical and operational. 
This includes its design, implementation and maintenance, along with periodical 
internal review of operational effectiveness and sustenance, which are 
commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and complexity of its 
operations.

This ensures orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention of errors, 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information. The internal financial controls with reference to 
the financial statements were adequate and operating effectively.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:
Encouraging performance across product segments led to a revenue growth 
of 41% and profit growth of 198%, however Margins were under pressure 
due to spiralling cost inflation. We exited the year with a positive momentum 
recording highest ever revenue and profits. It has been a year of revival despite 
transitional impact of Covid and commodity inflation. Overheads reduced due to 
the on-going impact of Covid. While the inflationary environment continues to 
pose a challenge, however, we maintain a positive outlook on demand growth 
and gradual recovery of margins.

We have developed a strong financial capital framework with adequate foresight 
and agility to drive effective growth. Our strong balance sheet enables us to 
direct our growth capital swiftly and efficiently towards emerging opportunities 
for long-term value creation. Armed with this prudent approach, we navigated 
through exceptional circumstances brought on by the pandemic, transforming 
into a future-ready organisation with confidence and purpose.

We continued investing in capacity expansion to fuel our next phase of growth. 
Our total capital expenditure during the year was ` 731.12 Lakhs which was 
primarily directed towards enhancing our infrastructure and capabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES:
We differentiate ourselves through our people-centric approach and inculcate a 
culture of transparency, inclusion, collaboration and excellence, making Rexnord 
a ‘Great Place to Work’. Our policies and practices are aimed at providing a 
conducive work environment to meet the aspirations of our people, while 
ensuring their safety and well-being. 

We carry out continuous employee training to upgrade skills and equip our 
people with the latest technologies in the market. We regularly engage with 
our employees, with a special focus on ensuring their well-being and retention. 
These training sessions included trainings on functional/behavioural and 
technical topics, in close coordination with our in-house experts. 

Rexnord believes in an equal opportunity approach. The employees within 
the organisation are evaluated solely on the basis of their qualification and 
performance. We provide equal opportunities in all aspects of employment, 
including retirement, training, work conditions, and career progression, among 
others, this reinforces our commitment that equal employment opportunities 
is a key element of our growth and competitiveness. Further, Rexnord is also 
committed to maintaining a workplace where each employee’s privacy and 
personal dignity is respected and protected.

We have always strived to maintain the health and safety of our employees 
and contractual workers, making it an utmost priority for the organisation. We 
have undertaken several initiatives to prevent and reduce injuries at our plants, 
and ensuring safety for all. Periodical Health check-ups are done to ensure the 
health the wellbeing of our employees.

We at Rexnord believe in providing a homely environment for all its employees 
with minimal stress in these difficult times. Under this initiative the company 
provides Mid-day Meals to all its Employees at its cost to maintain a hygienic as 
well as a work friendly environment.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS OF THE 
COMPANY:

Ratio 2021-22 2020-21

Debtors’ Turnover ratio (times) 26.62 8.92

Inventory turnover (times) 2.34 1.47

Interest coverage ratio (times) 16.98 10.07

Current ratio (times) 3.00 2.76

Debt equity ratio (times) 0.27 0.13

Operating Profit Margin Ratio (%) 18.60% 9.86%

Net Profit Margin Ratio (%) 12.97% 6.16%

RETURN ON NET wORTH:
The return on net worth of the Company remained 19.63% for the year as 
against 7.73% in the previous year. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:
Statement in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the 
Company’s objectives, expectations, estimates or predictions may be forward 
looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual 
results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement due to 
external factors. Important factors that could influence the Company’s operations 
include global and domestic supply and demand conditions affecting selling 
prices of finished goods, input availability and prices, changes in Government 
regulations, tax laws, economic developments within the country, Covid-19 
situation in the Country and other incidental factors. The Company assumes no 
responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward-looking statements, 
on the basis, of any subsequent developments, events or information.
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015)

To,

Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited
92-D, Govt. Industrial Estate,
Charkop, Kandivali (West),
Mumbai – 400 067

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited having 
Corporate Identification Number: L31200MH1988PLC047946 and having registered office at 92-D, Govt. Industrial Estate, Charkop, Kandivli (West), Mumbai – 400 067 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read 
with Schedule V Para – C, Sub-clause 10(i) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) 
as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers. We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as 
stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. 
No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in 

Company

1. Kishorechand Talwar 00351751 04/07/1988

2. Nainy Kunal Tanna 00351762 01/08/2001

3. Ayyaswami Sundaram 02997721 03/03/2010

4. Sriram Shrinivasan 08129642 16/05/2018

5. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan 08129657 16/05/2018

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For GMJ & Associates
Company Secretaries

Mahesh Soni
PARTNER
FCS: 3706, COP: 2324
UDIN: F003706D000430924 

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 30, 2022
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DECLARATION REGARDING AFFIRMATION OF CODE OF CONDUCT
In terms of the requirements of regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, this is to confirm that all the members of 
the Board and the senior managerial personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Kishorechand Talwar 
Chairman & Managing Director 

(DIN : 00351751)

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 30, 2022
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ANNEXURE ‘C’ TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

To
The Board of Directors
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited
92-D, Govt. Industrial Estate,
Charkop, Kandivali (West),
Mumbai – 400 067

We, the undersigned, in our capacity as Chairman & Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited (“the Company”), to the 
best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

a. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 and that to the best of our 
knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statement that might be misleading;

(ii) these statements present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and 
regulations.

b. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative 
of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

c. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control 
systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation 
of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps taken or proposed to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d. We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and the Audit Committee

(i) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant 
role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Kishore Chand Talwar 
Chairman & Managing Director 

(DIN : 00351751)

Kundan Talwar 
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 30, 2022
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ANNEXURE ‘D’ TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE wITH THE CONDITIONS OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

To,
The Members,
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited
92-D, Govt. Industrial Estate,
Charkop, Kandivali (West),
Mumbai – 400 067,

1. The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited (“the Company”), contains details as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, 
clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the Listing Regulations”) (‘applicable criteria’) with respect to Corporate Governance for the year ended March 
31, 2022. This report is required by the Company for annual submission to the Stock exchange and to be sent to the Shareholders of the Company.

Management’s Responsibility
2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company including the preparation and maintenance of 

all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report.

3. The Management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility
4. Our responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether the Company has complied with the condition of Corporate Governance, 

as stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 

5. We conducted our examination of the Corporate Governance Report in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes 
(Revised 2016) and the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). The 
Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued 
by ICAI.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and 
Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

7. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks associated in compliance of the Corporate Governance Report 
with the applicable criteria. The procedures include but not limited to verification of secretarial records and financial information of the Company and obtained 
necessary representations and declarations from directors including independent directors of the Company.

8. The procedures also include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate Governance Report on a test basis. Further, our scope of work under 
this report did not involve us performing audit tests for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any of the financial information or the 
financial statements of the Company taken as a whole.

Opinion
9. Based on the procedures performed by us as referred in paragraph 7 and 8 above and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the 

opinion that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, as applicable for the year ended 
March 31, 2022, referred to in paragraph 1 above.

Other Matters and Restriction on use
10. This report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company.

11. This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to comply with its obligations under the Listing 
Regulations and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for 
any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. We have no responsibility to 
update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.

For Rakesh Soni & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R. K. Soni  
Place : Mumbai. Partner 
Dated : May 30, 2022 Membership No. 047151 

UDIN:22047151AJXMTX4584 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
REXNORD ELECTRONICS AND CONTROLS LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Rexnord 
Electronics and Controls Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance 
Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash 
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at 31 March 2022, its profit (including other comprehensive 
income), its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were 
of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matters to 
be communicated in our report

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit 
matter

Appropriateness of revenue 
recognition on sale of goods.
Refer note 2.2 and Note 31 
of the standalone financial 
statements.
The Company has revenue from 
sale of goods.
Revenue from sale of goods 
is recognized under Ind AS 
115- ‘Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers’ at a point in 
time when the control has been 
transferred, which generally 
coincides with dispatch of 
products to customers in case of 
domestic sales and on the basis 
of bill of lading in the case of 
export sales.
We determined this to be a key 
audit matter due to significant 
time and effort involved in 
assessing the appropriateness of 
revenue recognition and covering 
the aspects of completeness, 
accuracy, occurrence and cut off.

Our audit procedures relating to revenue 
recognition include the following:
a. Understood and performed procedures 

to assess the design and test the 
operating effectiveness of relevant 
controls related to recording of revenue.

b. Assessed whether the policy of 
recognizing revenue was in line with 
Ind AS - 115.

c. Tested the reconciliation of the amounts 
as per the sales register to the general 
ledger.

d. Performed tests, on sample basis 
by validating the amounts recorded 
with the underlying documents 
which inter - alia includes invoices, 
dispatch documents, customer orders/ 
contracts, receipt of consideration from 
customers, where applicable.

e. Performed cut off testing, on sample 
basis and ensured that the revenue 
from sale of goods is recognised in the 
appropriate period.

Based on the above procedures performed, 
we did not identify any exceptions in 
revenue recognition on sale of goods.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s 
Report thereon 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in 
Company’s annual report, but does not include the standalone financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Company’s annual report is 
expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes 
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the Company’s annual report, if we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to 
those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as applicable under 
the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance 
for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

l Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management.

l Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial 
statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial 
statements that individually or in aggregate makes it probable that the 
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality 
and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) 

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) 
of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable. 

2. (A) As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014;

e) on the basis of written representations received from the 
directors as on 31 March 2022, taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 
March 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act; and

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
“Annexure B”.

(B) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules 2014, in our opinion and to our best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which 
would impact its financial position; 

(b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including 
derivatives contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses; 

(c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company; 
and

(d) i)  The management has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall:

l directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the 
Company or

l provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

ii) The management has represented, that, to the best 
of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any persons or entities, 
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Company shall:

l directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party or

l provide any guarantee, security or the like from or 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under subclause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) 
contain any material misstatement.

(e) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the 
year therefore, the provisions of Section 123 of the Act are not 
applicable. 

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:

 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 
read with schedule V of the Act.

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R.K. Soni
Partner

Membership No. 047151
Place: Mumbai UDIN: 22047151AJXLF17597
Dated: May 30, 2022
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT – 31 MARCH 2022
Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true 
and fair view on the standalone financial statements of the Company and taking 
into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the books 
of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we 
report that:

(i) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible 
Assets:

(a) (A)  The Company has maintained proper records, showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-
use assets;

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars Intangible Assets;

(b) As explained to us, the Company has a program of physical 
verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets 
so as to cover all the assets once every year which, in our opinion, is 
reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and nature of 
its assets. Pursuant to the program, Property, Plant and Equipment 
and right-of-use assets were physically verified by the Management. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on 
the basis of records/documents examined by us, in our opinion, the 
title deeds of immoveable properties (other than properties where 
the company is lessee and lease agreements are executed in favour 
of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements included under 
Property plant & equipment are held in the name of the Company 
except in the case of a plot of land purchased during the financial 
year 2016-17 by the Company as detailed below;

Description of 
the property 

Gross 
Carrying 

Value 
(` in 

lakhs)

Held in 
the name 

of 

whether 
promoter, 
director 
or their 
relative 

or 
employee

Period 
held-

indicate 
range 
where 

appropriate

Reason for 
not being 
held in the 

name of the 
Company.

A plot of land 
situated at 
S. No. 61, H. 
No. 1 Part at 
Village- Kaman, 
Taluka -Vasai 
District - 
Palghar (MS)

14.50 1. Mrs. 
Nayana 
Anant 
Gangda

2. Mrs. 
Vimal 
Jagdish 
Ghatal

3. Ms. 
Hemangi 
Jagdish 
Ghatal

4. Mr. 
Tejas 
Jagdish 
Ghatal

No 5 years 3 
months

Refer note 
3A(iv) to the 
standalone 
financial 
statements

d)  The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and 
Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and Intangible Assets 
during the year; and

e)  No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending 
against the Company as at 31st March 2022 for holding any benami 
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 
1988 as amended and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) a)   As certified by the management, physical verification of inventories 
was conducted by the Management during the year except goods 
in transit and stock lying with third parties. As explained to us, in 
our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by 
the Management is reasonable having regards to the size of the 
Company and nature of its inventories. No discrepancies of 10% 
or more in the aggregate of each class of inventories were noticed 

on such physical verification of inventories as compared to book 
records; and 

b)  As per the sanction letter produced to us, the Company has 
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ` 500 lakhs in 
aggregate, during the year, from a bank on the basis of security of 
current assets. The quarterly returns and statements filed by the 
Company with the bank are materially in agreement with the books of 
accounts. 

(iii) The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to the companies, 
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. The Company has 
made investments in other parties and granted unsecured loans to its 
subsidiary company and other parties during the year, in respect which:

a) The Company has granted unsecured loans to other entities. The 
Company has not granted any advances in the nature of loans, 
provided guarantees or any security to any other entities; 

(A) The aggregate amount granted during the year and balance 
outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such 
loans to the subsidiary company as given hereunder: 

Particulars Amount 
(` in lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted during the year to 
subsidiary company

5.00

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet 
date in respect of above case

28.00

(B) The aggregate amount granted during the year and balance 
outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such 
loans to parties other than subsidiary company as given 
hereunder: 

Particulars Amount 
(` in lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted during the year to 
others (staff)

7.25

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet 
date in respect of above cases (staff)

8.16

b) In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions 
of the unsecured loans granted, during the year, prima facie, not 
prejudicial to the interest of the Company;

c) In respect of the loans granted by the Company, the schedule of 
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated 
and repayment of principal amounts and receipts of interest have 
generally been regular as per stipulation;

d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue 
amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date;

e) No loans granted by the Company which has fallen due during the 
year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle 
the overdues of existing loans given to same parties. Accordingly, the 
provisions of paragraph 3 (iii) (e) of the Order are not applicable; and

f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature 
of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms 
or period of repayment during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of 
paragraph 3 (iii) (e) of the Order are not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 
of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans granted and investments 
made, as applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amount which are deemed 
to be deposits during the year in accordance with the provisions of 
sections 73 to 76 of the Act and rules framed there under. Accordingly, the 
provisions of paragraph 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the 
Company in respect of the products where, pursuant to the rules made 
by the Central Government of India, the maintenance of cost records 
has been specified under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, and 
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are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records 
have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view of determine whether they are 
accurate or complete.

(vii) (a)  On the basis of books and records examined by us, amount 
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed 
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, 
employees state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty 
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory 
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate 
authorities. There are no arrears of undisputed statutory dues as at 
the last day of financial year concerned, outstanding for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable; and 

(b) On the basis of books and records examined by us, there are no 
statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) above which have not 
been deposited with appropriate authorities on account of any 
dispute. 

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that 
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) a) On the basis of selective checks carried out during the course of audit, 
we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in the repayment 
of loans and other borrowing and in the payment of interest thereon. 

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or 
financial institution or government or any government authority;

c) In our opinion, the term loan was applied for the purpose for which 
the loan was obtained raised;

d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of 
the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not 
been used for long-term purposes by the Company;

e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of 
the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity 
or person on account of or to meet the obligation of its subsidiary 
company; and

f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiary company.

(x) a)  As per the records of the Company, the Company did not raise any 
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, provisions of 
paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partially or 
optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, provisions of 
paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xi) a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud 
by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the course of our audit; 

b) No report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Companies 
Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed in rule 13 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year and upto date of this report; and

c) As per the records of the Company, no whistle blower complaint has 
been received by the Company during the year and upto date of this 
report.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, provisions of 
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, transactions 
with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and Section 
188 of the Act as applicable and details of such transactions have been 
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) a)  In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under 
audit, issued to the Company during the year and till date, in 
determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not 
entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with him. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) a)  In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under 
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, 
provisions of paragraph 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group 
(as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Direction 2016) and accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3 (xvi) (d) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year under 
audit and immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company 
during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of the 
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of 
Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination 
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists 
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable 
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of the balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however state that this is not an assurance as to future viability of 
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up 
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they 
fall due.

(xx) a)  There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer of a Fund 
specified in Schedule VII to the Act in compliance with the second 
proviso to sub section (5) of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, 
provisions of paragraph 3 (xx) (a) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

b) Since the Company does not have any unspent amount under sub 
section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing project 
and accordingly does not require any amount to transfer to special 
account in compliance to provisions of sub section (6) of Section 135 
of the Act.

(xxi) The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of 
standalone financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment 
has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

 For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R.K. Soni
Partner

Membership No. 047151
Place: Mumbai UDIN: 22047151AJXLF17597
Dated: May 30, 2022
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 
2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the Guidance Note”)

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the standalone financial statement. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R.K. Soni
Partner

Membership No. 047151
Place: Mumbai UDIN: 22047151AJXLF17597
Dated: May 30, 2022

ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT – 31 MARCH 2022
Referred to in paragraph 2A(f) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars Note As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3A 2420.99 1921.61
Right-of-use asset 3B 771.39 9.66
Intangible assets 3C 2.23 1.06
Financial assets

Investments 4 200.00 200.00
Loans 5 32.85 24.73
Other financial assets 6 15.55 115.93

Income tax assets (net) 7 0.00 0.01
Other non-current assets 8 113.02 329.80

Total non-current assets 3556.03 2602.80
Current assets

Inventories 9 1801.00 1678.84
Financial assets

Investments 10 82.63 178.14
Trade receivables 11 278.94 255.07
Cash and cash equivalents 12 145.40 352.99
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 1400.00 415.00
Loans 14 3.31 2.27
Other financial assets 15 9.77 5.72

Other current assets 16 132.36 123.11
Total current assets 3853.41 3011.14
TOTAL ASSETS 7409.44 5613.94

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital 17 1115.91 1115.91
Other equity 18 4033.22 3112.95

Total equity 5149.13 4228.86
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 19 50.15 151.72
Lease liabilities 20 764.32 10.09
Other financial liabilities 21 0.00 3.10

Provisions 22 21.18 21.69
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 23 138.35 109.14

Total non-current liabilities 974.00 295.74
Current liabililties

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 24 580.67 398.07
Lease liabilities 25 19.14 0.25
Trade payables 26
i)  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises
0.00 41.03

ii)  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

454.95 430.15

Other financial liabilities 27 74.04 60.98
Other current liabilities 28 141.58 138.76
Provisions 29 10.53 4.03

Income-tax liabilities (Net) 30 5.40 16.07
Total current liabilities 1286.31 1089.34
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7409.44 5613.94

Contingent liabilities and commitments 
(To the extent not provided for)

40

Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements 1 to 56

As per our attached report of even date

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited 
CIN: L31200MH1988PLC047946

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R. K. Soni

Kishore Chand Talwar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00351751

Nainy K. Tanna 
Wholetime Director 
DIN 00351762

Krishnamoorthy Krishnan
Director
DIN 08129657

Partner
Membership No. 047151

Kundan Talwar
Chief Financial Officer

Shweta Kalantri
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars Note For the year ended 31.03.2022 For the year ended 31.03.2021

Revenue from operations 31 7107.16 5016.29 

Other income 32 109.41 105.83 

Total Revenue 7216.57 5122.12 

Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 33 3970.75 2727.47 

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 34 94.32 91.98 

Employee benefits expense 35 527.73 431.36 

Finance costs 36 88.67 65.11 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 183.98 160.92 

Other expenses 37 1256.00 1018.04 

Total expenses 6121.45 4494.88 

Profit before exceptional items and tax 1095.12 627.24 

Less: Exceptional items 38 (138.18) 197.61 

Profit before tax 1233.30 429.63 

Tax expense:

Current tax 281.12 120.26 

Deferred tax 29.76 0.53 

Tax adjustment for earlier years 0.51 (0.31)

311.39 120.48 

Profit for the year (A) 921.91 309.15 

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans (2.19) 7.51 

Income tax on above (0.55) 1.89 

Other comprehensive income for the year (B) (1.64) 5.62 

Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 920.27 314.77 

Earning per equity share 39

Basic `  8.26  2.77 

Diluted `  8.26  2.77 

Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements 1 to 56

As per our attached report of even date

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited 
CIN: L31200MH1988PLC047946

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R. K. Soni

Kishore Chand Talwar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00351751

Nainy K. Tanna 
Wholetime Director 
DIN 00351762

Krishnamoorthy Krishnan
Director
DIN 08129657

Partner
Membership No. 047151

Kundan Talwar
Chief Financial Officer

Shweta Kalantri
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022
A. Equity Share Capital

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars Value

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. 1st April, 2021 1115.91

Changes during the year 0.00

Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. 31st March, 2022 1115.91

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. 1st April, 2020 1115.91

Changes during the year 0.00

Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. 31st March, 2021 1115.91

B. Other Equity
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive income Total

Securities 
Premium Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Remeasurements 
of the net defined 

benefit plans

Effective portion 
of gain (loss) on 

cash flow hedges

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. 1st 
April, 2021

292.28 2816.49 4.18 0.00 3112.95

Profit for the year 0.00 921.91 0.00 0.00 921.91

Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges reclassified to Statement 
of Profit and Loss

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year* 0.00 0.00 (1.64) 0.00 (1.64)

Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. 31st 
March, 2022

292.28 3738.40 2.54 0.00 4033.22

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. 1st 
April, 2020

292.28 2507.34 (1.44) 2.07 2800.25

Profit for the year 0.00 309.15 0.00 0.00 309.15

Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges reclassified to Statement 
of Profit and Loss

0.00 0.00 0.00 (2.07) (2.07)

Other Comprehensive Income for the year* 0.00 0.00 5.62 0.00 5.62 

Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. 31st 
March, 2021

292.28 2816.49 4.18 0.00 3112.95

* Net of taxes.

Nature of reserves
a) Securities Premium Reserve: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the 

provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to other reserve, dividends or other distributions 
paid to shareholders.

Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements 1 to 56

As per our attached report of even date

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited 
CIN: L31200MH1988PLC047946

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R. K. Soni

Kishore Chand Talwar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00351751

Nainy K. Tanna 
Wholetime Director 
DIN 00351762

Krishnamoorthy Krishnan
Director
DIN 08129657

Partner
Membership No. 047151

Kundan Talwar
Chief Financial Officer

Shweta Kalantri
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022
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CASH FLOw STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2022 For the year ended 31.03.2021

A) CASH FLOwS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 1233.30 429.63 

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortization 183.98 160.92 

Allowance for doubtful debt/loan s provided/written back (net) 0.00 0.00 

(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 
(net)

(111.48) (20.29)

Allowance for impairment in the value of investments no longer required (9.78) 34.65 

Unrealised exchange (gain)/ loss 14.59 3.58 

Net (gain)/loss on investments (5.19) (6.53)

Interest income (58.19) (27.24)

Dividend income 0.00 0.00 

Interest and other borrowing costs 67.79 61.57 

Operating profit before working capital changes     1315.02 636.29 

Adjustments for :

Trade receivables (23.87) 611.23 

Other receivables 202.78 40.54 

Inventories (122.15) 482.03 

Trade payables (16.23) (483.11)

Other payables 18.26 (9.47)

Cash generated from operations 1373.81 1277.51 

Direct taxes paid (292.28) (90.22)

Cash flow before extraordinary items 1081.53 1187.29 

Extraordinary items 0.00 0.00 

NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1081.53 1187.29 

B) CASH FLOwS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of tangible assets including CWIP 185.26 170.13 

Purchase of tangible assets including CWIP (728.94) (326.41)

Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 0.29 0.00 

Purchase of intangible assets (2.18) 0.00 

Proceeds from sale of investments 186.47 0.00 

Purchase of investments (76.00) (150.06)

Loan given to subsidiary (5.00) (35.00)

Loan refund received from subsidiary 0.00 12.00 

(Increase)/ decrease in deposits 1.55 0.29 

(Increase)/ decrease in bank fixed deposits (885.00) (300.00)

Interest income 53.56 25.26 

Dividend income 0.00 0.00 

NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1269.99) (603.79)
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2022 For the year ended 31.03.2021

C) CASH FLOw FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term borrowings 70.00 0.00 

Repayment of long term borrowings (7.32) (187.43)

Proceeds from short term borrowings 879.94 990.97 

Repayment of short term borrowings (876.18) (1100.91)

Repayment of lease liability (16.09) (0.23)

Change in working capital borrowings from banks 0.00 0.00 

Interest and other borrowing costs (69.48) (64.23)

NET CASH FROM/ (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (19.13) (361.83)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (207.59) 221.67 

OPENING BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 352.99 131.32 

CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH  AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 145.40 352.99 

Notes :
1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 on “Statement of Cash Flow” notified 

u/s 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with relevant rules issued thereunder and the relevant provisions of the Act.
2. Change in liability arising from financing activities

Particulars Non-current borrowing* Current borrowing

Balance as at 1st April 2020 342.81 501.89

Net cash flows (187.43) (109.94)

Effect of unrealised exchange gain/loss (3.66) 6.12 

Balance as at 31st March 2021 151.72 398.07

Balance as at 1st April 2021 151.72 398.07

Net cash flows 62.68 3.76 

Effect of unrealised exchange gain/loss 4.34 10.25 

Balance as at 31st March 2022 218.74 412.08

 * Non current borrowings include the current maturities of non current borrowings
3. Refer note 12 for details of cash and cash equivalents. 
4. All figures in brackets reflects cash outflow.
5. Figures of the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary.

Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements 1 to 56

CASH FLOw STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022 (Contd..)

As per our attached report of even date

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited 
CIN: L31200MH1988PLC047946

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R. K. Soni

Kishore Chand Talwar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00351751

Nainy K. Tanna 
Wholetime Director 
DIN 00351762

Krishnamoorthy Krishnan
Director
DIN 08129657

Partner
Membership No. 047151

Kundan Talwar
Chief Financial Officer

Shweta Kalantri
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
Note 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited (“the Company”) is a public 
limited Company domiciled in India with its registered office located at 92-D, 
Government Industrial Estate, Sahyadrinagar Charkop, Kandivali (West), 
Mumbai-400067. The Company is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange 
(BSE). The Company is manufacturer of fans & motors. The Company has its 
manufacturing facility at Survey no. 62, 74, 75, 20, Village Devdal (Sagpada), 
Opp Sagar Hotel Kaman Bhiwandi Road, Kaman Tal- Vasai, Dist Thane- 401208 
and sells its products in the Indian and Overseas Markets. 

Note 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1) BASIS OF PREPARATION

 A) Statement of Compliance
a) These financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred 
to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

b) The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and 
going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied 
consistently to all the periods presented in the financial 
statements. All assets and liabilities have been classified 
as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal 
operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division II of 
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature 
of products and the time between acquisition of assets for 
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, 
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months 
for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets 
and liabilities.

c) The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
31st March, 2022 were approved for issue in accordance with 
the resolution of the Board of Directors on 30th May, 2022.

 B) Basis of Measurement
 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost 

basis, except for the following:

l certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative 
instruments) that are measured at fair value (refer accounting 
policy regarding financial instruments and derivatives and 
hedging activities); and

l defined benefit plans –present value of defined benefit 
obligation unless otherwise indicated. 

 C) Functional and Presentation Currency
 These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, the 

functional currency of the Company. All amounts have been rounded-
off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated. Items included 
in the financial statements of the Company are recorded using the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates (the ‘functional currency’).

 D) Use of Estimates
a) The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind 

AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these 
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge 
of current events and actions, uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes 
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets or liabilities prospectively.

b) Information about critical judgments in applying accounting 
policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the 
most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year, are included in the 
following notes:

i) Measurement of defined benefit obligations - Note 42.

ii) Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions 
and contingencies - Note 22 & 29 and 40.

iii) Recognition of deferred tax liabilities - Note 23.

 E) Measurement of fair values
 The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the 

measurement of fair values for, both financial assets and liabilities. 

 The Company has an established control framework with respect 
to the measurement of fair values. The management regularly 
reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. 
If third party information is used to measure fair values, then the 
management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties 
to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements 
of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such 
valuations should be classified.

 When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial 
liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as 
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair 
value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques 
as follows. 

l Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities.

l Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that 
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

l Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability 
fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value 
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the 
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the 
entire measurement.

 Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair 
values is included in the Note 44.

2.2) REVENUE RECOGNITION
 The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of manufactured goods.

 Sale of products 
 Revenue from sale of products is recognised when control of the 

products has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the 
customer. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped or 
delivered to the specific location as the case may be, the risks of loss 
has been transferred, and either the customer has accepted the products 
in accordance with the sales contract, or the Company has objective 
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Sale of 
products include related ancillary services, if any.

 The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period 
between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer 
and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it 
does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

 Other operating revenue - Export incentives
 The benefits, on account of entitlement to import duty free raw material 

under the Advance License Scheme in respect of goods already exported, 
are not valued and brought into the books in the year of export. The raw 
materials are recorded at cost at which they are procured in the year of 
import. 

 The benefits under MEIS/RODTEP Schemes and Duty Drawback Scheme 
are recognized when the exports are made. 

2.3) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 a) Short term employee benefits
 All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of 

rendering services are classified as short-term employee benefits. 
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is 
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid 
if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay 
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and 
the obligation can be estimated reliably. 
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 Short-term benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, ex gratia, short-term 

compensation absences, etc., are determined on an undiscounted basis 
and recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related 
service.

 b) Post-employment benefits

  Defined contribution plans
 Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans such as 

Provident Fund maintained with Regional Provident Fund Office is 
expensed as the related service is provided.

  Defined benefit plans
 The following post – employment benefit plans are covered under the 

defined benefit plans:

l Gratuity 

 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement 
plan covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a 
lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, 
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount 
based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure 
of employment with the Company. The calculation of defined 
benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary 
using the projected unit credit method. 

 Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other 
comprehensive income.

 c) Other long-term employee benefits

  Compensated absences
 The Company does not have any leave encashment policy. Further 

any unutilized leave at the end of the year is lapsed and not eligible 
for carry forward.

2.4) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSCLATION 
 Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency, 

by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the 
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

 Foreign currency monetary items (assets and liabilities) are restated using 
the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.

 Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary 
items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent 
of exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to finance 
costs on foreign currency borrowings that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of 
assets.

 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a 
foreign currency are recorded using the exchange rates at the date of 
the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the 
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition 
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation 
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or 
Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in OCI or Statement of 
Profit and Loss, respectively).

2.5) ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME
 Income tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and 

deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except 
to the extent it relates to a business combination or to an item which is 
recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year 
using applicable tax rates at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustment 
to taxes in respect of previous years. 

 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes 
and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

 A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of 
realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, 

using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the 
reporting period. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the 
asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting 
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the 
probability of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognized deferred tax 
assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which they can be used. 

 Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a 
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is 
an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred 
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally 
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; 
and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income 
taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

 MAT credit entitlement is recognized and carried forward only if there is a 
reasonable certainty of it being set off against regular tax payable within 
the stipulated statutory period.

2.6) PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
 Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost net of 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Cost comprises of purchase price and any attributable cost such as duties, 
freight, borrowing costs, erection and commissioning expenses incurred in 
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. If significant 
parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful 
lives, then they are accounted and depreciated for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or 
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of profit and loss 
during the period in which they are incurred.

 Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and 
equipment are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

 Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on 
the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.

2.7) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
 Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, 

trade discount and rebates less accumulated amortization/depletion and 
impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing 
costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working 
condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts 
and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the 
intangible assets.

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or 
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity 
and the cost can be measured reliably.

 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are 
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

 Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure 
all its intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its 
deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1st April, 2016.

2.8) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
 Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Statement 

of Profit and Loss. Development costs of products are charged to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss unless a product’s technological 
and commercial feasibility has been established, in which case such 
expenditure is capitalized.

2.9) DEPRECIATION
 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on straight line 

method at the rates and in the manner specified in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. In the case of revalued assets, depreciation is 
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calculated on straight line method on the revalued amounts as determined 
by the valuer. 

 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment added/disposed off/discarded 
during the period is provided on the pro-rata basis with reference to the 
date of addition/disposal/discarding.

 The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, 
plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate.

2.10) AMORTIZATION
 Intangible assets (Application Software) acquired by the Company are 

amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life i.e. three years, as 
decided by the management.

 Right of use asset (Leasehold land) is amortized over the primary period of 
lease.

 Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at 
each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.11) BORROwING COSTS
 Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency 

borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest 
cost. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such 
assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of 
time to get ready for its intended use.

 Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings 
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the 
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

 All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the period for which they are incurred.

2.12) LEASES
 As a lessee:
 The Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease, at 

inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses 
whether: i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset ii) the 
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 
asset through the period of the lease and iii) the Company has the right to 
direct the use of the asset.

 At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements 
in which it is lessee, except for short-term leases (leases with a term of 
twelve months or less), leases of low value assets and, for contract where 
the lessee and lessor has right to terminate a lease without permission 
from the other party with no more than an insignificant penalty. The 
lease expense of such short-term leases, low value assets leases and 
cancellable leases, are recognized as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

 At commencement date, lease liability is measured at the present value 
of the lease payments to be paid during non-cancellable period of the 
contract, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. The right-of-
use assets is initially recognized at the amount of the initial measurement 
of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before 
commencement date less any lease incentives received and any initial 
direct costs.

 Subsequently the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any impairment losses. Lease liability is subsequently 
measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease 
liability (using effective interest rate method) and reducing the carrying 
amount to reflect the lease payments made. The right-of-use asset and 
lease liability are also adjusted to reflect any lease modifications or revised 
in-substance fixed lease payments.

 As a lessor:
 Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or 

operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified 
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

 Income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is 
recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless 
the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general 
inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The 
respective leased assets are included in the Standalone Balance Sheet 
based on their nature. Leases of property, plant and equipment where the 
Company as a lessor has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards 
are classified as finance lease. Finance leases are capitalized at the 
inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, 
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rent 
receivables, net of interest income, are included in other financial assets. 
Each lease receipt is allocated between the asset and interest income. The 
interest income is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and 
Loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
interest on the remaining balance of the asset for each period.

2.13) PROVISION, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & CONTINGENT ASSETS
 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation, as 

a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made for the amount of the obligation.

 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are 
discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, the increase 
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arise from past events 
whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or 
a present obligation that is not recognised because it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will not be required to settle the obligation. However, 
if the possibility of outflow of resources, arising out of present obligation, 
is remote, it is not even disclosed as contingent liability. The company 
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the 
financial statement.

 Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial 
statements.

2.14) IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
 At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its 

non-financial assets (other than deferred tax assets) to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the 
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets 
are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or Cash generating units (“CGU”). The recoverable 
amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash 
flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised if 
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss 
is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

2.15) EARNINGS PER SHARE
 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the 

period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted-average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted-average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all years 
presented is adjusted for events such as bonus issue; bonus element in 
a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split 
(consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity-shares 
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or 
loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted-
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.16) INVENTORIES
 Inventories are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. 

Obsolete, defective and unserviceable stocks are provided for. Materials-in-



40

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
process are valued at raw material cost and estimated cost of conversion. 
Cost of finished goods includes conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition

 Cost of Inventories is computed on FIFO basis. Goods in transit, if any, are 
stated at actual cost incurred upto the date of balance sheet.

2.17) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 I.  FINANCIAL ASSETS

 A) Initial Recognition and Measurement
 Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a 

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets 
which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), 
its transaction cost is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 
In other cases, the transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition 
value of the financial asset. Trade receivables and debt securities are 
initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets 
and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

 B) Classification And Subsequent Measurement
a) Amortized cost: A financial asset is measured at amortized 

cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to 
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): 
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

c) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL): A financial asset 
which is not classified in any of the above categories are 
measured at FVTPL.

 Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, 
except if and in the period the Company changes its business model 
for managing financial assets.

 C) Cash and bank balances 
(i) Cash and cash equivalents which includes cash in hand, 

deposits held at call with banks and other short-term deposits 
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are 
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and have 
maturities of 3 months or less from the date of such deposits. 
These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and 
usage.

(ii) Other bank balances which include balances and deposits 
with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage.

 D) Investments in subsidiaries 
 Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, 
the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down 
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in 
subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 E) Equity instruments
 All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value 

changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those 
equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the 
value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’.

 F)  Trade receivables and loans
 Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, 

these assets are held at amortized cost, using the effective interest 
rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is 
the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the 
expected life of financial instrument.

 G)  Debt Instruments
 Debt instruments are initially measured at amortized cost, fair value 

through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or fair value through 
profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the 
entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and (ii) the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

 H)  Impairment of Financial Asset
 In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected 

Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk 
exposure: 

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured 
at amortized cost e.g., loans, security deposits, bank deposits 
and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables

 The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of 
impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do not 
contain a significant financing component. The application of 
simplified approach does not require the Company to track 
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss 
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right 
from its initial recognition. 

 For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets 
and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there 
has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial 
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 
months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if 
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in 
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves 
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk 
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing 
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

 The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

 I)  Income recognition
  Interest income

 Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference 
to the principal outstanding and effective interest rate applicable. 

  Dividend income
 Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to 

receive payment has been established.

 II.  FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

  A) Initial Recognition and Measurement
 Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes 

a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial 
liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost unless at 
initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit 
and loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially recognised 
at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at 
amortized cost, using the effective interest method.

  B) Classification And Subsequent Measurement
 Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized 

cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair 
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all 
changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

 III.  DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual 

rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers 
the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under 
Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is 
derecognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or 
expires.
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 IV.  OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 

LIABILITIES
 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount 

presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, 
the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends 
either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously.

2.18) DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES:
 The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign 

exchange forward, interest rate swaps, currency swaps and currency 
options to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates or interest rate. 
The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

i) Financial assets or financial liabilities, at fair value through profit or 
loss:

 This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities which are 
not designated as hedges.

 Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute 
hedges from an economic perspective, they may not qualify for 
hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any 
derivative that is either not designated a hedge, or is so designated 
but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized as a financial 
asset or financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.

 Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair 
value and attributable transaction costs are recognized in net profit 
in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, when incurred. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these derivatives are measured at 
fair value through profit or loss and the resulting gains or losses are 
included in other income or other expenses. Assets / liabilities in this 

category are presented as current assets / current liabilities if they 
are either held for trading or are expected to be realized within 12 
months after the Standalone Balance Sheet date.

ii) Cash flow hedge:

 The Company designates certain foreign exchange forward and 
options contracts as cash flow hedges to mitigate the risk of foreign 
exchange exposure on firm commitment and highly probable forecast 
transactions.

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, 
the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative 
is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in 
the cash flow hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in 
the fair value of the derivative is recognized immediately in the net 
profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging instrument 
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge 
accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument 
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain / 
(loss) on the hedging instrument recognized in cash flow hedging 
reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains in cash 
flow hedging reserve until the forecasted transaction occurs. The 
cumulative gain/(loss) previously recognized in the cash flow hedging 
reserve is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the 
occurrence of the related forecasted transaction.

 If the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the 
amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified to 
net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.19) SEGMENT REPORTING
 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal 

reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
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NOTE 3A: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
1st April 2021

Additions Disposals Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
31st March 

2022

Accumulated 
Depreciation 
as at 1st April 

2021

Depreciation Accumulated 
Depreciation on 

disposals

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

as at 31st 
March 2022

Net Carrying 
Value as at 
31st March 

2022

Property, plant & equipment

Land 492.27 244.06 0.00 736.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 736.33 

Factory buildings 870.73 0.00 14.68 856.05 176.16 32.36 14.26 194.26 661.79 

Residential flats 15.83 0.00 0.00 15.83 1.74 0.35 0.00 2.09 13.74 

Plant and machineries 698.67 221.08 53.91 865.84 236.39 57.95 23.08 271.26 594.58 

Moulds and dies 171.47 1.40 14.29 158.58 94.38 17.08 9.76 101.70 56.88 

Furniture and fixtures 101.06 0.00 0.00 101.06 47.58 10.06 0.00 57.64 43.42 

Office equipments 33.35 2.68 4.66 31.37 22.71 4.35 3.75 23.31 8.06 

Vehicles 113.96 246.86 66.32 294.50 48.57 23.86 31.09 41.34 253.16 

Computers 24.48 6.43 3.97 26.94 19.05 1.97 3.86 17.16 9.78 

Factory equipments 77.30 6.43 5.77 77.96 30.93 7.83 4.05 34.71 43.25 

Total as at 31.03.2022 2599.12 728.94 163.60 3164.46 677.51 155.81 89.85 743.47 2420.99 

PARTICULARS

Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
1st April 2020

Additions Disposals Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
31st March 

2021

Accumulated 
Depreciation 
as at 1st April 

2020

Depreciation Accumulated 
Depreciation on 

disposals

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

as at 31st 
March 2021

Net Carrying 
Value as at 
31st March 

2021

Property, plant & equipment

Land 199.02 293.25 0.00 492.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 492.27 

Factory buildings 870.73 0.00 0.00 870.73 143.80 32.36 0.00 176.16 694.57 

Residential flats 15.83 0.00 0.00 15.83 1.39 0.35 0.00 1.74 14.09 

Plant and machineries 801.27 20.74 123.34 698.67 185.69 59.28 8.58 236.39 462.28 

Moulds and dies 171.47 0.00 0.00 171.47 75.26 19.12 0.00 94.38 77.09 

Furniture and fixtures 101.06 0.00 0.00 101.06 37.34 10.24 0.00 47.58 53.48 

Office equipments 32.30 1.71 0.66 33.35 18.20 4.62 0.11 22.71 10.64 

Vehicles 186.73 5.98 78.75 113.96 70.21 22.57 44.21 48.57 65.39 

Computers 20.34 4.14 0.00 24.48 16.28 2.77 0.00 19.05 5.43 

Factory equipments 76.70 0.60 0.00 77.30 23.13 7.80 0.00 30.93 46.37 

Total as at 31.03.2021 2475.45 326.42 202.75 2599.12 571.30 159.11 52.90 677.51 1921.61 

3A(i)   Cost of factory building include ` 0.01 Lakhs (P.Y. ` 0.01 Lakhs) being cost of shares in the Kandivali Co-operative Industrial Estate Limited and also 
constructions on leasehold land. 

3A(ii)  Security
 Property, plant and equipment are hypothecated / mortgaged against borrowings refer note 19 and 24
3A(iii)  Factory buildings includes part of premises at Kandivali (W) (value for the same not acertainable) and industrial gala at Vasai (east) of gross block ` Nil 

(Previous year ` 41.73 lakhs) given on operating lease.
3A(iv)  The title deeds of all the immoveable properties (other than properties where the company is lessee and lease agreements are executed in favour of the 

lessee) disclosed in the financial statements included under Property plant & equipment are held in the name of the Company except in the case of a plot of 
land purchased during the financial year 2016-17 by the Company as detailed below:

Description of the property Gross Carrying 
Value 

(` in lakhs)

Held in the name of whether 
promoter, 
director or 

their relative or 
employee  

Period held 
- Indicate 

range where 
appropriate

Reason for not being held in the 
name of the Company. 

A plot of land situated at S. No. 61, H. 
No. 1 Part at Village- Kaman, Taluka 
-Vasai District - Palghar (MS) 

14.50 1.  Mrs. Nayana Anant 
Gangda

2.  Mrs. Vimal Jagdish 
Ghatal

3.  Ms. Hemangi 
Jagdish Ghatal

4.  Mr. Tejas Jagdish 
Ghatal

No 5 years 3 
months

The plot was purchased from 
persons belonging to tribal 
communities by executing the 
Memorandum of Understanding 
which can be transferred/registered 
in the name of Company only 
after getting the permission 
from Collector. The Company 
is in process of getting the said 
permission from the Collector.
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NOTE 3B: RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

Gross 
carrying 

value as at 1st 
April 2021

Additions Disposals Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
31st March 

2022

Accumulated 
Depreciation 
as at 1st April 

2021

Depreciation Accumulated 
Depreciation on 

disposals

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

as at 31st 
March 2022

Net Carrying 
Value as at 
31st March 

2022

 Leasehold land 10.77 789.21 0.00 799.98 1.11 27.48 0.00 28.59 771.39 

Total as at 31.03.2022 10.77 789.21 0.00 799.98 1.11 27.48 0.00 28.59 771.39 

PARTICULARS

Gross 
carrying 

value as at 1st 
April 2020

Additions Disposals Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
31st March 

2021

Accumulated 
Depreciation 
as at 1st April 

2020

Depreciation Accumulated 
Depreciation on 

disposals

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

as at 31st 
March 2021

Net Carrying 
Value as at 
31st March 

2021

 Leasehold land 10.77 0.00 0.00 10.77 0.56 0.55 0.00 1.11 9.66 

Total as at 31.03.2021 10.77 0.00 0.00 10.77 0.56 0.55 0.00 1.11 9.66 

3B(i) The aggregate depreciation expense on right-of-use asset is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

NOTE 3C: INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

Gross 
carrying 

value as at 1st 
April 2021

Additions Disposals Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
31st March 

2022

Accumulated 
Amortization 
as at 1st April 

2021

Amortization Accumulated 
Amortization on 

disposals

Accumulated 
Amortization 

as at 31st 

March 2022

Net Carrying 
Value as at 
31st March 

2022

Intangible assets
 Computer software - acquired 7.26 2.18 0.56 8.88 6.20 0.69 0.24 6.65 2.23 
Total as at 31.03.2022 7.26 2.18 0.56 8.88 6.20 0.69 0.24 6.65 2.23 

PARTICULARS

Gross 
carrying 

value as at 1st 
April 2020

Additions Disposals Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
31st March 

2021

Accumulated 
Amortization 
as at 1st April 

2020

Amortization Accumulated 
Amortization on 

disposals

Accumulated 
Amortization 

as at 31st 

March 2021

Net Carrying 
Value as at 
31st March 

2021

Intangible assets
 Computer software - acquired 7.26 0.00 0.00 7.26 4.94 1.26 0.00 6.20 1.06 
Total as at 31.03.2021 7.26 0.00 0.00 7.26 4.94 1.26 0.00 6.20 1.06 

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount

NOTE 4: NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Investments measured at Cost
In equity shares of subsidiary company
Unquoted, fully paid up
Rexnord Enterprise Private Limited of ` 10 each 2000000 200.00 2000000 200.00 
Total 200.00 200.00 

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 200.00 200.00 
Aggregate provision for diminution in the value of Investments 0.00 0.00 

NOTE 5: NON-CURRENT LOANS
Loans considered good-Unsecured

Loan to wholly owned subsidiary company 28.00 23.00 
Loan to employees 4.85 1.73 

Total 32.85 24.73 

NOTE 6: OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security deposits 15.55 15.93 

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 0.00 100.00 

Total 15.55 115.93 
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount

NOTE 7: INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)
Taxes paid/adjustments during the year (0.01) 0.00 
Opening balance (0.01) (0.01)
Add: Current tax payable for the year 0.00 (0.01) 0.00 (0.01)

Total 0.00 0.01 

NOTE 8: OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
 Capital advances 110.00 325.87 
 Security deposits 0.00 0.59 
 MVAT refund receivable 0.00 2.30 
 Prepaid expenses 3.02 1.04 

Total 113.02 329.80 

NOTE 9: INVENTORIES
Raw Materials and components including packing materials* 1308.07 1091.14 
Work in progress 433.18 441.91 
Finished goods 59.18 144.77 
Stores and spares 0.57 1.02 

Total 1801.00 1678.84 

Refer note 2.16 for mode of valuaion of inventories

* Includes stock in transit 81.79 0.00 

NOTE 10: CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Investments measured at fair value through Profit & Loss

In equity shares (Quoted)

Infosys Limited of face value of ` 5 each share 5 0.10 5 0.07

In mutual funds (Unquoted)

ICICI Prudential Savings Fund - Growth of face value of ` 10/- each unit 0 0.00 12178.83 50.67

SBI Magnum Low Duration Fund - Growth of face value of ` 10/- each unit 0 0.00 1835.79 50.49

HDFC Low Duration Fund - Regular Plan - Growth of face value of ` 10/- 
each unit

0 0.00 112556.28 50.66

SBI Liquid Fund Regular Growth of face value of ` 1000/- each unit 788.2093 26.09 0 0.00

UTI Liquid Cash Plan-Regular Plan-Growth of face value of ` 1000/- each 
unit

723.8401 25.09 0 0.00

ICICI Prudential Banking and PSU Debt Fund - Growth of face value of 
` 10/- each unit

96120.5724 25.10 0 0.00

Investments measured at Amortized cost
Investment in debentures
Unquoted, fully paid up
Reliance Securities Limited (face value of ` 1 Lakhs each debenture) 0 0.00 25 29.78
Reliance Capital Limited (face value of ` 1 Lakhs each debenture) 25 31.12 25 31.12

107.50 212.79
Less: Allowance for impairment in value of investment in debentures
Reliance Securities Limited 0.00 9.78
Reliance Capital Limited 24.87 24.87

82.63 178.14
Total 82.63 178.14 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments 0.10 0.07 

Market Value of quoted investments 0.10 0.07 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 107.40 212.72 

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 24.87 34.65 
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

NOTE 11: TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivable considered good - Unsecured 278.94 255.07 

Total 278.94 255.07 

Trade receivables ageing schedules for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March 2021

Particulars Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  Total 
Less than 6 

months
6 months - 1 

year
 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 

years 
i) Undisputed Trade receivable - considered good 236.80 42.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 278.94

202.83 52.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.02 255.07
ii) Disputed Trade receivable - considered good 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 236.80 42.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 278.94
202.83 52.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.02 255.07

Figures in italic represent the figures for previous year

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
NOTE 12: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks

In cash credit account 139.81 145.07 
In current accounts 3.39 6.10 
In fixed deposit accounts 0.00 200.00 

Cash on hand 2.20 1.82 
Total 145.40 352.99 

NOTE 13: BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Other bank balances:

In fixed deposit account with maturity less than 12 months 1,185.00 200.00 
Fixed deposits with banks held as margin money for letter of 
credit issued

With maturity period less than 12 months* 215.00 215.00 
With maturity period more than 12 months 0.00 0.00 
Less : Amount disclosed under other non current assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 1400.00 415.00 
*Details of lien on fixed deposit as under:
Lien for margin money for letter of credit issued 138.26 130.09

NOTE 14: CURRENT LOANS
Loans considered good -Unsecured

Loan to employees 3.31 2.27 
Total 3.31 2.27 

NOTE 15: OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security deposits 0.00 0.58 
Interest accrued on deposits 9.53 4.98 
Other financial assets 0.24 0.16 
Total 9.77 5.72 

NOTE 16: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good

Advances to suppliers 61.31 48.39 
GST input credit receivable 26.07 0.00 
Duty drawback receivable 2.24 0.45 
Export benefits in Duty Credit Scrips receivable 3.02 33.99 
Prepaid expenses 38.18 38.40 
Other receivables 1.54 1.88 

Total 132.36 123.11 
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount

NOTE 17: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
Equity shares of ` 10/- each 15000000 1500.00 15000000 1500.00 
Total 1500.00 1500.00 
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up 11160000 1116.00 11160000 1116.00 
Less: calls in arrears by others 0.09 0.09 
Total 1115.91 1115.91 

a. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars Numbers Amount Numbers Amount

At the beginning of the year 11160000 1116.00 11160000 1116.00

At the end of the year 11160000 1116.00 11160000 1116.00

b. The company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10/- per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The 
dividend proposed by the board of directors is subiect to the approval of shareholders, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity 
shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

c. Shareholders holding more than 5% of share capital at the end of the year :

Name of shareholders Numbers % of Holding Numbers % of Holding

1 Shri Kishore Chand Talwar 5325446 47.72 5325446 47.72

2 Smt. Sharda Talwar 1926400 17.26 1926400 17.26

3 Smt. Sangeetha S 585000 5.24 587804 5.27

d. Shareholding of promoters
 Share held by promoters as at 31st March 2022

Sr. 
No

Promoters name No. of Shares % of total shares % Change during the 
year

1 Shri Kishore Chand Talwar 5325446 47.72 0.00

2 Smt. Sharda Talwar 1926400 17.26 0.00

3 Nainy Kunal Tanna 362200 3.25 0.00

4 Kundan Talwar 180000 1.61 0.00

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

NOTE 18: OTHER EQUITY
Securities Premium Reserve

Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 292.28 292.28 

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 2816.49 2507.34 

Add : Profit (loss) after tax for the year 921.91 309.15 

Balance at the end of the year 3738.40 2816.49 

Other Comprehensive income 

Balance at the beginning of the year 4.18 0.63 

Add / (Less): Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges reclssified 0.00 (2.07)

Add: Movement in OCI (Net) during the year (1.64) 5.62 

Balance at the end of the year 2.54 4.18 

Total 4033.22 3112.95 
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

NOTE 19: NON-CURRENT BORROwINGS

Secured loans:

Term loans

From banks 50.15 0.00 

Unsecured loans:

Term loans

Suppliers credit in foreign currency from banks 0.00 151.72 

Total 50.15 151.72 

a)  Secured Loans:

 (I) Terms of repayment of vehicle loan from HDFC Bank Ltd.
 Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank was sanctioned on 25th August 2021 at an interest rate of 7.10 % p.a. repayable in 60 monthly installments of ` 138118/-  

commencing from 5th September 2021. As on reporting date, It carries an interest rate of 7.10% p.a, and repayable in 53 monthly installement of ` 138118/- 
each from the reporting date.

 (II) Nature of security:
  Vehicle loan from HDFC Bank is secured by hypothecation of specific vehicle acquired from the loan.

b) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and other borrowings and payment of interest thereon.

c) The Company has utilized the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was taken.

NOTE 20: NON-CURRENT LEASE LIABILITIES
Lease liability 764.32 10.09 
Total 764.32 10.09 

NOTE 21: NON-CURRENT OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Security deposits 0.00 3.10
Total 0.00 3.10 

NOTE 22: NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS
Provision for employees benefits (Refer note 42) 21.18 21.69
Total 21.18 21.69 

NOTE 23: INCOME TAX
A) The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at Indian statutory income tax rate to income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss is as 

follows:
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Profit before Tax 1,233.30  429.63 

Enacted tax rate 25.168% 25.168%

Expected income tax expense at statutory income tax rate 310.40 108.13 

Tax on Income exempt from tax/Items not deductible (net) 4.03 12.66 

Adjustment for deferred tax of prior periods (3.55) 0.00 

Tax in respect of earlier years 0.51 (0.31)

Tax expense as reported 311.39 120.48 

B) Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021

Deferred tax liabilities 151.04 116.19 

Deferred tax assets 12.69 7.05 

Total 138.35 109.14 
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)
NOTE 23: INCOME TAX (Contd.)
 The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

Particulars
As at 31.03.2020  

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities/(Asset)

"Charge/(Credit) 
in statement of 

Profit and Loss"

As at 31.03.2021  
Deferred Tax 

Liabilities/(Asset)

"Charge/(Credit) 
in statement of 

Profit and Loss"

As at 31.03.2022  
Deferred Tax 

Liabilities/(Asset)
Depreciation 116.13 0.06 116.19 34.78 150.97 
Income Taxable in the year of realisation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.07 0.07 
Expenses allowed in the year of payment (8.81) 1.76 (7.05) (5.64) (12.69)
Other 0.09 (0.09) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 Note: Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the provision for dimunition in the value of investment, in absence of convincing evidence that 
future taxable profit (capital gain) will be available against which the Company can use these assets.

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
NOTE 24: CURRENT BORROwINGS
Secured loans:
Working capital loans

From a bank 0.00 0.00 
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note 19) 12.53 0.00 
Unsecured loans:
Suppliers credit in foreign currency

From banks 412.08 398.07 
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note 19) 156.06 0.00 
Total 580.67 398.07 

a) Secured Loans:
 I Nature of security:

Working capital loans from HDFC Bank Limited are : 

(a) primarily secured by hypothecation of stocks, book debts and plant & machineries of the company ;

(b) further secured by way of equitable mortgage of land and building at Plot No. 92-D  Government Industrial  Estate, Charkop, Kandivli (W), Mumbai  
400067;

(c) further collaterally secured by way of equitable mortgage of a plot of land at Survey No. 62, 74, 75, 20 Village Devdal (Sagpada), Kaman, Vasai (E), 
Palghar 401202 belonging to Shri Kundan Talwar and factory building constructed thereon by the Company; and

(d) also personally guaranteed by Chairman & Managing Director, Wholetime Director and two relatives of the Chairman & Managing Director of the 
Company i.e Shri Kundan Talwar and Smt. Sharda Talwar.

II The Compnay has borrowed money from bank on the basis of security of current assets and the quarterly statements of current aseets filed by the 
Company with the Bank are materially in agreement with the books of accounts.

b) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and other borrowings and payment of interest thereon.

c) The Company has utilized the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was taken.

NOTE 25: CURRENT LEASE LIABILITIES
Current maturities of leased liability 19.14 0.25 
Total 19.14 0.25 

NOTE 26: TRADE PAYABLES
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(Refer note 48)

0.00 41.03 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises*

454.95 430.15 

Total 454.95 471.18 
* Other trade payables include acceptances 0.00 0.00 

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March 2021

Particulars Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 

year
 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 

years 
Total

i) Undisputed Trade Payables -MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
39.61 1.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 41.03

ii) Undisputed Trade Payables - Others 365.09 89.77 0.09 0.00 0.00 454.95
283.05 138.89 7.40 0.00 0.81 430.15

Total 365.09 89.77 0.09 0.00 0.00 454.95
322.65 140.31 7.40 0.00 0.81 471.18

Figures in italics represents the figures for previous year
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

NOTE 27: OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Interest accrued but not due 1.83 3.52 
Security deposits 7.00 0.00 
Creditors for capital expenditure* 2.92 0.12 

Accrued expenses 62.29 57.34 
Total 74.04 60.98 
*Includes micro and small enterprises (Refer note 48) 0.00 0.00 

NOTE 28: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advances from customers 116.26 99.01 

Deferred Revenue 0.00 0.71 

Statutory dues 25.32 39.04 

Total 141.58 138.76 

NOTE 29: CURRENT PROVISIONS

Provision for employees benefits (Refer note 42) 10.53 4.03 

Total 10.53 4.03 

NOTE 30: CURRENT INCOME-TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Provision for current tax (Net of advance tax ` 275.72 lakhs P.Y. 
` 104.19 lakhs)

5.40 16.07 

Total 5.40 16.07 

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2022 For the year ended 31.03.2021

NOTE 31: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of products 7100.38 4998.61 

Other operating revenue

Scrap sales 0.00 3.11 

Export incentives 6.78 14.57 

6.78 17.68 

Total 7107.16 5016.29 

Sale of products (Categories wise)

Instrument cooling fans 4473.25 3208.66

Shaded pole motors 2362.25 1644.34

Components 264.88 145.61

Sale of Products (Geography wise)
Domestic 5583.60 4035.14 

Export 1516.78 963.47 

Revenue based on timing of recognition
Revenue recognition at a point in time 7100.38 4998.61

Revenue recognition over period of time 0.00 0.00

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price
Contract price 7105.58 5004.98

Less: Discount 0.00 0.00

Less: Sales return 5.20 6.37

Revenue from operations 7100.38 4998.61
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2022 For the year ended 31.03.2021
NOTE 32: OTHER INCOME
Interest Income :

On fixed deposits with banks 54.54 22.26 
On security deposits 0.55 0.60 
On staff loans 0.84 0.32 
On subsidiary loans 2.17 1.09 
On delay payment by customers 0.09 2.97 

58.19 27.24
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) 0.00 20.29
Profit on sale of investments 1.28 0.00
Gain/(Loss) on investments carried at fair value through Profit & Loss 0.32 1.82
Gain/(Loss) on investments carried at amortised cost 3.58 4.71
Rental Income (Refer note 47) 19.67 20.30
Insurance claim received 1.56 0.00
Allowances for impairment in value of investment in debentures  no longer required 9.78 0.00
Dividend received 0.00 0.00
Net gain on exchange rate fluctuations 15.03 31.47
Total 109.41 105.83 

NOTE 33: COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED*
(Raw materials and components including packing materials)
Opening stock 1091.14 1479.25 

Add : Cost of purchases 4187.68 2339.36 
Less: Closing stock 1308.07 1091.14 
Total 3970.75 2727.47 
*Cost of materials consumed

Aluminium ingots 711.34 530.89 
Aluminium sheets 49.55 49.38 
Ball bearings 75.31 55.48 
Brass Insert 234.02 26.99 
Copper wires 666.35 514.49 
Plastic powders 389.65 210.53 
Rotor lamination 179.51 125.43 
Stator lamination 489.64 373.21 
Others 1175.38 841.07 

NOTE 34: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND wORK IN PROGRESS

Opening stocks:

Finished goods 144.77 260.45

Work in progress 441.91 418.21

586.68 678.66 

Less:Closing stocks:

Finished goods 59.18 144.77

Work in progress 433.18 441.91

492.36 586.68 

Total 94.32 91.98 

NOTE 35: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and wages 466.32 383.55 
Contribution to provident and other funds 13.13 7.24 
Staff welfare expenses 48.28 40.57 
Total 527.73 431.36 
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2022 For the year ended 31.03.2021

NOTE 36: FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on:

Borrowings 7.43 19.27 

Lease liability 33.41 0.97 

Others 5.18 11.51 

Other Borrowing Costs 21.77 29.82 

Net loss(gain) on foreign currency transactions 20.88 3.54 

Total 88.67 65.11 

NOTE 37: OTHER EXPENSES
Manufacturing expenses

Consumption of stores and spares 31.52 27.62 
Processing and labour charges 730.28 621.43 
Power and fuel 163.87 145.88 
Repairs to :

factory buildings 6.86 7.35
machineries 22.05 11.53
mould & dies 13.19 7.95
others 19.55 61.65 7.06 33.89 

Inward transportation and freight 3.13 2.35 
Administrative and other expenses

Auditors' remuneration (Refer note 41) 9.94 9.63 
Communication expenses 8.60 7.75 
Directors' sitting fees 2.00 1.40 
Electricity expenses 4.52 3.78 
Insurance 9.75 11.22 
Loss on sale of property plant and equipments 26.71 0.00 
Professional charges 20.19 13.27 
Repairs and maintenance 14.82 14.81 
Rates and taxes 10.90 14.87 
Travelling and conveyance 51.66 33.97 
Contribution for CSR Expenditure 11.00 11.00 
Miscellaneous expenses 73.32 44.30 

Selling and distribution expenses
Advertisement and business promotion 13.44 5.99 
Commission and brokerage 0.00 1.70 
Outward transportation and freight 8.70 13.18 

Total 1256.00 1018.04 

2020-2021 2019-2020

NOTE 38: EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Local Body Tax for earlier years  (Refer note 51(a)) 0.00 162.96 

Allowance for impairment in value of investment in debentures (Refer note 10 and 51(b)) 0.00 34.65 

Profit on sale of industrial premises (Refer note 51(c)) (138.18) 0.00 

Total (138.18) 197.61 

2021-2022 2020-2021

NOTE 39: EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE

Net profit / (loss) after tax ` in Lakhs 921.91 309.15

Weighted average number of shares  Numbers in Lakhs 111.60 111.60

Basic earnings per share ` 8.26 2.77

Diluted earnings per share ` 8.26 2.77
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
NOTE 40: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)
(i) Contingent liabilities:

(a) Letter of credit issued by the bankers of the company 343.90 15.95
(b) Bonds/Undertakings given under duty exemption under advance licence scheme pending fulfilment of export obligation. 920.00 1100.00
(c) Bonds/Undertakings given under duty exemption under EPCG licence scheme pending fulfilment of export obligation. 32.00 32.00

(ii) Contingent commitments
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances). 990.00 16.53

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
2021-22 2020-21

NOTE 41: PAYMENT TO AUDITORS*
Statutory audit fees 3.50 3.50
Tax audit fees 3.50 3.50
GST audit fees 0.00 0.80
Certification work 2.63 1.55
Out of pocket expenses 0.31 0.28

9.94 9.63
*excluding GST wherever input tax credit taken

NOTE 42: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
The disclosures required under Indian Accounting Standard 19 “Employee Benefits” are given below:

(a) Defined contribution plan
 The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund, which 

is a defined contribution plan. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss as they accrue.

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
2021-22 2020-21

Contribution to defined contribution plan recognised, charged off for the year, are as under:
Employer's contribution to provident fund 9.93 5.15

(b) Defined benefit plan:
 Gratuity :
 The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are 

eligible to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, based on the rate of wages last 
drawn by the employee.

 The employee’s gratuity scheme is non -fund based. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up 
the final obligation.

 Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the details of the employee benefit obligation as at balance sheet date.

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
2021-22 2020-21

I) Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation 
Present value of defined benefit obligation at start of year 25.72 32.81 
Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 2.93 2.38 
Interest cost 1.69 2.09 
Benefits paid 0.82 4.05 
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income -Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations 
Remeasurements - due to demographic assumptions 0.00 0.00 
Remeasurements - due to financial assumptions (0.95) 0.29 
Remeasurements - due to experience adjustments 3.14 (7.80)
Past service cost 0.00 0.00 
Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of the year* 31.71 25.72 

II) Net liability / (asset) recognised in the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 31.71 25.72 
Fair value of plan assets 0.00 0.00 
Net liability / (asset) 31.71 25.72 
Effect of asset ceiling / onerous liabilities 0.00 0.00 
Liability / (asset) recognised in the balance sheet 31.71 25.72 
Of which short term defined benefit obligation at end of the year 10.53 4.03 
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)
2021-22 2020-21

III) Expenses recognized during the year 
Current service cost 2.93 2.38 
Interest cost 1.69 2.09 
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of profit and loss 4.62 4.47 
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans-Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations 2.19 (7.51)
Defined benefit cost included in Other Comprehensive Income 2.19 (7.51)
Total defined benefit recognized in Statement of profit & loss and Other Comprehensive Income 6.81 (3.04)

IV) Actuarial assumptions
Salary growth rate 4.00% 4.00%
Discount rate 7.13% 6.70%
Withdrawal rate 1% to 3% 1% to 3%
Mortality Rate (as % of IALM 2012-14 Ult. Mortality Table) 100% 100%
Normal retairement age 58 years 58 years
Adjusted average future service 13 years 12 years

V) Bifurcation of present value of defined benefit obligations
Current liabilities 10.53 4.03 
Non current liabilities 21.18 21.69 
Total 31.71 25.72 

VI) Sensitivity Analysiss
 Discount Rate, Salary Escalation Rate and Withdrawal Rate are significant actuarial assumptions. The change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit 

Obligation for a change of 100 Basis Points from the assumed assumption is given below:

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Assumption Change in 
assumption

Denfined benfit 
obligations as 
on 31.03.2022

% Change
Denfined benfit 
obligations as 
on 31.03.2021

% Change

Salary rate Increase by 1% 34.32 8.3% 28.13 9.4%

Decrease by 1% 29.44 -7.1% 23.63 -8.1%

Withdrawal rate Increase by 1% 32.31 1.9% 26.20 1.9%

Decrease by 1% 31.01 -2.2% 25.15 -2.2%

Discount rate Increase by 1% 29.73 -6.2% 23.85 -7.3%

Decrease by 1% 34.03 7.3% 27.92 8.6%

VII) The Company’s philosophy is to not to externally fund these liabilities but instead create an accounting provisions in its books of accounts and pay the 
gratuity to its employees directly from its own resources as and when the employee leaves the Company. The expected contribution payable to the plan 
next year is therefore Nil. If the Company opts for externally fund these liabilities in the next year, the best estimate contribution for the Company during 
the next year would be ` 15.85 Lakhs. (Previous year ` 12.86 Lakhs)

VIII) The expected maturity profile of defined benefit obligations is as follows:
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars Up to 1 year Between 1-2 years Between 2-5 years Between 5-10 years
31.03.2022 10.53 1.85 4.61 10.66 

31.03.2021 4.03 4.14 4.13 9.70 

The weighted average duration of the above defined benefit obligation is 13.55 years (31.03.2021 - 14.39 years)

IX) Discontinuance Liability: Amount payable upon discontinuance of all employment is ` 39.25 Lakhs (31.03.2021 - ` 32.26 Lakhs)

NOTE 43: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain  creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. 
Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. The board of directors seeks to maintain a balance between the 
higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘net debt’ to ‘equity’. For this purpose, net debt is defined as total borrowings less cash & cash equivalents, bank deposit 
(including earmarked balances) and current investments.
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The table below summarises the capital, net debt and net debt to equity ratio of the Company.

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
2021-22 2020-21

Equity share capital 1115.91 1115.91 
Other equity 4033.22 3112.95 
Total Equity (A) 5149.13 4228.86 
Non-current borrowings 50.15 151.72 
Current borrowings 580.67 398.07 
Lease liabilities (Non-current and current) 783.46 10.34 
Gross Debt (B) 1414.28 560.13 
Gross Debt as above 1414.28 560.13 
Less: Current investments 82.63 178.14 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 145.40 352.99 
Less: Bank deposits (including earmarked balances) 1400.00 515.00 
Net Debt (C) (213.75) (486.00)
Net debt to equity (0.04) (0.11)

NOTE 44: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK REVIEw
A) Financial Instruments

 Fair value measurement hierarchy
 The fair value of financial instruments as below have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy 

gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs 
(Level 3 measurements).

 The categories used are as follows
 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets:  This level of hierarchy includes financial assets or liabilities that are measured by reference to quoted 

prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of mutual fund and equity investments.
 Level 2: Valuation techniques with observable inputs: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted 

prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category 
includes the derivatives financial assets designated as hedges.

 Level 3: Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that 
are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions 
that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

 The following tables presents the carrying value and Fair value measurement hierarchy of each category of financial assets and liabilities 
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Carrying 
Amount

Fair Value - 
Level 1

Fair Value - 
Level 2

Carrying 
Amount

Fair Value - 
Level 1

Fair Value - 
Level 2

Financial Assets
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss
Investments* 76.38 76.38 0.00 151.89 151.89 0.00 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Investments* 6.25 0.00 0.00 26.25 0.00 0.00 
Trade receivables 278.94 0.00 0.00 255.07 0.00 0.00 
Cash and cash equivalents 145.40 0.00 0.00 352.99 0.00 0.00 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1400.00 0.00 0.00 515.00 0.00 0.00 
Loans 36.16 0.00 0.00 26.99 0.00 0.00 
Other financial assets 25.32 0.00 0.00 21.65 0.00 0.00 

1968.45 76.38 0.00 1349.84 151.89 0.00 
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 630.82 0.00 0.00 549.79 0.00 0.00 
Lease liabilities 783.46 0.00 0.00 10.34 0.00 0.00 
Trade payables 454.95 0.00 0.00 471.18 0.00 0.00 
Other financial liabilities 74.04 0.00 0.00 64.08 0.00 0.00 

1943.27 0.00 0.00 1095.39 0.00 0.00 
 * Excludes financial assets measured at Cost
 There have been no financial assets and financial liabilities which has been fair valued under level 3 category therefore no details for the same given in the table 

above.
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 Valuation
 The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent.

 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at Balance Sheet date: 
(i) Current financial assets and liabilities are stated at carrying value which is approximately equal to their fair value.

(ii) The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (‘NAV’) as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the 
published statements as at Balance Sheet date.

(iii) Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation 
technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that 
the Company could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting 
dates may be different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.

B) Financial Risk Management Framework
 The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely credit risk, liquidity risk and  market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk). 

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk management framework. 
The Board of Directors which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The Company’s risk management policies 
are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically review the changes in 
market conditions and reflect the changes in the policy accordingly. The key risks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Audit Committee and Board of 
Directors of the Company.

 i) Credit Risk
 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations. Financial instruments that are 

subject to credit risk principally consist of trade receivables, investments, loans, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks and other financial 
assets. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material credit risk.

 Credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited as the Company has a policy of dealing only with credit worthy customers. All trade receivables 
are reviewed and assessed for default on a quarterly basis. Our historical experience of collecting receivables is that credit risk is very low. Hence, trade 
receivables are considered to be a single class of financial assets.

 Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances with bank is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks. Investments 
primarily include investment in liquid mutual fund units. The Company reviews credit worthiness of the counter parties to whom security depoits and loans 
given. The managements belives that there is no credit risk lies with the security deposits given and loans to employees.

 The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

 ii) Liquidity risk
 Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient 

liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.The Company’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have 
sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both normal and stressed 
conditions.The Company maintained a cautious liquidity strategy, with a positive cash balance throughout the year ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 
2021. Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to service the financial liabilities on a day-to-day basis. The Company has obtained fund and 
non-fund based working capital lines from banks. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and in mutual funds, which carry no or low 
market risk.

 The following table shows a maturity analysis of the anticipated cash flows including interest obligations for the Company’s financial liabilities. Cash flows in 
foreign currencies are translated using the period end spot rates.

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Carring Value 0-1 years 1-3 years above 3 years Carring Value 0-1 years 1-3 years above 3 years

Borrowings 630.82 580.67 27.88 22.27 549.79 398.07 151.72 0.00 

Lease liabilities 783.46 19.14 43.42 720.90 10.34 0.25 0.57 9.52 

Trade payables 454.95 454.95 0.00 0.00 471.18 471.18 0.00 0.00 

Other financial liabilities 74.04 74.04 0.00 0.00 64.08 60.98 3.10 0.00 

Total 1943.27 1128.80 71.30 743.17 1095.39 930.48 155.39 9.52 

 iii) Market Risk
 Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company’s income 

or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency 
receivables and payables and long-term debt. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimising the return.

  a) Currency Risk
 The Company is subject to the risk that changes in foreign currency values impacting the Company’s exports revenue and imports of raw material and 

property, plant and equipment. The risk also includes highly probable foreign currency cash flows.The objective of the cash flow hedges is to minimise 
the volatility of the ` cash flows of highly probable forecast transaction. It hedges its foreign exchange risk using foreign exchange forward contracts 
and currency options wherever considered. As at 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021, the net unhedged exposure to the Company on holding 
assets (trade receivables, advance to suppliers and capital advances) and liabilities (trade payables, advance from customers, borrowing and accured 
interest) other than in their functional currency  is as under.

 The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from US Dollar.
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(Amount in Lakhs)

As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

USD ` USD `

Receivables 0.73 55.55 0.70 50.85

Less: Hedged through derivatives-currency options 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net unhedged exposure to foreign currency (assets) 0.73 55.55 0.70 50.85

Payables 8.95 686.14 8.68 646.52

Net unhedged exposure to foreign currency (liabilities) 8.95 686.14 8.68 646.52

Net unhedged exposure to foreign currency (8.22) (630.59) (7.98) (595.67)

 Sensitivity analysis of 1% change in exchange rate at the end of reporting period net unhedged exposure
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
1% Depreciation in INR
Impact on Statement of profit and loss (6.31) (5.96)
1% Appreciation in INR
Impact on Statement of profit and loss 6.31 5.96 

  b) Interest Rate Risk
 Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any movement in the reference rates could have 

an impact on the Company’s cash flows as well as costs. The Company is subject to variable interest rates on some of its interest bearing liabilities. 
The Company’s interest rate exposure is mainly related to borrowing obligations.

 The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial liabilities is as follows.

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Long term borrowing-floating rate instruments 0.00 151.72 

Long term borrowing-fixed rate instruments 62.68 0.00 

Short term borrowing-fixed rate instruments 568.15 398.07 

630.83 549.79 

   Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
 The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since 

neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

   Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
 Impact on Interest Expenses for the year on 1% change in Interest rate (Amount in ` Lakhs)

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
1% Increase in interest rates
Impact on Statement of profit and loss 0.00 (0.66)
1% Decrease in interest rates
Impact on Statement of profit and loss 0.00 0.66 

NOTE 45: SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company is predominantly engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of Instrument cooling fans/ motors. The company is presenting its Consolidated 
financial statements which is form parts of this report. In terms of para 4 of  Ind AS 108 “Segment Reporting “ no disclosures related to segments are required in 
Standalone financial statements.

NOTE 46: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

I)  Names of related parties and description of relationships
a) Enterprises over which exercising control
 Rexnord Enterprise Pvt Ltd 
b) Persons owning directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives him significant influence over the Company.
 Shri Kishore Chand Talwar
c) Key management personnel :
 Executive directors
  Shri Kishore Chand Talwar (Chairman & Managing Director)
  Smt. Nainy K. Tanna (Wholetime Director)
 Non-executive directors (Independent directors)
  Shri Ayyaswami Sundram
  Shri Krishnamoorthy Krishnan 
  Shri Sriram Shrinivasan 
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d) Relatives of persons referred in b) and c) above
 Smt. Sharda Talwar (Wife of Chairman and Managing Director of the company)
 Shri Kundan Talwar (Son of Chairman and Managing Director of the company)
 Smt. Ramandeep Talwar (Daughter in law of Chairman and Managing Director of the company)
 Shri Kunal Tanna (Spouse of Smt. Nainy K. Tanna, Wholetime Director of the company)

e) Enterprises over which any person described in (d ) above is able to exercise significant influence.
 Excelum Enterprises (A proprietary concern of Shri Kunal Tanna)

II) Transactions during the year and balances outstanding as at year end with the related parties are as follows:
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Parties 

mentioned in  
I (a)

Parties  
mentioned in  

I (b) & (c)

Parties 
mentioned in  

I (d)

Parties 
mentioned in  

I (e)
Total

Sales including taxes 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
(0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (1.73) (1.73)

Interest Income 2.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.17 
(1.09) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (1.09)

Director’s Remuneration (including commission if any) 0.00 220.89 0.00 0.00 220.89 
(0.00) (186.32) (0.00) (0.00) (186.32)

Director sitting fees 0.00 2.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 
(0.00) (1.40) (0.00) (0.00) (1.40)

Salary 0.00 0.00 85.50 0.00 85.50 
(0.00) (0.00) (82.28) (0.00) (82.28)

Lease rentals 0.00 0.00 33.41 0.00 33.41 
(0.00) (0.00) (0.97) (0.00) (0.97)

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by others 0.00 10.59 0.00 0.00 10.59 
(0.00) (5.98) (0.00) (0.00) (5.98)

Recovery of expenses incurred for others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
(0.00) (0.19) (0.00) (0.00) (0.19)

Lease liability paid 0.00 0.00 16.09 0.00 16.09 
(0.00) (0.00) (0.23) (0.00) (0.23)

Loan given 5.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.00 
(35.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (35.00)

Loan refund received 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
(12.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (12.00)

Unsecured loan taken 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
(0.00) (65.10) (0.00) (0.00) (65.10)

Unsecured loan repaid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
(0.00) (168.10) (0.00) (0.00) (168.10)

Lease modifications* 0.00 0.00 789.21 0.00 789.21 
(0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00) 0.00 

Outstanding Balances
Investments 200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 

(200.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (200.00)
Loan given 28.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 28.00 

(23.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (23.00)
Unsecured loan taken 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 (103.00) (0.00) (0.00) (103.00)
Director’s Remuneration/Commission Payable 0.00 18.70 0.00 0.00 18.70 

(0.00) (10.98) (0.00) (0.00) (10.98)
Salary Payable 0.00 0.00 4.15 0.00 4.15 

(0.00) (0.00) (4.61) (0.00) (4.61)
Lease rentals payable 0.00 0.00 783.46 0.00 783.46 

(0.00) (0.00) (10.34) (0.00) (10.34)
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by others 0.00 0.95 0.00 0.00 0.95 

(0.00) (0.34) (0.00) (0.00) (0.34)
 Note:
 1) Related party relationship is identified by the Company and relied upon by the auditors.
 2) Figure in the brackets pertains to previous year.
 3)  Personal guarantee of the Chairman & Managing Director, Wholetime Director and two relatives of the Chairman & Managing Director namely Smt. Sharda 

Talwar and Shri Kundan Talwar has been provided for the facilities sanctioned to the Company- Refer Note 19 and Note 24.    
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 Details of transactions with individual related parties are as under

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Sales including taxes
Excelum Enterprises 0.00 1.73 
Interest Income
Rexnord Enterprise Pvt Ltd 2.17 1.09 
Director's Remuneration (including commission if any)
Shri Kishore Chand Talwar 165.92 133.45 
Smt. Nainy K. Tanna 54.97 52.87 
Director sitting fees
Shri Ayyaswami Sundaram 0.60 0.40 
Krishnamoorthy Krishnan 0.70 0.50 
Sriram Shrinivasan 0.70 0.50 
Salary
Shri Kundan Talwar 48.00 46.07 
Smt. Sharda Talwar 27.90 26.89 
Smt. Ramandeep Talwar 9.60 9.32 
Interest on lease liability 
Shri Kundan Talwar 33.41 0.97 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by others
Smt. Nainy K. Tanna 9.19 4.98 
Sriram Shrinivasan 0.70 0.50 
Krishnamoorthy Krishnan 0.70 0.50 
Recovery of expenses incurred for others
Shri Ayyaswami Sundaram 0.00 0.19 
Lease liability paid
Shri Kundan Talwar 16.09 0.23 
Loan given
Rexnord Enterprise Pvt Ltd 5.00 35.00 
Loan refund received
Rexnord Enterprise Pvt Ltd 0.00 12.00 
Unsecured loan taken
Shri Kishore Chand Talwar 0.00 65.10 
Unsecured loan repaid
Shri Kishore Chand Talwar 0.00 168.10 
Lease modifications*
Shri Kundan Talwar 789.21 0.00 
Outstanding Balances
Investments
Rexnord Enterprise Pvt Ltd 200.00 200.00 
Loan given
Rexnord Enterprise Pvt Ltd 28.00 23.00 
Director's Remuneration Payable
Shri Kishore Chand Talwar 15.78 8.21 
Smt. Nainy K. Tanna 2.92 2.77 
Salary payable
Shri Kundan Talwar 1.81 2.42 
Smt. Sharda Talwar 1.65 1.50 
Smt. Ramandeep Talwar 0.69 0.69 
Lease liabilities
Shri Kundan Talwar 783.46 10.34 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by others
Smt. Nainy K. Tanna 0.95 0.34 

III) Compensation of Key management personnel 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Short-term benefits 220.17 185.69
Post employment benefits** 0.72 0.63
Sitting fees paid to independent director 2.00 1.40

222.89 187.72
* present value of lease payments for the remaining period of lease on modications of lease terms
** Post employment benefits do not include the gratuity as the partywise break is not available

IV) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:
 Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.
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NOTE 47: LEASES
The Company adopted Ind AS 116, ‘Lease’ effective from April 01, 2019, and has elected to apply this standard to its leases with modified retrospective approach 
with the cumulative effect, recognised at the date of initial application. Initial lease liability has been measured at present value of the remaining lease payments, and 
discounted at incremental borrowing rate of the Company as on April 01, 2019, with an equivalent amount for the right-of-use asset. In view of revised lease terms 
w.e.f. 1st September 2021 for leasehold land with the Lessor, the Company has remeasured the Lease liability at a revised discount rate and accordingly increased 
Lease liability ` 789.21 lakhs have correspondingly been adjusted to Right-of-use asset as additions.

a) As a lessee

Right-of-use assets
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Leasehold Land
Cost 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
At the beginning of the year 10.77 10.77
Additions on account of lease modifications 789.21 0.00
Deletions 0.00 0.00
At the close of the year 799.98 10.77
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At the beginning of the year 1.11 0.56
Depreciation 27.48 0.55
Impairment loss 0.00 0.00
Eliminated on deletions of assets 0.00 0.00
At the close of the year 28.59 1.11
Carrying amounts
At the beginning of the year 9.66 10.21
At the close of the year 771.39 9.66

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
Year ended 

March  
31, 2022

Year ended 
March  

31, 2021
Breakdown of lease expenses

Short-term lease expense 0.00 0.00
Total lease expense 0.00 0.00

Cash outflow on leases
Repayment of lease liabilities 16.09 0.23
Interest on lease liabilities 33.41 0.97
Short-term lease expense 0.00 0.00
Total cash outflow on leases 49.50 1.20

Movement in lease liability
Balance at the begning of the year 10.34 10.57
Additions on account of lease modifications 789.21 0.00
Interest on lease liabilities accrued during the year 33.41 0.97
Deletions 0.00 0.00
Payment of lease liabilities 49.50 1.20
Balance at the closing of the year 783.46 10.34

Maturity analysis of lease liability (Amount in ` Lakhs)
Total Lease 

Payable
Less than 1 year 1 and 5 years Over 5 years Weighted average 

effective interest 
rate %

March 31, 2022 Lease liabilities 783.46 19.14 97.22 667.10 8.37

b) As a lessor
 Operating Lease:
 Cancellable leases
 The Company has given its industrial galas and part of the premise under operating lease or on leave and licence basis. The agreement for the same is not non-

cancellable for a period of 11 months and is renewable at mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. The company has taken refundable interest free security 
deposits in accordance with the agreed terms. The rent received ` 07.35 lakhs (Previous year ` 02.43 lakhs) in accordance with the agreement is credited  to the 
statement of profit and loss for the year.

 Non-cancellable leases
 The Company has given its part of the premise under operating lease for the period of 5 years. The company has taken refundable interest free security deposit 

in accordance with the agreed terms. The lease rentals income for the year recognized in the Statement of profit and loss and future lease rental receivable as 
per the rentals stated in respective agreement are as follows:
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Lease rental recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 12.32 17.88

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease

Not later than one year 0.00 18.79

Later than one year and not later than five years 0.00 12.91

Later than five years 0.00 0.00

Total 0.00 31.70

NOTE 48: DISCLOSURE UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006
Based on the information available, there are certain vendors who have confirmed that they are registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 as micro and small enterprises. Disclosures as required by section 22 of ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, 
are given below:

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

SI. 
No. Particulars  As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021 

1 The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year
– principal amount 0.00 41.03 
– interest thereon 0.00 0.06 

2 The amount of interest paid in terms of section 16, along with the amount of the payment made to the 
suppliers beyond the appointed day:
– principal amount 0.00 240.65 
– interest thereon 0.00 0.00 

3 The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the act.

0.00 4.95 

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. 0.00 5.01 
5 The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 

when the interest dues about are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of this act.

0.00 5.01 

NOTE 49: CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

As per provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has to incur at least 2% of average net profits of the preceeding three financial years 
towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Accordingly, a CSR committee has been formed for carrying out CSR activities as per the Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Details of the CSR expenditure are as under:

Details of CSR expenditure:
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2022

Year ended 
31.03.2021

i. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 10.08 10.46
ii. Amount of expenditure incured
 Ongoing project  -  - 
 Other than ongoing projrct 11.00 11.00
iii. Shortfall at the end of the year  -  - 
iv. Total of previous years shortfall  -  - 
v. Reason for shortfall Not applicable Not applicable
vi. Nature of CSR activities Promotion of education which inter-alia 

includes creation of infrastructure and 
necessary facilities.

vii. Details of related party transactions  -  - 
viii Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the 

movement in the provision during the year shall be shown separately  -  -

NOTE 50: COVID IMPACT:
The Company’s operations for the quarter ended June 30, 2020 were suspended for part of the quarter on account of the lockdown announced by the Government 
of India consequent to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. The financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2022 are, therefore, not comparable with the 
financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2021.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
NOTE 51: EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS INCLUDE:
a) the provision made during the previous financial year for Local Body Tax (“LBT”) ` 162.97 lakhs consisting of tax liability ` 81.30 lakhs, Interest ` 81.32 lakhs and penalty 

` 0.35 lakhs assessed, for the financial years 2011-12, 2012-13, 2013-14, 2014-15 and for the period from April 2015 to July 2015 by the Deputy Commissioner, Vasai 
Virar City Mumnicipal Corporation on 5th February 2021. The Company provided for and paid the said LBT liability during the previous financial year after adjusting the 
payment made under protest of ` 109.97 lakhs during the financial year 2019-20.

b) the provision made for ` 34.64 lakhs for impairment in value of investment in debentures of Reliance Capital Limited and Reliance Securities Limited during the previous 
financial year.

c) the profit on sale of industrial premises at Vasai, Palghar (net of costs and transfer expenses) made during the year.

NOTE 52: CODE ON SOCIAL SECURITY 
The Parliament of India has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 (the Code) which may impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident fund, ESIC 
and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on November 13. 2020. Final rules are yet to be notified. The Company will 
assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record related impact, if any.
NOTE 53: Disclosure as per Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.
a) Loans outstanding from wholly owned subsidiary of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022:

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Name of the Company Debts outstanding as at 
March 31, 2022

Maximum balance 
outstanding during the year

Shares held by Loanee in 
the Company

Rexnord Enterprise Pvt Ltd 28.00 28.00 NIL
23.00 35.00 NIL

(i) The above loans have been given for business purpose.

(ii) Figures in italics represents comparative figures of previous year.

b) Details of investments made 
 The required details of Investments outstanding as on 31.03.2022 are given in note 4 and 10 to the financial statements. The investments made in subsidiary is to 

fund the long term working capital of the Subsidiary Company. Other investments were made with a view of cash management.
c) There are no outstanding debts from directors or other officers of the Company.
d) Loans to employees outstanding as on 31.03.2022 are given in note 5 and 14 to the financial statements.
NOTE 54: FINANCIAL RATIOS

Ratio Numerator Denominator FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 % variance Remarks for varience more than 
25%

Current ratio (in times) Current 
assets

Current Laibilities 3.00 2.76 8.70 Not applicable

Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 0.27 0.13 108.00 Increase in ratio due to increase in 
lease liability.

Debt Service Coverage ratio (in times) Earning 
before 
Interest, 
depreciation 
and Tax

Debt Service 10.66 2.12 403.00 Increase in ratio is due to increase 
in profit and also profit on sale of 
Industral premises.

Return on Equity ratio (%) Net profit 
after tax

Equity 0.20 0.08 150.00 Increase in ratio is due to increase 
in profit and also profit on sale of 
Industral premises.

Inventory turnover ratio (in times) Cost of 
Goods sold

Average Inventory 2.34 1.47 59.00 Increase in ratio is due to faster 
churning of inventory.

Trade receivables turnover ratio (in 
times)

Net Sales Average accounts 
receivables

26.62 8.92 198.00 Increase in ratio is due to lower 
receivable and increase in turnover.

Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) Purchase/
Services 
Utilised

Average accounts 
payables

11.76 4.71 150.00 Increase in ratio is due to faster 
churning of inventory.

Net capital turnover ratio (in times) Net Sales Working Capital 2.77 2.61 6.00 Not applicable

Net profit ratio (%) Net profit 
after tax

Net Sales 12.97% 6.16% 110.00 Increase in ratio is due to increase 
in profit and also profit on sale of 
Industral premises.

Return on Capital employed (%) Earning 
before 
Interest and 
Tax

Capital employed 19.73% 10.10% 95.00 Increase in ratio is due to increase 
in profit and also profit on sale of 
Industral premises.

Return on investment (%) Income 
generated 
from 
investments

Average 
Investments

1.57% 2.06% -24.00 Not applicable
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
NOTE 55: Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013:
(i) Investment property: The Company does not have any investment property, therefore the disclosure of fair value of invesmtent property  based on the valuation 

by a Registered Valuer is not applicable to the Company. 

(ii) Valuation of PP&E and intangible assets : The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets 
or both during the current or previous year.

(iii) Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties: The Company has not granted loans and advances 
in the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties either severally or jointly with any other person which is repayable on demand or 
without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) Details of Benami property: No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Prohibition of  
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder.

(v) Wilful Defaulter: The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or Government and any Government Authority. 

(vi) Relationship with Struck off Companies: The Company does not have any transaction/relationship with any struck off company 

(vii) Registration of Charges or Satisfaction with Registrar of Companies: The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered 
with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(viii) Compliance with number of layers of companies: The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(ix) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements: The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on 
current or previous financial year.

(x) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium: 
A. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the 

understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries), or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

B. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the 
Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries), or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(xi) Undisclosed income: There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(xii) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency: The Company has not traded or invested in any crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or 
previous year.

NOTE 56: Previous year figures have been regrouped, rearranged and recasted to make them comparable with the curent year figures

As per our attached report of even date

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited 
CIN: L31200MH1988PLC047946

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R. K. Soni

Kishore Chand Talwar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00351751

Nainy K. Tanna 
Wholetime Director 
DIN 00351762

Krishnamoorthy Krishnan
Director
DIN 08129657

Partner
Membership No. 047151

Kundan Talwar
Chief Financial Officer

Shweta Kalantri
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To

The Members of
REXNORD ELECTRONICS AND CONTROLS LIMITED
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited (“Holding Company”) and its 
subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the 
Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, 
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 
financial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give 
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of 
affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2022, of its consolidated profit (including 
consolidated other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and 
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were 
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matters to 
be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Appropriateness of revenue 
recognition on sale of goods.
Refer note 2.2 and Note 30 
of the consolidated financial 
statements.
The Group has revenue from 
sale of goods.
Revenue from sale of goods is 
recognised under IndAS 115- 
‘Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers’ at a point in time 
when the control has been 
transferred, which generally 
coincides with dispatch of 
products to customers in case 
of domestic sales and on the 
basis of bill of lading in the 
case of export sales. 
We determined this to be a key 
audit matter due to significant 
time and effort involved in 
assessing the appropriateness 
of revenue recognition and 
covering the aspects of 
completeness, accuracy, 
occurrence and cut off.

Our audit procedures relating to revenue 
recognition include the following:
a. Understood and performed procedures to 

assess the design and test the operating 
effectiveness of relevant controls related to 
recording of revenue.

b. Assessed whether the policy of 
recognising revenue was in line with Ind 
AS - 115.

c. Tested the reconciliation of the amounts 
as per the sales register to the general 
ledger.

d. Performed tests, on sample basis by 
validating the amounts recorded with the 
underlying documents which inter - alia 
includes invoices, dispatch documents, 
customer orders/ contracts, receipt of 
consideration from customers, where 
applicable.

e. Performed cut off testing, on sample basis 
and ensured that the revenue from sale 
of goods is recognised in the appropriate 
period.

Based on the above procedures performed, 
we did not identify any exceptions in revenue 
recognition on sale of goods.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and Auditor’s 
Report thereon 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the 
other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
Holding Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Holding Company’s annual report 
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes 
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the Holding Company’s annual report, if we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to 
those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as applicable under 
the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for 
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated 
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation 
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance (including 
consolidated other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity 
and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. The Holding Company’s Board of 
Directors is also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial 
information consider necessary for the preparation of consolidated financial 
statement. Further in term of the provision of the Act, the respective Board of 
Directors of the companies included in Group are responsible for maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of 
Directors of the companies included in the group are responsible for assessing 
the Group ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the companies 
included in the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of consolidated financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:

l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
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is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

l Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management.

l Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Group ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

l Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial 
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express 
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for 
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements of which we are the independent auditors. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that 
individually or in aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of Holding Company 
and such other entity included in consolidated financial statements of which we 
are independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) 
of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A“ a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable. 

2. (A)  As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent 
applicable, that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
relating to the preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books;

c) the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss (including consolidated other comprehensive 
income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of the consolidated financial 
statements;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014;

e) on the basis of written representations received from the 
directors of the Holding and Subsidiary Company as on 31 
March 2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the 
respective company, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31 March 2021, from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act; and

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of the Group and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
“Annexure B”.

(B) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules 2014, in our opinion and to our best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(a) The Group does not have any pending litigations which would 
impact its financial position; 

(b) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including 
derivatives contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses; 

(c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding 
and subsidiary Company; and

(d) i)  The management has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Holding Company or its Subsidiary Company to or in 
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

l directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the 
Holding Company or its Subsidiary Company or

l provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of 
its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received 
by the Holding Company or its Subsidiary Company 
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding 
Company or its Subsidiary Company shall:

l directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party or

l provide any guarantee, security or the like from or 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) 
contain any material misstatement.

(e) The Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company have not 
declared or paid any dividend during the year therefore, the 
provisions of Section 123 of the Act are not applicable. 

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with schedule V of the Act. 

For Rakesh Soni & Co.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R.K. Soni

Partner

Membership No. 047151

Place: Mumbai UDIN: 22047151 AJXLSP1677 

Dated: May 30, 2022
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT – 31st MARCH 2022
Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following company incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial 
statements, has certain remarks given in its report under the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (CARO):

Sr. 
No.

Name of the entity CIN Holding Company / Subsidiary 
Company

Clause number of CARO report 
which is unfavourable or qualified 

or adverse

1 Rexnord Electronics and Controls 
Limited

L31200MH1988PLC047946 Holding Company (i)(c)

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R.K. Soni
Partner

Membership No. 047151
Place: Mumbai UDIN: 22047151 AJXLSP1677 
Dated: May 30, 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT – 31st MARCH 2022
Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its 
Subsidiary Company (the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company 
together referred to as “the Group”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended on 
that date.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company have, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company and its 
Subsidiary Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(“the Guidance Note”) 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its Subsidiary 
Company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's and its 
Subsidiary Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and 
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s 
and its Subsidiary Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R.K. Soni
Partner

Membership No. 047151
Place: Mumbai UDIN: 22047151 AJXLSP1677 
Dated: May 30, 2022
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars Note As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3A 2540.52 2044.76
Right-of-use asset 3B 771.39 9.66
Intangible assets 3C 2.23 1.06
Financial assets

Loans 4 4.85 1.73
Other financial assets 5 15.55 115.93

Income tax assets (net) 6 0.00 0.04
Other non-current assets 7 113.02 329.80

Total non-current assets 3447.56 2502.98
Current assets

Inventories 8 1801.00 1678.84
Financial assets

Investments 9 82.63 178.14
Trade receivables 10 278.94 255.07
Cash and cash equivalents 11 146.44 355.11
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 1400.00 415.00
Loans 13 3.31 2.27
Other financial assets 14 9.77 5.72

Other current assets 15 132.36 123.44
Total current assets 3854.45 3013.59
TOTAL ASSETS 7302.01 5516.57

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital 16 1115.91 1115.91
Other equity 17 3925.09 3014.91

Total equity 5041.00 4130.82
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 18 50.15 151.72
Lease liabilities 19 764.32 10.09
Other financial liabilities 20 0.00 3.10

Provisions 21 21.18 21.69
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 22 138.35 109.14

Total non-current liabilities 974.00 295.74
Current liabililties

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 23 580.67 398.07
Lease liabilities 24 19.14 0.25
Trade payables 25
i)  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises
0.00 41.03

ii)  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

455.24 430.15

Other financial liabilities 26 74.39 61.57
Other current liabilities 27 141.64 138.84
Provisions 28 10.53 4.03
Income-tax liabilities (Net) 29 5.40 16.07

Total current liabilities 1287.01 1090.01
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7302.01 5516.57

Contingent liabilities and commitments  
(To the extent not provided for)

39

Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements 1 to 57

As per our attached report of even date

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited 
CIN: L31200MH1988PLC047946

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R. K. Soni

Kishore Chand Talwar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00351751

Nainy K. Tanna 
Wholetime Director 
DIN 00351762

Krishnamoorthy Krishnan
Director
DIN 08129657

Partner
Membership No. 047151

Kundan Talwar
Chief Financial Officer

Shweta Kalantri
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022
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As per our attached report of even date

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited 
CIN: L31200MH1988PLC047946

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R. K. Soni

Kishore Chand Talwar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00351751

Nainy K. Tanna 
Wholetime Director 
DIN 00351762

Krishnamoorthy Krishnan
Director
DIN 08129657

Partner
Membership No. 047151

Kundan Talwar
Chief Financial Officer

Shweta Kalantri
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars Note For the year ended 31.03.2022 For the year ended 31.03.2021
Income:
Revenue from operations 30 7107.16 5016.29 

Other income 31 107.65 104.74 

Total Income 7214.81 5121.03 

Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 32 3970.75 2727.47 

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 33 94.32 91.98 

Employee benefits expense 34 530.91 436.44 

Finance costs 35 88.67 65.12 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 187.60 164.29 

Other expenses 36 1257.53 1045.92 

Total expenses 6129.78 4531.22 

Profit before exceptional items and tax 1085.03 589.81 

Less: Exceptional items 37 (138.18) 197.61 

Profit before tax 1223.21 392.20 

Tax expense:

Current tax 281.12 120.26 

Deferred tax 29.76 0.53 

Tax adjustment for earlier years 0.51 (0.31)

311.39 120.48 

Profit for the year (A) 911.82 271.72 

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans (2.19) 7.51 

Income tax on above (0.55) 1.89 

Other comprehensive income for the year (B) (1.64) 5.62 

Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 910.18 277.34 

Net Profit attributable to:
a) Owners of the Company 911.82 271.72 
b) Non Controlling Interest 0.00 0.00 
Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:
a) Owners of the Company (1.64) 5.62 
b) Non Controlling Interest 0.00 0.00 
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
a) Owners of the Company 910.18 277.34 
b) Non Controlling Interest 0.00 0.00 
Earning per equity share 38

Basic `  8.17  2.43 

Diluted `  8.17  2.43 

Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements 1 to 57
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022
A. Equity Share Capital

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars Value

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. 1st April, 2021 1115.91

Changes during the year 0.00

Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. 31st March, 2022 1115.91

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. 1st April, 2020 1115.91

Changes during the year 0.00

Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. 31st March, 2021 1115.91

B. Other Equity
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive income Total

Securities 
Premium Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Remeasurements 
of the net defined 

benefit plans

Effective portion 
of gain (loss) on 

cash flow hedges

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. 1st 
April, 2021

292.28 2718.45 4.18 0.00 3014.91

Profit for the year 0.00 911.82 0.00 0.00 911.82

Other Comprehensive Income for the year* 0.00 0.00 (1.64) 0.00 (1.64)

Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. 31st 
March, 2022

292.28 3630.27 2.54 0.00 3925.09

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. 1st 
April, 2020

292.28 2446.73 (1.44) 2.07 2739.64

Profit for the year 0.00 271.72 0.00 0.00 271.72

Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges reclassified to Statement 
of Profit and Loss

0.00 0.00 0.00 (2.07) (2.07)

Other Comprehensive Income for the year* 0.00 0.00 5.62 0.00 5.62 

Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. 31st 
March, 2021

292.28 2718.45 4.18 0.00 3014.91

 * Net of taxes.

Nature of reserves
a) Securities Premium Reserve: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the 

provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to other reserve, dividends or other distributions paid 
to shareholders.

Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements 1 to 57

As per our attached report of even date

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited 
CIN: L31200MH1988PLC047946

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R. K. Soni

Kishore Chand Talwar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00351751

Nainy K. Tanna 
Wholetime Director 
DIN 00351762

Krishnamoorthy Krishnan
Director
DIN 08129657

Partner
Membership No. 047151

Kundan Talwar
Chief Financial Officer

Shweta Kalantri
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022



71

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOw STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2022 For the year ended 31.03.2021

A) CASH FLOwS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 1223.21 392.20 

Adjustments for 

Depreciation and amortization 187.60 164.30 

Allowance for doubtful debt/loans provided/written back (net) 0.00 0.00 

(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 
(net)

(111.48) (20.29)

Allowance for impairment in the value of investments no longer required (9.78) 34.65 

Unrealised exchange (gain)/ loss 14.59 3.58 

Net (gain)/loss on investments (5.19) (6.53)

Interest income (56.02) (26.15)

Dividend income 0.00 0.00 

Interest and other borrowing costs 67.79 61.58 

Operating profit before working capital changes     1310.72 603.34 

Adjustments for :

Trade receivables (23.87) 611.23 

Other receivables 203.09 43.27 

Inventories (122.15) 482.03 

Trade payables (15.93) (484.23)

Other payables 18.01 (9.77)

Cash generated from operations 1369.87 1245.87 

Direct taxes paid (292.25) (90.26)

Cash flow before extraordinary items 1077.62 1155.61 

Extraordinary items 0.00 0.00 

NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1077.62 1155.61 

B) CASH FLOwS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment including CWIP 185.26 170.13 

Purchase of property, plant & equipment including CWIP (728.94) (330.19)

Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 0.29 0.00 

Purchase of intangible assets (2.18) 0.00 

Proceeds from sale of investments 186.46 0.00 

Purchase of investments (76.00) (150.06)

Loan given to subsidiary 0.00 0.00 

Loan refund received from subsidiary 0.00 0.00 

(Increase)/ decrease in deposits 1.55 0.29 

(Increase)/ decrease in bank fixed deposits (885.00) (300.00)

Interest income 51.40 24.17 

Dividend income 0.00 0.00 

NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1267.16) (585.66)
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2022 For the year ended 31.03.2021

C) CASH FLOw FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term borrowings 70.00 0.00 

Repayment of long term borrowings (7.32) (187.43)

Proceeds from short term borrowings 879.94 990.97 

Repayment of short term borrowings (876.18) (1100.91)

Repayment of lease liability (16.09) (0.23)

Change in working capital borrowings from banks 0.00 0.00 

Interest and other borrowing costs (69.48) (64.23)

NET CASH FROM/ (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (19.13) (361.83)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (208.67) 208.12 

OPENING BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 355.11 146.99 

CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 146.44 355.11 

Notes :
1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 on “Statement of Cash Flow” notified 

u/s 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with relevant rules issued thereunder and the relevant provisions of the Act.
2. Change in liability arising from financing activities

Particulars Non-current borrowing Current borrowing

Balance as at 1st April 2020 342.81 501.89

Net cash flows (187.43) (109.94)

Effect of unrealised exchange gain/loss (3.66) 6.12 

Balance as at 31st March 2021 151.72 398.07

Balance as at 1st April 2021 151.72 398.07

Net cash flows 62.68 3.76 

Effect of unrealised exchange gain/loss 4.34 10.25 

Balance as at 31st March 2022 218.74 412.08

3. Refer Note no. 11 for details of cash and cash equivalents. 
4. All figures in brackets reflects cash outflow.
5. Figures of the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary.

Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements 1 to 57

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOw STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022 (Contd..)

As per our attached report of even date

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited 
CIN: L31200MH1988PLC047946

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R. K. Soni

Kishore Chand Talwar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00351751

Nainy K. Tanna 
Wholetime Director 
DIN 00351762

Krishnamoorthy Krishnan
Director
DIN 08129657

Partner
Membership No. 047151

Kundan Talwar
Chief Financial Officer

Shweta Kalantri
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022
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Notes to the consolisated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

Note 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise financial statements 
of Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited (“the Holding Company”) 
and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “the Group”) for the 
year ended 31st March 2022. The principal activity of the Group is 
manufacturer of instrument cooling fans & motors. 

Note 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1) BASIS OF PREPARATION

 A) Statement of Compliance
a) These financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred 
to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

b) The Consolidated Financial Statements comprises of the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary, being the entity that 
it controls. Controls are assessed in accordance with the 
requirement of Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements.

c) The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st 
March, 2022 were approved for issue in accordance with the 
resolution of the Board of Directors on 30th May, 2022.

 B) Principles of Consolidation
a) The financial statements of the Holding Company and 

its subsidiary are combined on a line by line basis 
by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, 
equity, incomes, expenses and cash flows, after fully 
eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group 
transactions.

b) Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions 
that are recognised in assets are eliminated in full.

c) Goodwill/ capital reserve, if any, represents the 
difference between the Holding Company’s share in 
the net worth of subsidiary and the cost of acquisition 
at each point of time of making the investment in the 
subsidiaries.

d) The Consolidated Financial Statements have been 
prepared using uniform accounting policies for like 
transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

e) The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in 
subsidiary is offset (eliminated) against the parent’s 
portion of equity in subsidiary. 

f) Non-Controlling Interest’s share of profit / loss of consolidated 
subsidiary for the year is identified and adjusted against the 
income of the Group in order to arrive at the net income 
attributable to shareholders of the Holding Company. 

g) Non-Controlling Interest’s share of net assets of consolidated 
subsidiary is identified and presented in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet.

 C) Basis of Measurement
 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost 

basis, except for the following:

l certain financial assets and liabilities (including 
derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value 
(refer accounting policy regarding Financial instruments 
and Derivatives and hedging activities);

l biological assets – measured at fair value less cost to 
sell; and

l defined benefit plans –present value of defined benefit 
obligation unless otherwise indicated.

 D) Functional and Presentation Currency
 These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, the 

functional currency of the Group. All amounts have been rounded-

off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated. Items included 
in the financial statements of the Group are recorded using the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Holding 
Company operates (the ‘functional currency’).

 E) Use of Estimates
a) The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind 

AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these 
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge 
of current events and actions, uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes 
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets or liabilities prospectively.

b) Information about critical judgments in applying accounting 
policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the 
most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year, are included in the 
following notes:

i) Measurement of defined benefit obligations - Note 41.

ii) Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions 
and contingencies - Note 21, 28 and 39

iii) Recognition of deferred tax liabilities - Note 22.

 F) Measurement of fair values
 The Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the 

measurement of fair values for, both financial assets and liabilities. 

 The Group has an established control framework with respect 
to the measurement of fair values. The management regularly 
reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. 
If third party information is used to measure fair values, then the 
management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties 
to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements 
of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such 
valuations should be classified.

 When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial 
liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. 
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value 
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 
follows. 

l Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities.

l Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in 
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived 
from prices).

l Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not 
based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs).

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability 
fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value 
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the 
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the 
entire measurement.

 Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair 
values is included in the Note 43.

2.2) REVENUE RECOGNITION
 The Group derives revenues primarily from sale of manufactured goods.

 Sale of products 
 Revenue from sale of products is recognised when control of the products 

has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the customer. 
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped or delivered 
to the specific location as the case may be, the risks of loss has been 
transferred, and either the customer has accepted the products in 
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Notes to the consolisated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

accordance with the sales contract, or the Group has objective evidence 
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Sale of products include 
related ancillary services, if any.

 The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period 
between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer 
and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it 
does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

 Other operating revenue - Export incentives
 The benefits, on account of entitlement to import duty free raw material 

under the Advance License Scheme in respect of goods already exported, 
are not valued and brought into the books in the year of export. The raw 
materials are recorded at cost at which they are procured in the year of 
import. 

 The benefits under MEIS/RODTEP Schemes and Duty Drawback Scheme 
are recognized when the exports are made. 

2.3) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 a) Short term employee benefits
 All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of 

rendering services are classified as short-term employee benefits. 
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is 
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid 
if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the 
obligation can be estimated reliably. 

 Short-term benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, ex gratia, 
short-term compensation absences, etc., are determined on an 
undiscounted basis and recognized in the period in which the 
employee renders the related service.

 b) Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

 Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans such as 
Provident Fund maintained with Regional Provident Fund Office is 
expensed as the related service is provided.

  Defined benefit plans
 The following post – employment benefit plans are covered under the 

defined benefit plans:

  l Gratuity 
 The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement 

plan covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a 
lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, 
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount 
based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of 
employment with the Group. The calculation of defined benefit 
obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using 
the projected unit credit method. 

 Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other 
comprehensive income.

 c) Other long-term employee benefits
Compensated absences

 The Group does not have any leave encashment policy. Further any 
unutilized leave at the end of the year is lapsed and not eligible for 
carry forward.

2.4) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSCLATION 
 Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency, 

by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the 
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

 Foreign currency monetary items (assets and liabilities) are restated using 
the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.

 Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary 
items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent 

of exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to finance 
costs on foreign currency borrowings that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of 
assets.

 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a 
foreign currency are recorded using the exchange rates at the date of 
the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the 
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition 
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation 
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or 
Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in OCI or Statement of 
Profit and Loss, respectively).

2.5) ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME
 Income tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and 

deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except 
to the extent it relates to a business combination or to an item which is 
recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year 
using applicable tax rates at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustment 
to taxes in respect of previous years. 

 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes 
and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

 A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of 
realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, 
using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the 
reporting period. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the 
asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting 
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the 
probability of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognized deferred tax 
assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which they can be used. 

 Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a 
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is 
an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred 
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally 
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; 
and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income 
taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

 MAT credit entitlement is recognized and carried forward only if there is a 
reasonable certainty of it being set off against regular tax payable within 
the stipulated statutory period.

2.6) PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
 Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost net of 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Cost comprises of purchase price and any attributable cost such as duties, 
freight, borrowing costs, erection and commissioning expenses incurred in 
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. If significant 
parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful 
lives, then they are accounted and depreciated for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or 
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs 
and maintenance are charged to the Statement of profit and loss during 
the period in which they are incurred.

 Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and 
equipment are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

 Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on 
the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.
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2.7) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
 Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, 

trade discount and rebates less accumulated amortization/depletion and 
impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing 
costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working 
condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts 
and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the 
intangible assets.

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or 
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity 
and the cost can be measured reliably.

 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are 
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

2.8) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
 Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Statement 

of Profit and Loss. Development costs of products are charged to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss unless a product’s technological 
and commercial feasibility has been established, in which case such 
expenditure is capitalized.

2.9) DEPRECIATION
 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on straight line 

method at the rates and in the manner specified in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. In the case of revalued assets, depreciation is 
calculated on straight line method on the revalued amounts as determined 
by the valuer. 

 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment added/disposed off/discarded 
during the period is provided on the pro-rata basis with reference to the 
date of addition/disposal/discarding.

 The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, 
plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate.

2.10) AMORTIZATION
 Intangible assets (Application Software) acquired by the Group are 

amortized on a straight -line basis over its useful life i.e. three years, as 
decided by the management.

 Right of use asset (Leasehold land) is amortized over the primary period of 
lease. 

 Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at 
each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.11) BORROwING COSTS
 Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency 

borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest 
cost. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such 
assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of 
time to get ready for its intended use.

 Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings 
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the 
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

 All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the period for which they are incurred.

2.12) LEASES

 As a lessee:
 The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease, at 

inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses 
whether: i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset ii) the Group 
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through 
the period of the lease and iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of 
the asset.

 At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements 
in which it is lessee, except for short-term leases (leases with a term of 
twelve months or less), leases of low value assets and, for contract where 
the lessee and lessor has right to terminate a lease without permission 
from the other party with no more than an insignificant penalty. The 
lease expense of such short-term leases, low value assets leases and 
cancellable leases, are recognized as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

 At commencement date, lease liability is measured at the present value 
of the lease payments to be paid during non-cancellable period of the 
contract, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. The right-of-
use assets is initially recognized at the amount of the initial measurement 
of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before 
commencement date less any lease incentives received and any initial 
direct costs.

 Subsequently the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any impairment losses. Lease liability is subsequently 
measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease 
liability (using effective interest rate method) and reducing the carrying 
amount to reflect the lease payments made. The right-of-use asset and 
lease liability are also adjusted to reflect any lease modifications or revised 
in-substance fixed lease payments.

 As a lessor:
 Leases for which the Group is a lessor is classified as finance or operating 

leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a 
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

 Income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognized as 
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are 
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate 
for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets 
are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet based on their nature. 
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group as a lessor 
has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards are classified as 
finance lease. Finance leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease 
at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of 
the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rent receivables, net of 
interest income, are included in other financial assets. Each lease receipt 
is allocated between the asset and interest income. The interest income 
is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss over the 
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the asset for each period.

2.13) PROVISION, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & CONTINGENT ASSETS
 Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation, as a 

result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made for the amount of the obligation.

 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are 
discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, the increase 
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arise from past events 
whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or 
a present obligation that is not recognised because it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will not be required to settle the obligation. However, 
if the possibility of outflow of resources, arising out of present obligation, is 
remote, it is not even disclosed as contingent liability. The Group does not 
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial 
statement.

 Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial 
statements.

2.14) IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
 At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its 

non-financial assets (other than deferred tax assets) to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the 
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asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets 
are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or Cash generating units (“CGU”). The recoverable 
amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash 
flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised if 
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss 
is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

2.15) EARNINGS PER SHARE
 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the 

period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted-average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted-average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all years 
presented is adjusted for events such as bonus issue; bonus element in 
a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split 
(consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares 
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or 
loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted-
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.16) INVENTORIES
 Inventories are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. 

Obsolete, defective and unserviceable stocks are provided for. Materials-in-
process are valued at raw material cost and estimated cost of conversion. 
Cost of finished goods includes conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition

 Cost of Inventories is computed on FIFO basis. Goods in transit, if any, are 
stated at actual cost incurred upto the date of balance sheet.

2.17) BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
 Biological assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell, with any 

change therein recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.18) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 I. FINANCIAL ASSETS
 A) Initial Recognition and Measurement

 Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets 
which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), 
its transaction cost is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 
In other cases, the transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition 
value of the financial asset. Trade receivables and debt securities 
are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial 
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

 B) Classification And Subsequent Measurement
a) Amortized cost: A financial asset is measured at amortized 

cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to 
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): 
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

c) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL): A financial asset 
which is not classified in any of the above categories are 
measured at FVTPL.

 Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their 
recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its 
business model for managing financial assets.

 C) Cash and bank balances 
(i) Cash and cash equivalents which includes cash in hand, 

deposits held at call with banks and other short-term deposits 
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are 
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and have 
maturities of 3 months or less from the date of such deposits. 
These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and 
usage.

(ii) Other bank balances which includes balances and deposits 
with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage.

 D) Equity instruments
 All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value 

changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those 
equity investments for which the Group has elected to present the 
value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’.

 E) Trade receivables and loans
 Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, 

these assets are held at amortized cost, using the effective interest 
rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is 
the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the 
expected life of financial instrument.

 F) Debt Instruments
 Debt instruments are initially measured at amortized cost, fair value 

through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or fair value through 
profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the 
entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and (ii) the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

 G) Impairment of Financial Asset
 In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit 

Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment 
loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured 
at amortized cost e.g., loans, security deposits, bank deposits 
and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables

 The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of 
impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do not 
contain a significant financing component. The application 
of simplified approach does not require the Group to track 
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss 
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right 
from its initial recognition. 

 For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets 
and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there 
has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial 
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 
months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if 
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in 
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves 
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk 
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing 
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

 The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

 H) Income recognition

  Interest income
 Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference 

to the principal outstanding and effective interest rate applicable. 

  Dividend income
 Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to 

receive payment has been established.
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 II. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 A) Initial Recognition and Measurement
 Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party 

to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are 
initially measured at the amortized cost unless at initial recognition, 
they are classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case 
of trade payables, they are initially recognised at fair value and 
subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortized cost, using the 
effective interest method.

 B) Classification And Subsequent Measurement
 Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost 

using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through 
profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 III. DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights 

to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the 
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under 
Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is 
derecognized from the Group’s Balance Sheet when the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

 IV. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount 

presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, 
the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either 
to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

2.19) DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES:
 The Group holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange 

forward, interest rate swaps, currency swaps and currency options to 
mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates or interest rate. The 
counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

i) Financial assets or financial liabilities, at fair value through profit or 
loss:

 This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities which are 
not designated as hedges.

 Although the Group believes that these derivatives constitute hedges 
from an economic perspective, they may not qualify for hedge 

accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative 
that is either not designated a hedge, or is so designated but is 
ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized as a financial asset or 
financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.

 Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair 
value and attributable transaction costs are recognized in net profit 
in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, when incurred. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these derivatives are measured at 
fair value through profit or loss and the resulting gains or losses are 
included in other income or other expenses. Assets / liabilities in this 
category are presented as current assets / current liabilities if they 
are either held for trading or are expected to be realized within 12 
months after the Consolidated Balance Sheet date.

 ii) Cash flow hedge:
 The Group designates certain foreign exchange forward and 

options contracts as cash flow hedges to mitigate the risk of foreign 
exchange exposure on firm commitment and highly probable forecast 
transactions.

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging 
instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of 
the derivative is recognized in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve. Any ineffective 
portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized 
immediately in the net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge 
accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If 
the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, 
the cumulative gain / (loss) on the hedging instrument recognized 
in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was 
effective remains in cash flow hedging reserve until the forecasted 
transaction occurs. The cumulative gain / (loss) previously 
recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the related 
forecasted transaction.

 If the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the 
amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified to 
net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.20) SEGMENT REPORTING
 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal 

reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
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NOTE 3A: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
1st April 2021

Additions Disposals Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
31st March 

2022

Accumulated 
Depreciation 
as at 1st April 

2021

Depreciation Accumulated 
Depreciation on 

disposals

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

as at 31st 
March 2022

Net Carrying 
Value as at 
31st March 

2022

Property, plant & equipment

Land 583.64 244.06 0.00 827.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 827.70 

Factory buildings 890.91 0.00 14.68 876.23 178.88 34.68 14.26 199.30 676.93 

Residential flats 15.83 0.00 0.00 15.83 1.74 0.35 0.00 2.09 13.74 

Plant and machineries 713.66 221.08 53.91 880.83 238.38 58.94 23.08 274.24 606.59 

Moulds and dies 171.47 1.40 14.29 158.58 94.38 17.08 9.76 101.70 56.88 

Furniture and fixtures 101.06 0.00 0.00 101.06 47.58 10.06 0.00 57.64 43.42 

Office equipments 33.35 2.68 4.66 31.37 22.71 4.35 3.75 23.31 8.06 

Vehicles 113.96 246.86 66.32 294.50 48.57 23.86 31.09 41.34 253.16 

Computers 25.08 6.43 3.97 27.54 19.36 2.17 3.86 17.67 9.87 

Factory equipments 78.42 6.43 5.77 79.08 31.02 7.94 4.05 34.91 44.17 

Total as at 31.03.2022 2727.38 728.94 163.60 3292.72 682.62 159.43 89.85 752.20 2540.52 

PARTICULARS

Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
1st April 2020

Additions Disposals Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
31st March 

2021

Accumulated 
Depreciation 
as at 1st April 

2020

Depreciation Accumulated 
Depreciation on 

disposals

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

as at 31st 
March 2021

Net Carrying 
Value as at 
31st March 

2021

Property, plant & equipment

Land 290.39 293.25 0.00 583.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 583.64 

Factory buildings 888.13 2.78 0.00 890.91 144.42 34.46 0.00 178.88 712.03 

Residential flats 15.83 0.00 0.00 15.83 1.39 0.35 0.00 1.74 14.09 

Plant and machineries 816.26 20.74 123.34 713.66 186.69 60.27 8.58 238.38 475.28 

Moulds and dies 171.47 0.00 0.00 171.47 75.26 19.12 0.00 94.38 77.09 

Furniture and fixtures 101.06 0.00 0.00 101.06 37.34 10.24 0.00 47.58 53.48 

Office equipments 32.30 1.71 0.66 33.35 18.20 4.62 0.11 22.71 10.64 

Vehicles 186.73 5.98 78.75 113.96 70.21 22.57 44.21 48.57 65.39 

Computers 20.94 4.14 0.00 25.08 16.39 2.97 0.00 19.36 5.72 

Factory equipments 76.82 1.60 0.00 78.42 23.13 7.89 0.00 31.02 47.40 

Total as at 31.03.2021 2599.93 330.20 202.75 2727.38 573.03 162.49 52.90 682.62 2044.76 

3A(i)   Cost of factory building include ` 0.01 Lakhs (P.Y. ` 0.01 Lakhs) being cost of shares in the Kandivali Co-operative Industrial Estate Limited and also 
constructions on leasehold land.

3A(ii)  Security
 Property, plant and equipment are hypothecated / mortgaged against borrowings refer note 18 and 23
3A(iii)  Factory buildings includes part of premises at Kandivali (W) (value for the same not acertainable) and industrial gala at Vasai (east) of gross block ` Nil 

(Previous year ` 41.73 lakhs) given on operating lease.
3A(iv)  The title deeds of all the immoveable properties (other than properties where the company is lessee and lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the 

lessee) disclosed in the financial statements included under Property plant & equipment are held in the name of the Company except in the case of a plot of 
land purchased during the financial year 2016-17 by the Company as detailed below:

Description of the property Gross Carrying 
Value 

(` in lakhs)

Held in the name of whether 
promoter, 
director or 

their relative or 
employee  

Period held 
- Indicate 

range where 
appropriate

Reason for not being held in the 
name of the Company. 

A plot of land situated at S. No. 61, H. 
No. 1 Part at Village- Kaman, Taluka 
-Vasai District - Palghar (MS) 

14.50 1.  Mrs. Nayana Anant 
Gangda

2.  Mrs. Vimal Jagdish 
Ghatal

3.  Ms. Hemangi 
Jagdish Ghatal

4.  Mr. Tejas Jagdish 
Ghatal

No 5 years 3 
months

The plot was purchased by Holding 
Company from persons belonging 
to tribal communities by executing 
the Memorandum of Understanding 
which can be transferred/registered 
in the name of Holding Company 
only after getting the permission 
from Collector. The Holding 
Company is in process of getting the 
said permission from the Collector.
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NOTE 3B: RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

Gross 
carrying 

value as at 1st 
April 2021

Additions Disposals Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
31st March 

2022

Accumulated 
Depreciation 
as at 1st April 

2021

Depreciation Accumulated 
Depreciation on 

disposals

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

as at 31st 
March 2022

Net Carrying 
Value as at 
31st March 

2022

 Leasehold land 10.77 789.21 0.00 799.98 1.11 27.48 0.00 28.59 771.39 

Total as at 31.03.2022 10.77 789.21 0.00 799.98 1.11 27.48 0.00 28.59 771.39 

PARTICULARS

Gross 
carrying 

value as at 1st 
April 2020

Additions Disposals Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
31st March 

2021

Accumulated 
Depreciation 
as at 1st April 

2020

Depreciation Accumulated 
Depreciation on 

disposals

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

as at 31st 
March 2021

Net Carrying 
Value as at 
31st March 

2021

 Leasehold land 10.77 0.00 0.00 10.77 0.56 0.55 0.00 1.11 9.66 

Total as at 31.03.2021 10.77 0.00 0.00 10.77 0.56 0.55 0.00 1.11 9.66 

3B(i) The aggregate depreciation expense on right-of-use asset is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

NOTE 3C: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

PARTICULARS

Gross 
carrying 

value as at 1st 
April 2021

Additions Disposals Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
31st March 

2022

Accumulated 
Amortization 
as at 1st April 

2021

Amortization Accumulated 
Amortization on 

disposals

Accumulated 
Amortization 

as at 31st 

March 2022

Net Carrying 
Value as at 
31st March 

2022

Intangible assets
 Computer software - acquired 7.26 2.18 0.56 8.88 6.20 0.69 0.24 6.65 2.23 
Total as at 31.03.2022 7.26 2.18 0.56 8.88 6.20 0.69 0.24 6.65 2.23 

PARTICULARS

Gross 
carrying 

value as at 1st 
April 2020

Additions Disposals Gross 
carrying 

value as at 
31st March 

2021

Accumulated 
Amortization 
as at 1st April 

2020

Amortization Accumulated 
Amortization on 

disposals

Accumulated 
Amortization 

as at 31st 

March 2021

Net Carrying 
Value as at 
31st March 

2021

Intangible assets
 Computer software - acquired 7.26 0.00 0.00 7.26 4.94 1.26 0.00 6.20 1.06 
Total as at 31.03.2021 7.26 0.00 0.00 7.26 4.94 1.26 0.00 6.20 1.06 

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
NOTE 4: NON-CURRENT LOANS
Loans considered good -Unsecured

Loan to employees 4.85 1.73 
Total 4.85 1.73 

NOTE 5: OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security deposits 15.55 15.93
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 0.00 100.00
Total 15.55 115.93 

NOTE 6: INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)
Taxes paid/adjustments during the year (0.01) 0.03 
Opening balance (0.01) (0.01)
Add: Current tax payable for the year 0.00 (0.01) 0.00 (0.01)
Total 0.00 0.04 

NOTE 7: OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
 Capital advances 110.00 325.87 
 Security deposits 0.00 0.59 
 MVAT refund receivable 0.00 2.30 
 Prepaid expenses 3.02 1.04 

Total 113.02 329.80 
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount

NOTE 8: INVENTORIES
Raw Materials and components including packing materials* 1308.07 1091.14 
Work in progress 433.18 441.91 
Finished goods 59.18 144.77 
Stores and spares 0.57 1.02 

Total 1801.00 1678.84 

Refer note 2.16 for mode of valuaion of inventories

* Includes stock in transit 81.79 0.00 

NOTE 9: CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Investments measured at fair value through Profit & Loss

In equity shares (Quoted)

Infosys Limited of face value of ` 5 each share 5 0.10 5 0.07 

In mutual funds (Unquoted)

ICICI Prudential Savings Fund - Growth of face value of  ` 10/- each unit 0.00 0.00 12179 50.67 

SBI Magnum Low Duration Fund - Growth of face value of ` 10/- each unit 0.00 0.00 1836 50.49 

HDFC Low Duration Fund - Regular Plan - Growth of face value of ` 10/- 
each unit

0.00 0.00 112556 50.66 

SBI Liquid Fund Regular Growth of face value of  ` 1000/- each unit 788.21 26.09 0 0.00 

UTI Liquid Cash Plan-Regular Plan-Growth of face value of ` 1000/- each 
unit

723.84 25.09 0 0.00 

ICICI Prudential Banking and PSU Debt Fund - Growth of face value of 
` 10/- each unit

96120.57 25.10 0 0.00 

Investments measured at Amortized cost

Investment in debentures

Unquoted, fully paid up

Reliance Securities Limited (face value of ` 1 Lakhs each debenture) 0 0.00 0 29.78 

Reliance Capital Limited (face value of ` 1 Lakhs each debenture) 25 31.12 0 31.12 

107.50 212.79 

Less: Allowance for impairment in value of investment in debentures

Reliance Securities Limited 0.00 9.78 

Reliance Capital Limited 24.87 24.87 

82.63 178.14 

Total 82.63 178.14 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments 0.10 0.07 

Market Value of quoted investments 0.10 0.07 

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 107.40 212.71 

Aggregate provision for diminution in the value of Investments 24.87 34.65 

NOTE 10: TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivable considered good - Unsecured 278.94 255.07 

Total 278.94 255.07 

Trade receivables ageing schedules for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March 2021

Particulars Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  Total 
Less than 6 

months
6 months - 1 

year
 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 

years 
i) Undisputed Trade receivable - considered good 236.80 42.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 278.94

202.83 52.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.02 255.07
ii) Disputed Trade receivable - considered good 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 236.80 42.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 278.94

202.83 52.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.02 255.07

Figures in italics represents the figures for previous year
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount

NOTE 11: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks

In cash credit account 139.81 145.07 
In current accounts 4.31 8.09 
In fixed deposit accounts 0.00 200.00 

Cash on hand 2.32 1.95 
Total 146.44 355.11 

NOTE 12: BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Other bank balances:

In fixed deposit account with maturity less than 12 months 1185.00 200.00 
Fixed deposits with banks held as margin money for letter of 
credit issued

With maturity period less than 12 months* 215.00 215.00 
With maturity period more than 12 months 0.00 0.00 
Less : Amount disclosed under other non current assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1400.00 415.00 
*Details of lien on fixed deposit as under:
Lien for margin money for letter of credit issued 138.26 130.09 

NOTE 13: CURRENT LOANS
Loans considered good -Unsecured

Loan to employees 3.31 2.27 
Total 3.31 2.27 

NOTE 14: OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security deposits 0.00 0.58 
Interest accrued on deposits 9.53 4.98 
Other financial assets 0.24 0.16 
Total 9.77 5.72 

NOTE 15: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good

Advances to suppliers 61.31 48.72 
GST input credit receivable 26.07 0.00 
Export benefit receivable 2.24 0.45 
Export Benefits in Duty Credit Scrips receivable 3.02 33.99 
Prepaid expenses 38.18 38.40 
Other receivables 1.54 1.88 

Total 132.36 123.44 

NOTE 16: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
Equity shares of ` 10/- each 15000000 1500.00 15000000 1500.00 
Total 1500.00 1500.00 
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up 11160000 1116.00 11160000 1116.00 
Less: calls in arrears by others 0.09 0.09 
Total 1115.91 1115.91 

a. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :

Particulars Numbers Amount Numbers Amount

At the beginning of the year 11160000 1116.00 11160000 1116.00

At the end of the year 11160000 1116.00 11160000 1116.00

b. The Holding company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10/- per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The 
dividend proposed by the board of directors is subiect to the approval of shareholders, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity 
shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.
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c. Shareholders holding more than 5% of share capital at the end of the year :

Name of shareholders Numbers % of Holding Numbers % of Holding

1 Shri Kishore Chand Talwar 5325446 47.72 5325446 47.72

2 Smt. Sharda Talwar 1926400 17.26 1926400 17.26

3 Smt. Sangeetha S 587804 5.27 587804 5.27

d. Shareholding of promoters
 Share held by promoters as at 31st March 2022

Sr. 
No

Promoters name No. of Shares % of total shares % Change during the 
year

1 Shri Kishore Chand Talwar 5325446 47.72 0.00

2 Smt. Sharda Talwar 1926400 17.26 0.00

3 Nainy Kunal Tanna 362200 3.25 0.00

4 Kundan Talwar 180000 1.61 0.00

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

NOTE 17: OTHER EQUITY
Securities Premium Reserve

Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 292.28 292.28 

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 2718.45 2446.73 

Add : Profit (loss) after tax for the year 911.82 271.72 

Balance at the end of the year 3630.27 2718.45 

Other Comprehensive income 

Balance at the beginning of the year 4.18 0.63 

Add / (Less): Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges reclssified 0.00 (2.07)

Add: Movement in OCI (Net) during the year (1.64) 5.62 

Balance at the end of the year 2.54 4.18 

Total 3925.09 3014.91 

NOTE 18: NON-CURRENT BORROwINGS

Secured loans:

Term loans

From banks 50.15 0.00 

Unsecured loans:

Term loans

Suppliers credit in foreign currency from banks 0.00 151.72 

Total 50.15 151.72 

a)  Secured Loans:

 (I) Terms of repayment of vehicle loan from HDFC Bank Ltd. 
 Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank was sanctioned on 25th August 2021 at an interest rate of 7.10% p.a. repayable in 60 monthly installments of ` 138118/-  

commencing from 5th September 2021. As on reporting date, It carries an interest rate of 7.10% p.a, and repayable in 53 monthly installement of ` 138118/- 
each from the reporting date.

 (II) Nature of security:
  Vehicle loan from HDFC Bank is secured by hypothecation of specific vehicle acquired from the loan.

b) The Holdig Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and other borrowings and payment of interest thereon.

c) The Holding Company has utilized the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was taken.
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

NOTE 19: NON-CURRENT LEASE LIABILITIES
Lease liability 764.32 10.09 
Total 764.32 10.09 

NOTE 20: NON-CURRENT OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Security deposits 0.00 3.10
Total 0.00 3.10 

NOTE 21: NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS
Provision for employees benefits (Refer note 41) 21.18 21.69
Total 21.18 21.69 

NOTE 22: INCOME TAX
A) The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at Indian statutory income tax rate to income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss is as 

follows:
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Profit before Tax  1,223.21  392.20 

Enacted tax rate 25.168% 25.168%

Expected income tax expense at statutory income tax rate 307.86 98.71 

Tax on Income exempt from tax/Items not deductible (net) 4.03 12.67 

Adjustment for deferred tax of prior periods (3.54) 0.00 

Tax in respect of earlier years 0.50 (0.32)

Others 2.54 9.42 

Tax expense as reported 311.39 120.48 

B) Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021
Deferred tax liabilities 151.04 116.19 
Deferred tax assets 12.69 7.05 
Total 138.35 109.14 

 The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

Particulars
As at 31.03.2020  

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities/(Asset)

"Charge/(Credit) 
in statement of 

Profit and Loss"

As at 31.03.2021  
Deferred Tax 

Liabilities/(Asset)

"Charge/(Credit) 
in statement of 

Profit and Loss"

As at 31.03.2022  
Deferred Tax 

Liabilities/(Asset)
Depreciation 116.13 0.06 116.19 34.78 150.97 
Income Taxable in the year of realisation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.07 0.07 
Expenses allowed in the year of payment* (8.81) 1.76 (7.05) (5.64) (12.69)
Other 0.09 (0.09) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 Note: Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the provision for dimunition in the value of investment of holding company and the losses of 
the subsidiary company, in absence of convincing evidence that future taxable profit will be available against which the holding company and subsidiary company 
respectively can use these assets.

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
NOTE 23: CURRENT BORROwINGS
Secured loans:
Working capital loans

From a bank 0.00 0.00 
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note 18) 12.53 0.00 
Unsecured loans:
Suppliers credit in foreign currency

From banks 412.08 398.07 
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note 18) 156.06 0.00 
Total 580.67 398.07 
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a) Secured Loans:
 I Nature of security:

Working capital loans from HDFC Bank Limited are :

(a) primarily secured by hypothecation of stocks, book debts and plant & machineries of the Holding Company ;

(b) further secured by way of equitable mortgage of land and building at Plot No. 92-D  Government Industrial  Estate, Charkop, Kandivli (W), Mumbai  
400067;

(c) further collaterally secured by way of equitable mortgage of a plot of land at Survey No. 62, 74, 75, 20 Village Devdal (Sagpada), Kaman, Vasai (E), 
Palghar 401202 belonging to Shri Kundan Talwar and factory building constructed thereon by the Holding Company; and

(d) also personally guaranteed by Chairman & Managing Director, Wholetime Director and two relatives of the Chairman & Managing Director of the 
Holding Company i.e Shri Kundan Talwar and Smt. Sharda Talwar.

II The Holding Compnay has borrowed money from bank on the basis of security of current assets and the quarterly statements of current aseets filed by the 
Holding Company with the Bank are materially in agreement with the books of accounts.

b) The Holdig Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and other borrowings and payment of interest thereon.

c) The Holding Company has utilized the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was taken.

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
NOTE 24: CURRENT LEASE LIABILITIES
Current maturities of leased liability 19.14 0.25 
Total 19.14 0.25 
NOTE 25: TRADE PAYABLES
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(Refer note 47)

0.00 41.03 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises*

455.24 430.15 

Total 455.24 471.18 
* Other trade payables include acceptances 0.00 0.00 

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March 2021

Particulars Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 

year
 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 

years 
Total

i) Undisputed Trade Payables -MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
39.61 1.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 41.03

ii) Undisputed Trade Payables - Others 365.38 89.77 0.09 0.00 0.00 455.24
283.05 138.89 7.40 0.00 0.81 430.15

Total 365.38 89.77 0.09 0.00 0.00 455.24
322.65 140.31 7.40 0.00 0.81 471.18

Figures in italics represents the figures for previous year

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
NOTE 26: OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Interest accrued but not due 1.83 3.52 
Security deposits 7.00 0.00 
Creditors for capital expenditure* 2.92 0.12 

Accrued expenses 62.64 57.93 
Total 74.39 61.57 
*Includes micro and small enterprises (Refer note 47) 0.00 0.00 

NOTE 27: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advances from customers 116.26 99.01 
Deferred Revenue 0.00 0.70 
Statutory dues 25.38 39.13 
Total 141.64 138.84 

NOTE 28: CURRENT PROVISIONS
Provision for employees benefits (Refer note 41) 10.53 4.03 

Total 10.53 4.03 

NOTE 29: CURRENT INCOME-TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Provision for current tax  (Net of advance tax ` 275.72 lakhs P.Y. 
` 104.19 lakhs)

5.40 16.07 

Total 5.40 16.07 
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2022 For the year ended 31.03.2021

NOTE 30: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of products 7100.38 4998.61 

Other operating revenue

Scrap sales 0.00 3.11 

Export incentives 6.78 14.57 

6.78 17.68 

Total 7107.16 5016.29 

Sale of products (Categories wise)

Instrument cooling fans 4473.25 3208.66

Shaded pole motors 2362.25 1644.34

Components 264.88 145.61

Sale of Products (Geography wise)

Domestic 5583.60 4035.14 

Export 1516.78 963.47 

Revenue based on timing of recognition

Revenue recognition at a point in time 7100.38 4998.61

Revenue recognition over period of time 0.00 0.00

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

Contract price 7105.58 5004.98

Less: Discount 0.00 0.00

Less: Sales return 5.20 6.37

Revenue from operations 7100.38 4998.61

NOTE 31: OTHER INCOME

Interest Income :

On fixed deposits with banks 54.54 22.26 

On security deposits 0.55 0.60 

On staff loans 0.84 0.32 

On delay payment by customers 0.09 2.97 

56.02 26.15 

Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) 0.00 20.29 

Profit on sale of investments 1.28 0.00 

Gain/(Loss) on investments carried at fair value through Profit & Loss 0.32 1.82 

Gain/(Loss) on investments carried at amortised cost 3.58 4.71 

Rental Income(Refer Note 46) 19.67 20.30 

Insurance claim received 1.56 0.00 

Allowances for impairment in value of investment in debentures  no longer required 9.78 0.00 

Dividend received 0.00 0.00 

Net gain on exchange rate fluctuations 15.03 31.47 

Sundry balances written back/off (net) 0.41 0.00 

Total 107.65 104.74 
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2022 For the year ended 31.03.2021

NOTE 32: COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED*
(Raw materials and components including packing materials)
Opening stock 1091.14 1479.25 

Add : Cost of purchases 4187.68 2339.36 
Less: Closing stock 1308.07 1091.14 
Total 3970.75 2727.47 
*Cost of materials consumed

Aluminium ingots 711.34 530.89 
Aluminium sheets 49.55 49.38 
Ball bearings 75.31 55.48 
Brass Insert 234.02 26.99 
Copper wires 666.35 514.49 
Plastic powders 389.65 210.53 
Rotor lamination 179.51 125.43 
Stator lamination 489.64 373.21 
Others 1175.38 841.08 

NOTE 33: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND wORK IN PROGRESS

Opening stocks:

Finished goods 144.77 260.45

Work in progress 441.91 418.21

586.68 678.66 

Less:Closing stocks:

Finished goods 59.18 144.77

Work in progress 433.18 441.91

492.36 586.68 

Total 94.32 91.98 

NOTE 34: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries and wages 469.50 386.43 

Contribution to provident and other funds 13.13 7.24 

Staff welfare expenses 48.28 42.77 

Total 530.91 436.44 

NOTE 35: FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on:

Borrowings 7.43 19.27 

Lease liability 33.41 0.97 

Others 5.18 11.52 

Other Borrowing Costs 21.77 29.82 

Net loss(gain) on foreign currency transactions 20.88 3.54 

Total 88.67 65.12 
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2022 For the year ended 31.03.2021

NOTE 36: OTHER EXPENSES
Manufacturing expenses

Consumption of stores and spares 31.52 27.62 
Processing and labour charges 730.28 621.43 
Power and fuel 163.87 145.88 
Repairs to :

buildings 6.97 11.18
machineries 22.05 12.27
mould & dies 13.19 7.95
others 19.55 61.76 7.06 38.46 

Inward transportation and freight 3.13 2.35 
Administrative and other expenses

Auditors' remuneration (Refer note 40) 10.19 9.88 
Communication expenses 8.60 7.75 
Directors' sitting fees 2.00 1.40 
Electricity expenses 4.52 3.78 
Insurance 9.75 11.22 
Loss on sale of property plant and equipments 26.71 0.00 
Professional charges 21.04 14.39 
Repairs and maintenance 14.82 14.81 
Rates and taxes 10.90 14.87 
Travelling and conveyance 51.68 35.22 
Contribution for CSR Expenditure 11.00 11.00 
Product development and research expenses 0.00 20.13 
Miscellaneous expenses 73.62 44.86 

Selling and distribution expenses
Advertisement and business promotion 13.44 5.99 
Commission and brokerage 0.00 1.70 
Outward transportation and freight 8.70 13.18 

Total 1257.53 1045.92 

NOTE 37: EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Loacl Body Tax for earlier years  (Refer note 50(a)) 0.00 162.96 

Allowance for impairment in value of investment in debentures (Refer note 9 and 50(b)) 0.00 34.65 

Profit on sale of industrial premises (Refer note 50(c)) (138.18) 0.00 

Total (138.18) 197.61 

NOTE 38: EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE

Net profit / (loss) after tax ` in Lakhs 911.82 271.72

Weighted average number of shares  Numbers in Lakhs 111.60 111.60

Basic earnings per share ` 8.17 2.43

Diluted earnings per share ` 8.17 2.43

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
NOTE 39: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)
(i) Contingent liabilities:

(a) Letter of credit issued by the bankers of the company 343.90 15.95
(b) Bonds/Undertakings given under duty exemption under advance licence scheme pending fulfilment of export obligation. 920.00 1100.00
(c) Bonds/Undertakings given under duty exemption under EPCG licence scheme pending fulfilment of export obligation. 32.00 32.00

(ii) Contingent commitments
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances). 990.00 16.53
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

2021-22 2020-21
NOTE 40: PAYMENT TO AUDITORS*
Statutory audit fees 3.75 3.75
Tax audit fees 3.50 3.50
GST audit fees 0.00 0.80
Certification work 2.63 1.55
Out of pocket expenses 0.31 0.28

10.19 9.88
* excluding GST wherever input tax credit taken

NOTE 41: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
The disclosures required under Indian Accounting Standard 19 “Employee Benefits” are given below:

(a) Defined contribution plan
 The Group makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund, which is 

a defined contribution plan. The Group has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss as they accrue.

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
2021-22 2020-21

Contribution to defined contribution plan recognised, charged off for the year, are as under:
Employer's contribution to provident fund 9.93 5.15

(b) Defined benefit plan:
 Gratuity :
 The Group provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are 

eligible to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, based on the rate of wages last 
drawn by the employee.

 The employee’s gratuity scheme is non -fund based. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up 
the final obligation.

 Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the details of the employee benefit obligation as at balance sheet date.

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

2021-22 2020-21

I) Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation at start of year 25.72 32.81 

Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cost 2.93 2.38 

Interest cost 1.69 2.09 

Benefits paid 0.82 4.05 

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income -Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations 

Remeasurements - due to demographic assumptions 0.00 0.00 

Remeasurements - due to financial assumptions (0.95) 0.29 

Remeasurements - due to experience adjustments 3.14 (7.80)

Past service cost 0.00 0.00 

Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of the year 31.71 25.72 

II) Net liability / (asset) recognised in the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 31.71 25.72 

Fair value of plan assets 0.00 0.00 

Net liability / (asset) 31.71 25.72 

Effect of asset ceiling / onerous liabilities 0.00 0.00 

Liability / (asset) recognised in the balance sheet 31.71 25.72 

Of which short term defined benefit obligation at end of the year 10.53 4.03 

III) Expenses recognized during the year 
Current service cost 2.93 2.38 

Interest cost 1.69 2.09 

Defined benefit cost included in Statement of profit and loss 4.62 4.47 

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans-Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations 2.19 (7.51)

Defined benefit cost included in Other Comprehensive Income 2.19 (7.51)

Total defined benefit recognized in Statement of profit & loss and Other Comprehensive Income 6.81 (3.04)
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

2021-22 2020-21
IV) Actuarial assumptions

Salary growth rate 4.00% 4.00%
Discount rate 7.13% 6.70%
Withdrawal rate 1% to 3% 1% to 3%
Mortality Rate (as % of IALM 2012-14 Ult. Mortality Table) 100% 100%
Normal retairement age 58 years 58 years
Adjusted average future service 13 years 12 years

V) Bifurcation of present value of defined benefit obligations
Current liabilities 10.53 4.03
Non current liabilities 21.18 21.69
Total 31.71 25.72

VI) Sensitivity Analysiss
 Discount Rate, Salary Escalation Rate and Withdrawal Rate are significant actuarial assumptions. The change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit 

Obligation for a change of 100 Basis Points from the assumed assumption is given below:

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Assumption Change in 
assumption

Denfined benfit 
obligations as 
on 31.03.2022

% Change
Denfined benfit 
obligations as 
on 31.03.2021

% Change

Salary rate Increase by 1% 34.32 8.3% 28.13 9.4%
Decrease by 1% 29.44 -7.1% 23.63 -8.1%

Withdrawal rate Increase by 1% 32.31 1.9% 26.20 1.9%
Decrease by 1% 31.01 -2.2% 25.15 -2.2%

Discount rate Increase by 1% 29.73 -6.2% 23.85 -7.3%
Decrease by 1% 34.03 7.3% 27.92 8.6%

VII) The Group’s philosophy is to not to externally fund these liabilities but instead create an accounting provisions in its books of accounts and pay the 
gratuity to its employees directly from its own resources as and when the employee leaves the Group. The expected contribution payable to the plan next 
year is therefore Nil. If the Group opts for externally fund these liabilities in the next year, the best estimate contribution for the Group during the next 
year would be ` 15.85 Lakhs (Previous Year ` 12.86 Lakhs).

VIII) The expected maturity profile of defined benefit obligations is as follows:
Particulars Up to 1 year Between 1-2 years Between 2-5 years Between 5-10 years
31.03.2022 10.53 1.85 4.61 10.66 

31.03.2021 4.03 4.14 4.13 9.70 

The weighted average duration of the above defined benefit obligation is 13.55 years( 31.03.2021 - 14.39 years)

IX) Discontinuance Liability : Amount payable upon discontinuance of all employment is ` 39.25 Lakhs (31.03.2021 - ` 32.26 Lakhs)

NOTE 42: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain  creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. 
Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. The board of directors seeks to maintain a balance between the 
higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of ‘net debt’ to ‘equity’. For this purpose, net debt is defined as total borrowings less cash & cash equivalents, bank deposit 
(including earmarked balances) and current investments.

The table below summarises the capital, net debt and net debt to equity ratio of the Group

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
2021-22 2020-21

Equity share capital 1115.91 1115.91 
Other equity 3925.09 3014.91 
Total Equity (A) 5041.00 4130.82 
Non-current borrowings 50.15 151.72 
Current borrowings 580.67 398.07 
Lease liabilities (Non-current and current) 783.46 10.34 
Gross Debt (B) 1414.28 560.13 
Gross Debt as above 1414.28 560.13 
Less: Current investments 82.63 178.14 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 146.44 355.11 
Less: Bank deposits (including earmarked balances) 1400.00 515.00 
Net Debt (C) (214.79) (488.12)
Net debt to equity (0.04) (0.12)



90

Notes to the consolisated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
NOTE 43: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK REVIEw
A) Financial Instruments

 Fair value measurement hierarchy
 The fair value of financial instruments as below have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy 

gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs 
(Level 3 measurements).

 The categories used are as follows
 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets:  This level of hierarchy includes financial assets or liabilities that are measured by reference to quoted 

prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of mutual fund and equity investments.
 Level 2: Valuation techniques with observable inputs: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted 

prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category 
includes the derivatives financial assets designated as hedges.

 Level 3: Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are 
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that 
are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

 The following tables presents the carrying value and Fair value measurement hierarchy of each category of financial assets and liabilities 
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Carrying 
Amount

Fair Value - 
Level 1

Fair Value - 
Level 2

Carrying 
Amount

Fair Value - 
Level 1

Fair Value - 
Level 2

Financial Assets
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss
Investments* 76.38 76.38 0.00 151.89 151.89 0.00 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Investments* 6.25 0.00 0.00 26.25 0.00 0.00 
Trade receivables 278.94 0.00 0.00 255.07 0.00 0.00 
Cash and cash equivalents 146.44 0.00 0.00 355.11 0.00 0.00 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1400.00 0.00 0.00 515.00 0.00 0.00 
Loans 8.16 0.00 0.00 4.00 0.00 0.00 
Other financial assets 25.32 0.00 0.00 21.65 0.00 0.00 

1941.49 76.38 0.00 1328.97 151.89 0.00
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 630.82 0.00 0.00 549.79 0.00 0.00 
Lease liabilities 783.46 0.00 0.00 10.34 0.00 0.00 
Trade payables 455.24 0.00 0.00 471.18 0.00 0.00 
Other financial liabilities 74.39 0.00 0.00 64.67 0.00 0.00 

1943.91 0.00 0.00 1095.98 0.00 0.00
 * Excludes financial assets measured at Cost
 There have been no financial assets and financial liabilities which has been fair valued under level 3 category therefore no details for the same given in the table 

above.

 Valuation
 The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent.

 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at Balance Sheet date:
(i) Short-term financial assets and liabilities are stated at carrying value which is approximately equal to their fair value.

(ii) The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (‘NAV’) as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the 
published statements as at Balance Sheet date.

(iii) Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation 
technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that 
the Group could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting 
dates may be different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.

B) Financial Risk Management Framework
 The Group’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely credit risk, liquidity risk and  market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk). 

The Group’s management and the Board of Directors have the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Group’s risk management framework. 
The Board of Directors which are responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies. The Group’s risk management policies are 
established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically review the changes in market 
conditions and reflect the changes in the policy accordingly. The key risks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Audit Committee and Board of 
Directors of the Holding Company.

 i) Credit Risk
 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations. Financial instruments that are 

subject to credit risk principally consist of trade receivables, investments, loans, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks and other financial 
assets. None of the financial instruments of the Group result in material credit risk.
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 Credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited as the Group has a policy of dealing only with credit worthy customers. All trade receivables are 

reviewed and assessed for default on a quarterly basis. Our historical experience of collecting receivables is that credit risk is very low. Hence, trade 
receivables are considered to be a single class of financial assets.

 Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances with bank is limited as the Group generally invest in deposits with banks. Investments 
primarily include investment in liquid mutual fund units. The Group reviews credit wothiness of the counter parties to whom security depoits and loans given. 
The managements belives that there is no credit risk lies with the security deposits given and loans to employees.

 The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

 ii) Liquidity risk
 Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity 

and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.The Group’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to 
meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions.The Group 
maintained a cautious liquidity strategy, with a positive cash balance throughout the year ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021. Cash flow from 
operating activities provides the funds to service the financial liabilities on a day-to-day basis. The Group has obtained fund and non-fund based working 
capital lines from banks. The Group invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and in mutual funds, which carry no or low risk.

 The following table shows a maturity analysis of the anticipated cash flows including interest obligations for the Group’s financial liabilities. Cash flows in 
foreign currencies are translated using the period end spot rates.

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Carring Value 0-1 years 1-3 years above 3 years Carring Value 0-1 years 1-3 years above 3 years

Borrowings 630.82 580.67 27.88 22.27 549.79 398.07 151.72 0.00 

Lease liabilities 783.46 19.14 43.42 720.90 10.34 0.25 0.57 9.52 

Trade payables 455.24 455.23 0.00 0.00 471.18 471.18 0.00 0.00 

Other financial liabilities 74.39 74.39 0.00 0.00 64.67 61.57 3.10 0.00 

Total 1943.91 1129.43 71.30 743.17 1095.98 931.07 155.39 9.52 

 iii) Market Risk
 Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s income 

or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency 
receivables and payables and long-term debt. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimising the return.

  a) Currency Risk
 The Group is subject to the risk that changes in foreign currency values impacting the Group’s exports revenue and imports of raw material and 

property, plant and equipment. The risk also includes highly probable foreign currency cash flows.The objective of the cash flow hedges is to minimise 
the volatility of the ` cash flows of highly probable forecast transaction. It hedges its foreign exchange risk using foreign exchange forward contracts 
and currency options wherever considered. As at 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021, the net unhedged exposure to the Group on holding 
assets (trade receivables, advance to suppliers and capital advances) and liabilities (trade payables, advance from customers, borrowing and accured 
interest) other than in their functional currency  is as under.

 The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from US Dollar.
(Amount in Lakhs)

As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

USD ` USD `

Receivables 0.73 55.55 0.70 50.85 

Less: Hedged through derivatives-currency options 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Net unhedged exposure to foreign currency (assets) 0.73 55.55 0.70 50.85 

Payables 8.95 686.14 8.68 646.52 

Net unhedged exposure to foreign currency (liabilities) 8.95 686.14 8.68 646.52 

Net unhedged exposure to foreign currency (8.22) (630.59) (7.98) (595.67)

 Sensitivity analysis of 1% change in exchange rate at the end of reporting period net unhedged exposure
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
1% Depreciation in INR
Impact on Statement of profit and loss (6.31) (5.96)
1% Appreciation in INR
Impact on Statement of profit and loss 6.31 5.96 

  b) Interest Rate Risk
 Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any movement in the reference rates could have 

an impact on the Group’s cash flows as well as costs. The Group is subject to variable interest rates on some of its interest bearing liabilities. The 
Group’s interest rate exposure is mainly related to borrowing obligations.
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 The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial liabilities is as follows.

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Long term borrowing-floating rate instruments 0.00 151.72 

Long term borrowing-fixed rate instruments 62.68 0.00 

Short term borrowing-fixed rate instruments 568.15 398.07 

630.83 549.79 

   Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
 The Group’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since 

neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

   Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
 Impact on Interest Expenses for the year on 1% change in Interest rate (Amount in ` Lakhs)

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
1% Increase in interest rates
Impact on Statement of profit and loss 0.00 (0.66)
1% Decrease in interest rates
Impact on Statement of profit and loss 0.00 0.66 

NOTE 44: SEGMENT REPORTING
The segment reporting as required under Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments” is not applicable to the Group as the Group’s operations are 
predominantly comprises of only one business segment - Instrument cooling fans/ motors for the year.

NOTE 45: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

I)  Names of related parties and description of relationships
a) Persons owning directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power that gives him significant influence.
 Shri Kishore Chand Talwar
b) Key management personnel :
 Executive directors
  Shri Kishore Chand Talwar (Chairman & Managing Director of Holding Company)
  Smt. Nainy K. Tanna (Wholetime Director of Holding Company)
 Non-executive directors (Independent directors of Holding Company)
  Shri Ayyaswami Sundram
  Shri Krishnamoorthy Krishnan 
  Shri Sriram Shrinivasan

c) Relatives of persons referred in a) and b) above
 Smt. Sharda Talwar (Wife of Chairman and Managing Director of the Holding Company)
 Shri Kundan Talwar (Son of Chairman and Managing Director of the Holding Company)
 Smt. Ramandeep Talwar (Daughter in law of Chairman and Managing Director of the Holding Company)
 Shri Kunal Tanna (Spouse of Smt. Nainy K. Tanna, Wholetime Director of the company)

d) Enterprises over which any person described in (c ) above is able to exercise significant influence.
 Excelum Enterprises (A proprietary concern of Shri Kunal Tanna)

II) Transactions during the year and balances outstanding as at year end with the related parties are as follows:

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Parties 

mentioned in  
I(a) & I(b)

Parties  
mentioned in  

(c)

Parties 
mentioned in  

I (d)
Total

Sales including taxes 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
(0.00) (0.00) 1.73 (1.73)

Director's Remuneration (including commission if any) 220.89 0.00 0.00 220.89 
(186.32) (0.00) (0.00) (186.32)

Director sitting fees 2.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 
(1.40) (0.00) (0.00) (1.40)

Salary 0.00 85.50 0.00 85.50 
(0.00) (82.28) (0.00) (82.28)

Lease rentals 0.00 33.41 0.00 33.41 
(0.00) (0.97) (0.00) (0.97)

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by others 10.59 0.00 0.00 10.59 
(5.98) 0.00 (0.00) (5.98)

Recovery of expenses incurred for others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
(0.19) 0.00 (0.00) (0.19)
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Parties 

mentioned in  
I(a) & I(b)

Parties  
mentioned in  

(c)

Parties 
mentioned in  

I (d)
Total

Lease liability paid 0.00 16.09 0.00 16.09 
(0.00) (0.23) (0.00) (0.23)

Unsecured loan taken 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
(65.10) (0.00) (0.00) (65.10)

Unsecured loan repaid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
(168.10) (0.00) (0.00) (168.10)

Lease modifications* 0.00 789.21 0.00 789.21 
(0.00) (0.00) (0.00) 0.00 

Outstanding Balances
Director’s Remuneration/Commission Payable 18.70 0.00 0.00 18.70 

(10.98) (0.00) (0.00) (10.98)
Salary Payable 0.00 4.15 0.00 4.15 

(0.00) (4.61) (0.00) (4.61)
Lease rentals payable 0.00 783.46 0.00 783.46 

(0.00) (10.34) (0.00) (10.34)
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by others 0.95 0.00 0.00 0.95 

(0.34) (0.00) (0.00) (0.34)
 Note:
 1) Related party relationship is identified by the Group and relied upon by the auditors. 

2) Figure in the brackets pertains to previous year. 
3)  Personal guarantee of the Chairman & Managing Director, Wholetime Director and two relatives of the Chairman & Managing Director namely Smt. Sharda  

Talwar and Shri Kundan Talwar has been provided for the facilities sanctioned to the Holding Company- Refer Note 18 and Note 23.

 Details of transactions with individual related parties are as under

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Sales including taxes
Excelum Enterprises 0.00 1.73 
Director's Remuneration (including commission if any)
Shri Kishore Chand Talwar 165.92 133.45 
Smt. Nainy K. Tanna 54.97 52.87 
Director sitting fees
Shri Ayyaswami Sundaram 0.60 0.40 
Krishnamoorthy Krishnan 0.70 0.50 
Sriram Shrinivasan 0.70 0.50 
Salary
Shri Kundan Talwar 48.00 46.07 
Smt. Sharda Talwar 27.90 26.89 
Smt. Ramandeep Talwar 9.60 9.32 
Interest on lease liability 
Shri Kundan Talwar 33.41 0.97 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by others
Smt. Nainy K. Tanna 9.19 4.98 
Sriram Shrinivasan 0.70 0.50 
Krishnamoorthy Krishnan 0.70 0.50 
Recovery of expenses incurred for others
Shri Ayyaswami Sundaram 0.00 0.19 
Lease liability paid
Shri Kundan Talwar 16.09 0.23 
Unsecured loan taken
Shri Kishore Chand Talwar 0.00 65.10 
Unsecured loan repaid
Shri Kishore Chand Talwar 0.00 168.10 
Lease modifications*
Shri Kundan Talwar 789.21 0.00 



94

Notes to the consolisated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Outstanding Balances

Director's Remuneration Payable

Shri Kishore Chand Talwar 15.78 8.21 

Smt. Nainy K. Tanna 2.92 2.77 

Salary payable

Shri Kundan Talwar 1.81 2.42 

Smt. Sharda Talwar 1.65 1.50 

Smt. Ramandeep Talwar 0.69 0.69 

Lease liabilities

Shri Kundan Talwar 783.46 10.34 

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by others

Smt. Nainy K. Tanna 0.95 0.34 

III) Compensation of Key management personnel 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Short-term benefits 220.17 185.69 

Post employment benefits** 0.72 0.63 

Sitting fees paid to independent director 2.00 1.40 

222.89 187.72 

* present value of lease payments for the remaining period of lease on modications of lease terms

** Post employment benefits do not include the gratuity as the partywise break is not available 

IV) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:
 Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.

NOTE 46: LEASES
The Group adopted Ind AS 116, ‘Lease’ effective from April 01, 2019, and has elected to apply this standard to its leases with modified retrospective approach with the 
cumulative effect, recognised at the date of initial application. Initial lease liability has been measured at present value of the remaining lease payments, and discounted 
at incremental borrowing rate of the Company as on April 01, 2019, with an equivalent amount for the right-of-use asset. In view of revised lease terms w.e.f. 1st 
September 2021 for leasehold land with the Lessor, the holding Company has remeasured the Lease liability at a revised discount rate and accordingly increased 
Lease liability ` 789.21 lakhs have correspondingly been adjusted to Right-of-use asset as additions.

a) As a lessee

Right-of-use assets
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Leasehold Land

Cost 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

At the beginning of the year 10.77 10.77 

Additions on account of lease modifications 789.21 0.00 

Deletions 0.00 0.00 

At the close of the year 799.98 10.77 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At the beginning of the year 1.11 0.56 

Depreciation 27.48 0.55 

Impairment loss 0.00 0.00 

Eliminated on deletions of assets 0.00 0.00 

At the close of the year 28.59 1.11 

Carrying amounts

At the beginning of the year 9.66 10.21

At the close of the year 771.39 9.66
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(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Year ended 
March  

31, 2022

Year ended 
March  

31, 2021
Breakdown of lease expenses

Short-term lease expense 0.00 0.00
Total lease expense 0.00 0.00

Cash outflow on leases
Repayment of lease liabilities 16.09 0.23
Interest on lease liabilities 33.41 0.97
Short-term lease expense 0.00 0.00
Total cash outflow on leases 49.50 1.20

Movement in lease liability
Balance at the begning of the year 10.34 10.57
Additions on account of lease modifications 789.21 0.00
Interest on lease liabilities accrued during the year 33.41 0.97
Deletions 0.00 0.00
Payment of lease liabilities 49.50 1.20
Balance at the closing of the year 783.46 10.34

Maturity analysis of lease liability (Amount in ` Lakhs)
Total Lease 

Payable
Less than 1 year 1 and 5 years Over 5 years Weighted average 

effective interest 
rate %

March 31, 2022 Lease liabilities 783.46 19.14 97.22 667.10 8.37

b) As a lessor
 Operating Lease:
 Cancellable leases
 The Group has given its industrial galas under operating lease or on leave and licence basis. The agreement for the same is not non-cancellable for a period of 11 

months  and is renewable at mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. The Group has taken refundable interest free security deposits in accordance with the agreed 
terms.  The rent received ` 07.35 lakhs (Previous year ` 02.43 lakhs)  in accordance with the agreement is credited  to the statement of profit and loss for the year.

 Non-cancellable leases
 The Group has given its part of the premise under operating lease for the period of 5 years. The Group has taken refundable interest free security deposit in 

accordance with the agreed terms. The lease rentals income for the year recognized in the Statement of profit and loss and future lease rental receivable as per 
the rentals stated in respective agreement are as follows:

(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Lease rental recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 12.32 17.88

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease
Not later than one year 0.00 18.79
Later than one year and not later than five years 0.00 12.91
Later than five years 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 31.70

NOTE 47: DISCLOSURE UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006
Based on the information available, there are certain vendors who have confirmed that they are registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006 as micro and small enterprises. Disclosures as required by section 22 of ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, are given below:

(Amount in ` Lakhs)
SI. 
No. Particulars  As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021 

1 The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year
-principal amount 0.00 41.03 
-interest thereon 0.00 0.06 

2 The amount of interest paid in terms of section 16, along with the amount of the payment made to the 
suppliers beyond the appointed day:
– principal amount 0.00 240.65 
– interest thereon 0.00 0.00 

3 The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the act.

0.00 4.95 

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. 0.00 5.01 
5 The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 

when the interest dues about are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of this act.

0.00 5.01 
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NOTE 48: CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

As per provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Group has to incur at least 2% of average net profits of the preceeding three financial years towards 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Accordingly, a CSR committee has been formed for carrying out CSR activities as per the Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 
2013. Details of the CSR expenditure are as under:

Details of CSR expenditure:
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2022

Year ended 
31.03.2021

i. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 10.08 10.46
ii. Amount of expenditure incured
 Ongoing project  -  - 
 Other than ongoing projrct 11.00 11.00
iii. Shortfall at the end of the year  -  - 
iv. Total of previous years shortfall  -  - 
v. Reason for shortfall Not applicable Not applicable
vi. Nature of CSR activities Promotion of education which inter-alia 

includes creation of infrastructure and 
necessary facilities.

vii. Details of related party transactions  -  - 
viii Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the 

movement in the provision during the year shall be shown separately  -  -

NOTE 49: COVID IMPACT:
The Group operations for the quarter ended June 30, 2020 were suspended for part of the quarter on account of the lockdown announced by the Government of India 
consequent to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. The financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2022 are, therefore, not comparable with the financial 
performance for the year ended March 31, 2021.

NOTE 50: EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS INCLUDE:
a) the provision made by the holding Company during the previous financial year for Local Body Tax (“LBT”) ` 162.97 lakhs consisting of tax liability ` 81.30 lakhs, Interest 

` 81.32 lakhs and penalty ` 0.35 lakhs assessed, for the financial years 2011-12, 2012-13, 2013-14, 2014-15 and for the period from April 2015 to July 2015 by the 
Deputy Commissioner, Vasai Virar City Mumnicipal Corporation on 5th February 2021. The holding Company provided for and paid the said LBT liability during the 
previous financial year after adjusting the payment made under protest of ` 109.97 lakhs during the financial year 2019-20. 

b) the provision made by holding Company for ` 34.64 lakhs for impairment in value of investment in debentures of Reliance Capital Limited and Reliance Securities Limited 
during the previous financial year.

c) the profit on sale of industrial premises by holding Company at Vasai, Palghar (net of costs and transfer expenses) made during the year.

NOTE 51: CODE ON SOCIAL SECURITY 
The Parliament of India has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 (the Code) which may impact the contributions by the Group towards Provident fund, ESIC 
and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on November 13. 2020. Final rules are yet to be notified. The Group will 
assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record related impact, if any.

NOTE 52: DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 186(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
The required details of investments and loans to employees outstanding as on 31.03.2022 are given in note 9 and note 4 & 13 to the consolidated financial statements. 
Investments were made with a view of cash management.

NOTE 53: INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITY

Name of Company Country of incorporation
Proportion of ownersip of 

interest
Proportion of ownersip of 

interest

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Wholly Owned Subsidiary

Rexnord Enterprise Private Limited India 100% 100%
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NOTE 54: STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OwNERS AND MINORITY INTEREST
For Disclosures mandated by Schedule III of Companies Act 2013, by way of additional information, refer below:

Name of the Enterprise

2021-22
Net Assets, i.e. total 

assets 
minus total liabilities

Share in profit or (loss) Share in other comprehensive 
income

Share in total comprehensive 
income

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amounts 
(` Lakhs)

As % of 
consolidated 

Profit or 
Loss

Amounts 
(` Lakhs)

As % of 
consolidated 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Amounts 
(` Lakhs)

As % of 
consolidated 

total 
comprehensive 

income

Amounts 
(` Lakhs)

Parent
Rexnord Electronics and 
Controls Limited

102.15% 5149.13 101.11% 921.91 100.00% (1.64) 101.11% 920.27

Subsidiary
Rexnord Enterprise Private 
Limited

1.82% 91.87 -1.11% (10.09) 0.00% 0.00 -1.11% (10.09)

Total 103.97% 5241 100.00% 911.82 100.00% -1.64 100.00% 910.18
Adjustment due to consolidation -3.97% (200.00) 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 

Total 100.00% 5041 100.00% 911.82 100.00% -1.64 100.00% 910.18
Non Controlling Interest in 
Subsidiary

0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 

Name of the Enterprise

2020-21
Net Assets, i.e. total assets 

minus total liabilities Share in profit or (loss) Share in other comprehensive 
income

Share in total comprehensive 
income

As % of 
consolidated 
net assets

Amounts 
(` Lakhs)

As % of 
consolidated 
Profit or Loss

Amounts 
(` Lakhs)

As % of 
consolidated 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Amounts 
(` Lakhs)

As % of 
consolidated 

total 
comprehensive 

income

Amounts 
(` Lakhs)

Parent
Rexnord Electronics and 
Controls Limited

102.37% 4228.86 113.78% 309.15 100.00% 5.62 113.50% 314.77

Subsidiary
Rexnord Enterprise Private 
Limited

2.47% 101.96 -13.78% (37.43) 0.00% 0.00 -13.50% (37.43)

Total 104.84% 4330.82 100.00% 271.72 100.00% 5.62 100.00% 277.34
Adjustment due to consolidation -4.84% (200.00) 0.00% (0.00) 0.00% 0.00 0.00% (0.00)

Total 100.00% 4130.82 100.00% 271.72 100.00% 5.62 100.00% 277.34
Non Controlling Interest in 
Subsidiary

0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 

NOTE 55: FINANCIAL RATIOS

Ratio Numerator Denominator FY 
2021-22

FY 
2020-21

% 
variance

Remarks for varience more than 
25%

Current ratio (in times) Current assets Current Laibilities 2.99 2.76 8.33 Not applicable
Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 0.28 0.14 100.00 Increase in ratio due to increase in 

lease liability.
Debt Service Coverage ratio (in times) Earning before 

Interest, 
depreciation and 
Tax

Debt Service 10.60 1.98 435.00 Increase in ratio is due to increase 
in profit and also profit on sale of 
Industral premises.

Return on Equity ratio (%) Net profit after tax Equity 0.18 0.07 157.00 Increase in ratio is due to increase 
in profit and also profit on sale of 
Industral premises.

Inventory turnover ratio (in times) Cost of Goods 
sold

Average Inventory 2.34 1.47 59.00 Increase in ratio is due to faster 
churning of inventory.

Trade receivables turnover ratio (in 
times)

Net Sales Average accounts 
receivables

26.62 8.92 198.00 Increase in ratio is due to lower 
receivable and increase in turnover.

Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) Purchase/
Services Utilised

Average accounts 
payables

11.76 4.75 148.00 Increase in ratio is due to faster 
churning of inventory.

Net capital turnover ratio (in times) Net Sales Working Capital 2.77 2.61 6.00 Not applicable
Net profit ratio (%) Net profit after tax Net Sales 12.83% 5.42% 137.00 Increase in ratio is due to increase 

in profit and also profit on sale of 
Industral premises.

Return on Capital employed (%) Earning before 
Interest and Tax

Capital employed 19.90% 9.53% 109.00 Increase in ratio is due to increase 
in profit and also profit on sale of 
Industral premises.

Return on investment (%) Income generated 
from investments

Average 
Investments

3.97% 5.57% -29.00 Decrease in ratio is due to lower 
return on investment.
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Notes to the consolisated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
NOTE 56 : ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE III OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013:
(i) Investment property: The Group does not have any investment property, therefore the disclosure of fair value of invesmtent property  based on the valuation by 

a Registered Valuer is not applicable to the Group. 

(ii) Valuation of PP&E and intangible assets : The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or 
both during the current or previous year.

(iii) Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties: The Group has not granted loans and advances in the 
nature of loans to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties either severally or jointly with any other person.

(iv) Details of Benami property: No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Group for holding any Benami property under the Prohibition of 
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder.

(v) Wilful Defaulter: The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or Government and any Government Authority. 

(vi) Relationship with Struck off Companies : The Group does not have any transaction/relationship with any struck off company 

(vii) Registration of Charges or Satisfaction with Registrar of Companies: The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with 
ROC beyond the statutory period.

(viii) Compliance with number of layers of companies: The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(ix) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements: The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on 
current or previous financial year.

(x) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium: 
A. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding 

that the Intermediary shall:

 a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries), or

 b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

B. The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Group shall:

 a  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries), or

 b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(xi) Undisclosed income: There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(xii) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency: The Group has not traded or invested in any crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous 
year.

NOTE 57: Previous year figures have been regrouped, rearranged and recasted to make them comparable with the curent year figures

As per our attached report of even date

For Rakesh Soni & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited 
CIN: L31200MH1988PLC047946

(Firm Registration No. 114625W)

R. K. Soni

Kishore Chand Talwar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00351751

Nainy K. Tanna 
Wholetime Director 
DIN 00351762

Krishnamoorthy Krishnan
Director
DIN 08129657

Partner
Membership No. 047151

Kundan Talwar
Chief Financial Officer

Shweta Kalantri
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 30, 2022



Rexnord Electronics & Controls Ltd.
92 - D,  Govt. Indl. Estate,  Charkop,  Kandivali (W),  

Mumbai - 400 067,   INDIA.      

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=zPPzC9sZNIA 

website : www.rexnordindia.com
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NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 34th Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) of the Members of REXNORD ELECTRONICS AND 
CONTROLS LIMITED will be held on Tuesday, September 
27, 2022 at 11.00 a.m. IST at Sangam Banquets, Plot No. 
366-386, RSC 37, Mangal Murti Road, Opposite Mangal 
Murti Hospital, Gorai-II, Borivali (West), Mumbai – 400 092 to 
transact, with or without modification(s) the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt: 

a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of 
the Company for the financial year ended March 
31, 2022, together with the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon.

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 
2022, together with the Auditors Reports thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Nainy Tanna (DIN: 
00351762), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers herself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint Statutory Auditors, M/s. R. S. Agrawal & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants in place of M/s. 
Rakesh Soni & Co, Chartered Accountants, who retire 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and to fix their 
remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought 
fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being 
in force), M/s. R. S. Agrawal & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants (ICAI Registration No.: 100156W), be and 
is hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, to hold office for a term of five consecutive 
years from the conclusion of 34th Annual General Meeting 
till the conclusion of 39th Annual General Meeting of 
the Company to be held in the year 2027, at such 
remuneration, as recommended by the Audit Committee 
and as may be mutually agreed between the Board of 
Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditors from 
time to time.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered 
necessary, desirable and expedient to give effect to 
this Resolution.”

REXNORD ELECTRONICS & CONTROLS LIMITED
92-D, Govt. Ind. Estate, Charkop, Kandivli [West], Mumbai - 400 067.

Tel. No.: 022- 6240 1800        
CIN : L31200MH1988PLC047946

Website : www.rexnordindia.com  |  Email Id: finance@rexnordindia.com

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4.  Re-appointment of Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan, 

Independent Non-Executive Director for a second term 
of 5 consecutive years, existing term expires on May 
15, 2023:

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 
149, 150 and 152 read with Schedule IV and any other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) 
and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being 
in force) and applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan (DIN: 08129657), 
Independent Director of the Company who has submitted 
a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence 
as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 
16(1) (b) of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and who is eligible for re-appointment, 
be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company to hold office for a 
second term of five consecutive years with effect from 
May 16, 2023 to May 15, 2028.”

5.  Re-appointment of Mr. Sriram Shrinivasan, 
Independent Non-Executive Director for a second term 
of 5 consecutive years, existing term expires on May 
15, 2023:

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 
149, 150 and 152 read with Schedule IV and any other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) 
and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being 
in force) and applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, Mr. Sriram Shrinivasan (DIN: 08129642), 
Independent Director of the Company who has submitted 
a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence 
as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 
16(1) (b) of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and who is eligible for re-appointment, 

http://www.rexnordindia.com/
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be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company to hold office for a 
second term of five consecutive years with effect from 
May 16, 2023 to May 15, 2028.”

6.  Re-appointment of Mr. Kishorechand Talwar as 
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company for 
another term of 3 years:

 To consider and if though fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 
196, 197, 198, 203 read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 
17(6)(e) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), 2015, including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, 
consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to 
re-appoint Mr. Kishorechand Talwar (DIN: 00351751) as 
Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, not liable 
to retire by rotation, for a further period of 3 (three) years 
i.e. with effect from April 1, 2023 and upon attaining the 
age of 70 (seventy) years on April 3, 2023, on the terms 
and conditions including remuneration as set out in the 
explanatory statement annexed to the Notice, with liberty 
to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and 
conditions of the said re-appointment and / or remuneration 
as it may deem fit and as may be acceptable to Mr. 
Kishorechand Talwar, subject to the same not exceeding 
the limits specified under Schedule V to the Companies 
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 or any statutory 
modification or re-enactment thereof.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 
and/or key managerial personnel of the Company or any 
Committee thereof be and is hereby authorized to do all 
such acts, deeds and matters as in its absolute discretion 
it may think necessary, expedient and desirable, to settle 
any question or doubt that may arise in relation thereto in 
order to give effect to the foregoing resolution.”

7.   Re-appointment of Mrs. Nainy Kunal Tanna as Whole 
Time Director of the Company for another term of 3 
years: 

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 read with Schedule V 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
and Regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof 
for the time being in force, consent of the members be 
and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mrs. Nainy Kunal 

Tanna (DIN 00351762) as Whole Time Director of the 
Company, liable to retire by rotation, for a further period 
of 3 (three) years i.e. with effect from April 1, 2023 on 
the terms and conditions including remuneration as set 
out in the explanatory statement annexed to the Notice, 
with liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and vary 
the terms and conditions of the said re-appointment 
and / or remuneration as it may deem fit and as may be 
acceptable to Mrs. Nainy Kunal Tanna, subject to the 
same not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule V 
to the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 or any 
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 
and/or key managerial personnel of the Company or any 
Committee thereof be and is hereby authorized to do all 
such acts, deeds and matters as in its absolute discretion 
it may think necessary, expedient and desirable, to settle 
any question or doubt that may arise in relation thereto in 
order to give effect to the foregoing resolution.”

8.   Consideration and approval for entering into 
contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with related 
party: 

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188(1) and 
other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“Act”) read with relevant rules thereto, and the 
applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, if any (“Listing 
Regulations”) (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and 
other applicable laws, rules, regulations, if any, consent 
and approval of the shareholders be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall 
be deemed to include any Committee of the Board) to 
enter into contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) 
(including any modifications, alterations, amendments, 
cancellations and terminations thereto) with Mr. Kundan 
Talwar, who is the Promoter and Chief Financial Officer 
of the Company, for compensating the Company for the 
designing, development and construction done by the 
Company on the land of Mr. Kundan Talwar given by him 
to the Company for business purposes, after considering 
deduction of depreciation, usage, wear and tear and 
adjustments at an amount of INR 4.05 Crores (Indian 
Rupees Four Crores Five Lakhs only), as a one-time 
lumpsum negotiated payment; terminating and cancelling 
the existing arrangement in respect of use of the said 
land by the Company; and entering into a fresh leave 
and license for continuity of operations of the Company, 
on such terms and conditions as deemed fit and as may 
be agreed between the Company and Mr. Kundan Talwar. 
The said contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) so 
carried out being at arm’s length basis.
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 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to negotiate, finalize, modify, renew, extend, 
enter and execute/sign the agreements, understandings, 
contracts, documents etc. as may be required on behalf of 
the Company for the aforesaid transactions, and to do all 
such acts, matters, deeds and things including registration 
of the documents, if required, and to take all steps and 
give such directions as may be required, necessary, 
expedient or desirable, for giving effect to the aforesaid 
transactions and payment of stamp duty and registration 
charges, if any.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the 
Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be considered 
necessary, proper or desirable for the purpose of giving 
effect to this Resolution.”

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 REXNORD ELECTRONICS AND CONTROLS LIMITED

KISHORECHAND TALWAR
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR 

(DIN: 00351751)

Registered Office:
92-D Govt. Ind. Estate,
Charkop, Kandivali (W), 
Mumbai- 400 067 
Date: August 10, 2022.

NOTES:
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT 

THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY 
TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / 
HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER 
OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING 
A PROXY SHOULD HOWEVER BE DEPOSITED AT 
THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY DULY 
COMPLETED NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS 
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. 

 Pursuant to the provision of Section 105 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, 
a person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not 
exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not 
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than 10% 
of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such 
proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or 
Member.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) setting out material 
facts concerning the businesses of the Notice, is 
annexed hereto. Further, the relevant details pursuant to 
Regulation 36(3) and (5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 
Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard on General 
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 

of India, in respect of Director seeking re-appointment at 
this AGM are also annexed.

3. The business set out in the Notice may be transacted 
through electronic voting system and the Company 
is providing facility for voting by electronic means. 
Instructions and other information relating to e-voting are 
given in this Notice under Note No. 24. The Company 
will also send communication relating to remote e-voting 
which inter alia would contain details about User ID 
and password along with a copy of this Notice to the 
members, separately.

4. Corporate members intending to send their authorized 
representatives to attend the Meeting pursuant to 
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested 
to send to the Company a certified copy of the relevant 
Board Resolution together with their respective specimen 
signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend and 
vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

5. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such 
joint holder who is higher in order of names will be entitled 
to vote.

6. Additional information pursuant to Regulation 36 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors seeking 
appointment/re-appointment at the AGM are furnished 
below Explanatory Statement. The Directors have 
furnished the requisite consents / declarations for their 
appointment/re-appointment.

7. The Company is not required to close Register of 
Members and Share Transfer Books for the purpose of 
AGM.

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 
mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested 
to submit their PAN to the Depository Participants with 
whom they maintain their demat accounts. Members 
holding shares in physical form should submit their PAN to 
the Registrar /Company.

 SEBI vide circular dated 3rd November 2021 has 
mandated the listed companies to have PAN, KYC, bank 
details and Nomination of all shareholders holding shares 
in physical form. Folios wherein any one of the cited 
details / documents are not available with us, on or after 
1st April 2023, shall be frozen as per the aforesaid SEBI 
circular.

 The investor service requests forms for updation of PAN, 
KYC, Bank details and Nomination viz., Forms ISR-1, 
ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-13, SH-14 and the said SEBI circular 
are available on our website www.rexnordindia.com In 
view of the above, we urge the shareholders to submit the 
Investor Service Request form along with the supporting 
documents at the earliest.

9. Members desirous of seeking any information concerning 
the Accounts of the Company are requested to address 
their queries in writing to the Company at least seven 
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days before the date of the meeting so that the requested 
information can be made available at the time of the 
meeting.

10. SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated 
June 8, 2018 and further amendment vide Notification 
No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/49 dated November 30, 
2018, requests for effecting transfer of securities (except 
in case of transmission or transposition of securities) shall 
not be processed from April 1, 2019 unless the securities 
are held in the dematerialized form with the depositories. 
Therefore, Shareholders are requested to take action to 
dematerialize the Equity Shares of the Company, promptly.

 Pursuant to SEBI circular dated 25th January 
2022, securities of the Company shall be issued in 
dematerialized form only while processing service 
requests in relation to issue of duplicate securities 
certificate, renewal / exchange of securities certificate, 
endorsement, sub-division / splitting of securities 
certificate, consolidation of securities certificates/folios, 
transmission and transposition.

11. The Company’s shares are listed on BSE Limited, 
Mumbai.

12. The statutory registers including the Register of Directors 
and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, 
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 
2013, and other relevant documents referred to in 
the Notice and in the Explanatory Statements will be 
available for inspection by the members in electronic 
mode. Members who wish to inspect the documents are 
requested to write to the company by sending e-mail at 
finance@rexnordindia.com 

13. (a)  Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to notify immediately any change in their 
address with PIN CODE to the Registrar and Transfer 
Agent of the Company at the address given below 
AND in case their shares are held in demat, this 
information should be passed on directly to their 
respective Depository Participants and not to the 
Company.

  M/S. BIG SHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
  Unit: [Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited]
  Office No S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park,
  Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road,
  Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400093.
  Tel: 022 – 62638200/222
  Email: investor@bigshareonline.com

(b) Members holding shares in demat form, please 
contact your depository participant and give suitable 
instructions to update your bank details, postal 
addresses, email id, telephone/Mobile number, 
Permanent Account Number (PAN) etc.

14. In all correspondence with the Company, members are 
requested to quote their Folio Number and in case their 
shares are held in demat form, they must quote their DP 
ID and Client ID Number.

15. Members / Proxies / authorized representatives should 
bring their copy of the Annual Report and Accounts along 
with duly filled Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to 
attend the Meeting, since copies of Annual Report will not 
be distributed at the meeting.

16. Members/ Proxies holding their Shares in Physical mode 
are requested to fill the enclosed attendance slip and 
handover the same at the entrance with signature. In the 
absence thereof, they may not be admitted to the meeting 
venue. 

17. Members who are holding shares in dematerialized form 
are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID numbers 
for easy identification at the meeting. 

18. The facility for voting through ballot papers will also be 
made available at the AGM and the members attending 
the AGM who have not already cast their votes by 
remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at 
the AGM through ballot process. The Members who have 
cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may 
attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their 
votes again.

19. If Members are opting for remote e-voting, they shall 
not vote by poll paper and vice versa. However, in case 
Members cast their vote both by poll paper and by remote 
e-voting, then voting done through remote e-voting shall 
prevail and voting done by poll paper will be treated as 
invalid.

20. Members who are holding shares in identical order of 
names in more than one folio are requested to send to 
the Company or RTA, the details of such folios together 
with the share certificates for consolidating their holdings 
in one folio.

21. In an effort to make the Earth a better place to live, 
the green movement has been sweeping all over the 
globe. Not only are individuals doing things to help the 
environment, Companies and governments are as 
well. The Companies Act, 2013 & SEBI Regulations 
is a step forward in Promoting “Green Initiative” by 
providing for service of documents by a Company to 
its Members through electronic mode. The move of the 
regulators allows public at large to contribute to the 
green movement. To support this green initiative of the 
Government in full measure, in order to save natural 
resources. 

 In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular 
dated May 12, 2020, Notice calling the Annual General 
Meeting, Corporate Governance Report, Directors’ Report, 
Audited Financial Statements, Auditors’ Report, etc. is 
being sent through electronic mode to those Members 
only whose email addresses are registered with the 
RTA / Depositories. Members may note that the Notice 
and Annual Report 2022 will also be available on the 
Company’s website www.rexnordindia.com, websites of 
the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.
com and Notice will be available on the website of CDSL 
i.e., www.evotingindia.com.

mailto:finance@rexnordindia.com
mailto:investor@bigshareonline.com
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22. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses 
so far, are requested to register their e-mail address for 
receiving all communication including Annual Report, 
Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically. 

(a) For Members holding shares in physical form, 
please send scanned copy of a signed request 
letter mentioning your folio number, complete 
address, email address to be registered along with 
scanned self- attested copy of the PAN and any 
document (such as Driving License, Passport, Bank 
Statement, AADHAR) supporting the registered 
address of the Member, by email to the RTA at: 
ujata@bigshareonline.com. Member can also update/ 
register their email id directly at https://bigshareonline.
com/InvestorRegistration.aspx

(b) For the Members holding shares in demat form, 
please update your email address through your 
respective Depository Participant/s.

23. The route map of the venue of the Annual General 
Meeting is appended to this Report. 

24. Voting through electronic means: 

(i) Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by 
the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Company will 
be providing members facility to exercise their right to 
vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic 
means and the business may be transacted through 
e-voting services. The facility of casting the votes 
by the members using an electronic voting system 
from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote 
e-voting”) will be provided by Central Depository 
Securities Limited (CDSL). The detailed procedure to 
be followed in this regard has been given below. The 
members are requested to go through them carefully.

(ii) The Board of Directors of the Company has 
appointed M/s. GMJ & Associates, Company 
Secretaries, Mumbai as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the 
e-voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner and they have communicated 
their willingness to be appointed and will be available 
for same purpose. 

(iii) The members who have cast their vote by remote 
e-voting may also attend the Meeting but shall not be 
entitled to cast their vote again. 

(iv) The Company has engaged the services of Central 
Depository Services Limited (CDSL) as the Agency to 
provide e-voting facility. 

(v) Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value 
of shares registered in the name of the member / 
beneficial owner (in case of electronic shareholding) 
as on the cut-off date, September 20, 2022. 

(vi) A person, whose name is recorded in the register 
of members or in the register of beneficial owners 
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, 
i.e. September 20, 2022 only shall be entitled to avail 
the facility of e-voting / remote e-voting. 

(vii) Any person who becomes a member of the Company 
after dispatch of the Notice of the Meeting and 
holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. September 
20, 2022 may obtain the User ID and password 
from BIG SHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Registrar & Transfer Agents of the Company). 

(viii) The Scrutinizer, after scrutinizing the votes cast at the 
meeting and through remote e-voting, will, not later 
than three days of conclusion of the Meeting, make 
a consolidated scrutinizer’s report and submit the 
same to the Chairman. The result of the voting will be 
announced within 2 working days of the conclusion 
of the Meeting. The results declared along with the 
consolidated scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on 
the website of the Company (www.rexnordindia.com) 
and on the website of CDSL www. evotingindia.com. 
The results shall simultaneously be communicated to 
the Stock Exchange. 

(ix) Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the 
Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the 
date of the Meeting, i.e. Tuesday, September 27, 
2022.

25. THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR 
REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

a) The voting period begins on Saturday, September 
24, 2022 Start Time: 9:00 a.m. (IST) and ends on 
Monday, September 26, 2022 End Time: 5:00 
p.m. (IST). During this period, shareholders of 
the Company, holding shares either in physical 
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 
date i.e September 20, 2022 may cast their vote 
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled 
by CDSL for voting thereafter.

b) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the 
meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 
meeting venue.

c) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 
44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to 
provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in 
respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it 
has been observed that the participation by the public 
non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at 
a negligible level. 

 Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers 
(ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in 
India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs 
and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords 
by the shareholders. 

https://bigshareonline.com/InvestorRegistration.aspx
https://bigshareonline.com/InvestorRegistration.aspx
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 In order to increase the efficiency of the voting 
process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has 
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat 
account holders, by way of a single login 
credential, through their demat accounts/ 
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. 
Demat account holders would be able to cast their 
vote without having to register again with the ESPs, 
thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication 
but also enhancing ease and convenience of 
participating in e-voting process. 

d) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/
CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their 
mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 
in order to access e-Voting facility.

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting 
system in case of individual shareholders holding shares 
in Demat mode.
Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting 
and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of 
shareholders  Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities in 
Demat mode with 
CDSL

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi 
/ Easiest facility, can login through 
their existing user id and password. 
Option will be made available to 
reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication. The URL for 
users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/
home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com 
and click on Login icon and select 
New System Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / 
Easiest user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option for eligible 
companies where the evoting is 
in progress as per the information 
provided by company. On clicking 
the evoting option, the user will 
be able to see e-Voting page of 
the e-Voting service provider for 
casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 
Additionally, there is also links 
provided to access the system of 
all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so 
that the user can visit the e-Voting 
service providers’ website directly.

Type of 
shareholders  Login Method

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/
Easiest, option to register is available 
at https://web.cdslindia.com/ myeasi/
Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly 
access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN 
No. from a e-Voting link available 
on  www.cdslindia.com home page. 
The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered 
Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
Demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option where the 
evoting is in progress and also able 
to directly access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode with 
NSDL

1) If you are already registered for 
NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the 
e-Services website of NSDL. Open 
web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com 
either on a Personal Computer or on 
a mobile. Once the home page of 
e-Services is launched, click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User 
ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see 
e-Voting services. Click on “Access to 
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and 
you will be able to see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will 
be re-directed to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period.

2) If the user is not  registered for 
IDeAS e-Services, option to register 
is available at https://eservices.
nsdl.com. Select Register Online 
for IDeAS Portal or click at https://
eservices.nsdl .com/SecureWeb/
IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. 
Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.
nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/ 
Member’ section. A new screen will

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com
https://web.cdslindia.com/ myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://web.cdslindia.com/ myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Type of 
shareholders  Login Method

 open. You will have to enter your 
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. After 
successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider 
website for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period.

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through 
their Depository 
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials 
of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you 
will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you 
click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected 
to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider website 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 
ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL
Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue 
in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in 
login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.
co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 
990 and 1800 22 44 30 

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case 
of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-
individual shareholders in demat mode.
e) Login method for remote e-Voting for shareholders other 

than individual shareholders holding in Demat form & 
physical shareholders.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website 
www.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on “Shareholders” module.

3) Now enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits 
Client ID, 

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should 
enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click 
on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged 
on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
e-voting of any company, then your existing password is 
to be used. 

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat 
Form other than individual and Physical 
Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued 
by Income Tax Department (Applicable for 
both demat shareholders as well as physical 
shareholders)

l Shareholders who have not updated 
their PAN with the Company/
Depository Participant are requested 
to use the sequence number sent by 
Company/RTA or contact Company/
RTA.

Dividend Bank 
Details

OR Date of Birth 
(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of 
Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in 
your demat account or in the company records 
in order to login.

l If both the details are not recorded 
with the depository or company, 
please enter the member id / folio 
number in the Dividend Bank details 
field as mentioned in instruction (v).

f) After entering these details appropriately, click on 
“SUBMIT” tab.

g) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then 
directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required 
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new 
password field. Kindly note that this password is to be 
also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions 
of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, 
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your password confidential.

h) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the 
details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.

i) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on 
which you choose to vote.

j) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION 
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/
NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. 
The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution 
and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com
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k) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to 
view the entire Resolution details.

l) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to 
vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will 
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 
“OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote.

m) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will 
not be allowed to modify your vote.

n) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on 
“Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

o) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login 
password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the 
details as prompted by the system.

p) Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and 
Custodians –Remote Voting
l Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 

Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and 
register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

l A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the 
stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

· After receiving the login details a Compliance 
User should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance User would be able to link 
the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

l The list of accounts linked in the login should be 
mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on 
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast 
their vote. 

l A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of 
Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the 
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in 
the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

l Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required 
to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter 
etc. together with attested specimen signature of the 
duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, 
to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email 
address viz; finance@rexnordindia.com, if they have 
voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the 
CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE 
EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary 

details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA 
email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id 
& mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant 
(DP) 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your 
email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & 
joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM 
& e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an 
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by 
electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 
Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill 
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai- 
400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
or call on 022-23058542/43.

http://www.evotingindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:finance@rexnordindia.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013. 
ITEM NO. 3:
This explanatory statement is in terms of Regulation 36(5) of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), however, 
the same is strictly not required as per Section 102 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

The Members at the Twenty-ninth Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) of the Company held on September 1, 2017, 
had approved the appointment of M/s. Rakesh Soni & Co., 
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 114625W), 
as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office till the 
conclusion of the Thirty-fourth AGM.

Your Board proposes to appoint M/s. R. S. Agrawal & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration 
No. 100156W with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India) as Statutory Auditors of the Company in place of M/s. 
Rakesh Soni & Co., Chartered Accountants.

After evaluating and considering various factors such as 
industry experience, competency of the audit team, efficiency 
in conduct of audit, independence, etc., pursuant to section 
139 (2) of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company has, 
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, at its 
meeting held on 10th August, 2022, proposed the appointment 
of M/s. R. S. Agrawal & Associates, Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 100156W), as the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company, for a term of five consecutive years from the 
conclusion of Thirty-fourth AGM till the conclusion of Thirty-
ninth AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2027, at a 
remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board 
of Directors and Statutory Auditors.

M/s. R. S. Agrawal & Associates, Chartered Accountants have 
consented to their appointment as Statutory Auditors and 
have confirmed that if appointed, their appointment will be in 
accordance with Section 139 read with Section 141 of the Act. 
M/s. R. S. Agrawal & Associates, Chartered Accountants is a 
firm based at Mumbai registered with the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India having registration number 100156W 
having experience of conducting the statutory audits of various 
companies listed on stock exchanges in India. They have also 
confirmed that they have subjected themselves to the peer 
review process of Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI) and hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review 
Board of the ICAI.

The Board of Directors has decided to pay remuneration 
as recommended by the Audit Committee and as may be 
mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the 
Company and the Statutory Auditors from time to time 
for conducting the audit for the financial year 2022-2023, 
excluding applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket 
expenses at actuals. The Board of Directors in consultation 
with the Audit Committee may alter and vary the terms and 
conditions of appointment, including remuneration, in such 

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with 
the Statutory Auditors.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at 
Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the Members. 

MEMORANDUM OF INTEREST
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned 
or interested in the Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the 
Notice.

ITEM NO. 4 & 5:
Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan and Mr. Sriram Shrinivasan were 
appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the 
Company to hold office for a term of five consecutive years with 
effect from May 16, 2018 to May 15, 2023, by the Members of 
the Company in the AGM held on September 28, 2018.

As per Section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent Director 
shall hold office for a term of upto five consecutive years 
on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-
appointment on passing a special resolution by the Company 
for second term of upto five consecutive years on the Board of 
a Company.

Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and the performance evaluation and in terms of the 
provisions of Sections 149, and 152 read with Schedule IV 
and any other applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing 
Regulations, Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan and Mr. Sriram 
Shrinivasan, being eligible for re-appointment as Independent 
Non- Executive Directors, offers themself for re-appointment, 
are proposed to be re-appointed as Independent Non- 
Executive Directors for second term of five consecutive years 
from May 16, 2023 to May 15, 2028.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan 
and Mr. Sriram Shrinivasan fulfill the conditions specified 
under the Act, the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 
16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations for their appointment 
as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company 
and are independent of the management. Copy of the draft 
letter for appointment of Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan and 
Mr. Sriram Shrinivasan as Independent Non-Executive 
Directors setting out terms and conditions would be 
available for inspection without any fee by the members at 
the Registered Office of the Company during working day’s 
between 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. upto and including the 
date of AGM of the Company. 

The Board considers that their continued association would 
be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to 
continue to avail services of Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan 
and Mr. Sriram Shrinivasan as Independent Non-Executive 
Directors of the Company. 

Independent director databank registration pursuant to a 
notification dated October 22, 2019 issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, of Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan and Mr. 
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Sriram Shrinivasan is valid. Requisite disclosures have been 
received from respective Directors in this regard.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolutions in 
relation to eligibility and re-appointment of Mr. Krishnamoorthy 
Krishnan and Mr. Sriram Shrinivasan as Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company for second term of five 
consecutive years with effect from May 16, 2023 to May 15, 
2028, for the approval of Members.

MEMORANDUM OF INTEREST
Except Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan and Mr. Sriram 
Shrinivasan and their relatives, none of the Directors or Key 
Managerial personnel of the Company and their relatives, are 
in anyway concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in 
the said resolution.

ITEM NO. 6: 
Mr. Kishorechand Talwar was appointed as Chairman & 
Managing Director of the Company for a term of 3 years 
upto March 31, 2023 through Special Resolution passed on 
September 23, 2020. Mr. Kishorechand Talwar is on the Board 
of the Company since July 4, 1988 and looks after overall 
affairs of the Company. 

Mr. Kishorechand Talwar will attain the age of 70 (seventy) years 
on April 3, 2023. He is a prominent and successful Industrialist 
with a wide experience in the industry. Accordingly, looking at his 
expertise and long experience of business and keeping in mind 
the contribution made by Mr. Kishorechand Talwar towards the 
growth and performance of the Company, your Board of Directors 
at their meeting held on August 10, 2022, have re-appointed Mr. 
Kishorechand Talwar as the Chairman & Managing Director of 
the Company and approved continuation of his employment upon 
attaining the age of 70 (seventy) years on April 3, 2023.

Pursuant to Section 196 read with relevant rules of Companies 
Act, 2013, no company shall continue the employment of 
any person as Managing Director if he/she has attained the 
age of seventy years. However, the appointment of a person 
who has attained the age of seventy years may be made by 
passing a special resolution. The Company seeks consent of 
the members by way of special resolution for continuation of 
his holding of existing office after the age of 70 years, after the 
initiation of fresh term of appointment under the provisions of 
Section 196 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The terms of his reappointment including remuneration, 
commission, perquisites etc. as have been approved by the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board, 
subject to the approval of the Members at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. 

The terms and conditions of his appointment are set out below:
Ø Salary: ` 10,00,000/- per month (with such increments 

as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the 
Company from time to time as per Company’s Rules).

Ø Benefits, Perquisites and Allowance:
Ø House Rent Allowance 
Ø Gratuity payable at a rate of half month’s salary for 

each completed year of service. 
Ø Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund 

Ø Encashment of leave at the end of tenure if any as 
per Company’s Rules.

Ø Reimbursement of actual travelling expenses 
Ø Special Allowances, Bonus etc.

Ø Commission: Such remuneration by way of commission, 
in addition to the above salary and perquisites, calculated 
with reference to net profits of the Company in a particular 
financial year, subject to the overall ceiling stipulated 
in Section 198 read with Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 as may be recommended by the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

The resolution seeks the approval of the members in 
terms of Section 196 and 197 read with Schedule V and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the appointment of  
Mr. Kishorechand Talwar as a Chairman & Managing Director 
for a period of 3 years commencing April 01, 2023 upon 
attaining the age of 70 (seventy) years on April 3, 2023. 
This explanatory statement and the resolution at Item no. 6 
may also be read and treated as disclosure in compliance with 
the requirements of Section 190 and 196(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

MEMORANDUM OF INTEREST
Mr. Kishore Chand Talwar, Chairman & Managing Director and 
Mrs. Nainy K Tanna, Whole-time Director being relatives are 
deemed to be interested or concerned in the said resolution 
and relatives Mr. Kundan Talwar, CFO of the Company, 
are interested in the said resolution to the extent of their 
shareholding, if any, in the Company.
Save and except above, none of the other directors and 
key managerial personnel of the Company or relatives of 
other directors and key managerial personnel is in any way 
concerned and interested in the said Resolution. 

ITEM NO. 7: 
Mrs. Nainy Tanna was appointed as Whole Time Director 
of the Company for a term of 3 years upto March 31, 2023 
through Special Resolution passed on September 23, 2020. 
Mrs. Nainy Tanna is associated with the Company since 
August 1, 2001 as a Director of the Company. She has an 
experience of over 21 years to her credit. She looks after 
Finance, Import and Export related activities of the Company. 
Keeping in mind the contribution made by Mrs. Nainy Tanna 
towards the growth and performance of the Company, your 
Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 10, 2022, 
have re-appointed Mrs. Nainy Tanna as the Whole Time 
Director of the Company. The terms of her re-appointment 
including remuneration, commission, perquisites etc. as have 
been approved by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
and the Board, subject to the approval of the Members at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting.
The terms and conditions of her appointment are set out below:

Ø Salary: ` 5,00,000/- per month (with such increments 
as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the 
Company from time to time as per Company’s Rules).
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Ø Benefits, Perquisites and Allowance :

Ø House Rent Allowance 

Ø Gratuity payable at a rate of half month’s salary for 
each completed year of service. 

Ø Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund 
Ø Encashment of leave at the end of tenure if any as 

per Company’s Rules.
Ø Reimbursement of actual travelling expenses 
Ø Medical Allowances
Ø Special Allowances, Bonus etc.

Ø Commission: Such remuneration by way of commission, 
in addition to the above salary and perquisites, calculated 
with reference to net profits of the Company in a particular 
financial year, subject to the overall ceiling stipulated 
in Section 198 read with Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 as may be recommended by the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

The resolution seeks the approval of the members in terms 
of Section 196 and 197 read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the appointment of Mrs. Nainy 
Tanna as a Whole Time Director for a period of 3 years 
commencing April 01, 2023. 
This explanatory statement and the resolution at Item no. 7 
may also be read and treated as disclosure in compliance with 
the requirements of Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

MEMORANDUM OF INTEREST
Mrs. Nainy K Tanna, Whole-time Director and Mr. Kishore 
Chand Talwar, Chairman & Managing Director being 
relatives are deemed to be interested or concerned in the 
said resolution and relatives Mr. Kundan Talwar, CFO of the 
Company, are interested in the said resolution to the extent of 
their shareholding, if any, in the Company.
Save and except above, none of the other directors and 
key managerial personnel of the Company or relatives of 
other directors and key managerial personnel is in any way 
concerned and interested in the said Resolution. 

ITEM NO. 8:
Rexnord Electronics & Controls Ltd. is engaged in the 
business of manufacturing and selling of instrument cooling 
fans and motors and for the business purpose the Company 
has taken credit facility from HDFC Bank Limited. 
The aforesaid credit facility has been granted to the Company 
against mortgage of the Plots of land situated at Survey No. 
62, 74, 75 & 20 Village - Devdal, Kaman Taluka – Vasai, 
District - Palghar (MS) (“Land”) and certain development, 
construction and other assets existing on the Land. The Land 
which is mortgaged belongs to Mr. Kundan Talwar, who is the 
Promoter and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Along 
with the mortgage of the Land, a personal guarantee has also 
been given by Mr. Kundan Talwar for the said credit facility 
taken by the Company. 
Mr. Kundan Talwar has made a request to the Company that 
he wants to withdraw his personal guarantee and release the 
mortgage on the Land created against the credit facility taken by 
the Company. The Company approached the bank for the same. 

In future if the Company is desirous of availing any credit facility 
from any banks/secured creditors, such banks/secured creditors 
may require Mr. Kundan Talwar’s personal guarantee as well 
as mortgage of the Land since the operations of the Company 
are carried from the Land owned by Mr. Kundan Talwar. 
Such requirements from banks/secured creditors can again 
create issues as faced today. Therefore, to resolve the issues 
permanently, the Company offered that either a.) the Land 
owned by Mr. Kundan Talwar be purchased by the Company; 
or b.) the cost incurred by the Company for the designing, 
development and construction on the Land of Mr. Kundan 
Talwar be paid by Mr. Kundan Talwar to the Company.

The Company offered to buy the Land from Mr. Kundan 
Talwar; however, Mr. Kundan Talwar has communicated to 
the Company that it is not feasible for him to sell the Land. 
Mr. Kundan Talwar has agreed to compensate the Company 
for the designing, development and construction done by the 
Company on the Land of Mr. Kundan Talwar after deduction 
of depreciation, usage, wear and tear and adjustments, at a 
negotiated price (not being lower than the fair valuation). 

The Company has undertaken fair valuation from 2 
independent registered valuers and the Company negotiated 
and offered an amount which was at least the higher of the fair 
valuation received from the two valuers i.e., INR 4.05 Crores 
(Indian Rupees Four Crores Five Lakhs only). Based on the 
negotiations, Mr. Kundan Talwar has agreed to pay INR 4.05 
Crores (Indian Rupees Four Crores Five Lakhs only) to the 
Company as a one-time lumpsum negotiated payment as 
compensation, terminate and cancel the existing arrangement 
in respect of use of the Land by the Company and to enter 
into a fresh leave and license for continuity of operations of 
the Company. 

The following disclosure of Related Party Transactions is 
made in accordance with the provisions of Section 188 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 15 of Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rule, 2014:

Particulars Information
Name of the Related Party Mr. Kundan Talwar
Name of Director(s) or Key 
Managerial Personnel who is 
related, if any.

1. Mr. Kishore Chand Talwar, 
Chairman and Managing Director 
and 

2. Mrs. Nainy Kunal Tanna, Whole 
time Director

Nature of Relationship Related as Son and Brother of the 
above-mentioned Directors of the 
Company, respectively.

Nature, material terms, 
monetary value and 
particulars of the contract or 
arrangement

Compensating the Company for the 
design, development and construction 
done by the Company on the land of 
Mr. Kundan Talwar given by him to 
the Company for business purposes, 
after deduction of depreciation, usage, 
wear and tear and adjustments at an 
amount of INR 4.05 Crores (Indian 
Rupees Four Crores Five Lakhs only), 
as a one-time lumpsum negotiated 
payment. Terminating and cancelling of 
the existing arrangement in respect of 
use of Land by the Company. Entering 
into a leave and license for continuity 
of operations of the Company.
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Particulars Information
Any other information 
relevant or important for the 
members to take a decision 
on the proposed resolution

None

The transactions described hereabove are being carried out 
on arm’s length basis, however for good corporate governance 
an approval of the shareholders is being sought for the said 
transactions.

Therefore, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
your Board of Directors recommends the passing of the 
resolution as set out at item no. 8 of the accompanying Notice 
as an Ordinary Resolution.

MEMORANDUM OF INTEREST
Mr. Kishore Chand Talwar, Chairman & Managing Director 
and Mrs. Nainy K Tanna, Whole-time Director being relatives 
are deemed to be interested or concerned in the said 
resolution and relatives of Mr. Kundan Talwar may be deemed 

to be interested in the said resolution to the extent of their 
shareholding, if any, in the Company. 

Save and except above mentioned none of the other Directors 
and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
relatives are in any way concerned and interested in the said 
Resolution.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 REXNORD ELECTRONICS AND CONTROLS LIMITED

KISHORECHAND TALWAR
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR 

(DIN: 00351751)

Registered Office:
92-D Govt. Ind. Estate,
Charkop, Kandivali (W), 
Mumbai- 400 067 
Date: August 10, 2022.
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Statement as required under Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 giving details in respect of re-
appointment of Mr. Kishorechand Talwar and Mrs. Nainy K. Tanna.

I. GENERAL INFORMATION:
1. Nature of Industry: The main business of the Company is manufacturing and sale of instrument cooling fans and shaded 

pole motors used for industrial purposes.

2. Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: Not Applicable, as the Company is an existing 
Company.

3. In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by financial institutions 
appearing in the prospectus: Not Applicable.

4. Financial Performance based on given indicators:

(` in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 2021-2022 2020-2021 2019-2020

1. Gross Income* 7216.57 5122.12 6591.87
2. Profit after tax 921.91 309.15 407.30

 *net of GST collected

5. Foreign Investments or collaborations, if any: Company does not have any investment outside India.

II. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE:

Name of Director Mr. Kishorechand Talwar Mrs. Nainy Tanna
Background details. He is 69 Years of age and qualified 

as B.A. [Diploma in Export Marketing]. 
He is associated with the Company 
since July 04, 1988 as Director of the 
Company and has an experience of 
over 33 years to his credit. 

She is 41 years of age and is 
qualified as M. Com., MBA in 
Marketing from NMIMS and Diploma 
in Export & Import. She is associated 
with the Company since August 01, 
2001 as Director of the Company and 
has an experience of over 21 years to 
her credit. 

Past remuneration ` 165.92 Lakhs ` 54.97 Lakhs
Recognition or awards NIL NIL
Job profile and his suitability He looks after overall affairs of the 

Company and plays an imperative 
role in the progress of the Company.

She looks after Finance, Import 
and Export related activities of the 
Company.

Remuneration proposed As per Notice & Explanatory 
Statement

As per Notice & Explanatory 
Statement

Comparative remuneration profile 
with respect to industry, size of the 
company, profile of the position and 
person (in case of expatriates the 
relevant details would be with respect 
to the country of his origin)

Not possible being a unique nature of 
the industry. However as compared 
to the size of our company, the 
remuneration to be paid is going to be 
very comparative as per the industry 
norms.

Not possible being a unique nature of 
the industry. However as compared 
to the size of our company, the 
remuneration to be paid is going to be 
very comparative as per the industry 
norms.

Pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the company, or 
relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any.

Being promoter, he is directly related 
to the Company.

Being promoter, she is directly related 
to the Company.

III. OTHER INFORMATION: 
1. Reason of loss or inadequate profits: N.A. 
2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: N.A. 
3. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurement terms: N.A.

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE EXPLANTORY STATEMENT
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IV. DISCLOSURES: 

The Information, as required, is provided under ‘Report on Corporate Governance’.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE 34TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, 
AS SET OUT IN ITEM NO. 2, 4, 5, 6 & 7 OF THIS NOTICE, IN TERMS OF REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LODR) 
REGULATIONS, 2015 READ WITH CLAUSE 1.2.5 OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD-2 ON GENERAL MEETINGS:

Name of Director Mr. Kishore Chand Talwar Mrs. Nainy K. Tanna
Director Identification Number (DIN) 00351751 00351762
Date of Birth April 3, 1953 September 24, 1981
Age 69 Years 41 Years
Brief resume & Nature of expertise in 
specific functional areas

He is associated with the Company 
since July 4, 1988 as Director of the 
Company and has an experience of 
over 31 years to his credit. He looks 
after overall affairs of the Company and 
plays an imperative role in the progress 
of the Company.

She is associated with the Company 
since August 01, 2001 as Director of 
the Company and has an experience of 
over 20 years to her credit. She looks 
after Finance, Import and Export related 
activities of the Company.

Disclosure of relationship between 
directors inter-se

Father of Mrs. Nainy K. Tanna 
(Wholetime Director) and Mr. Kundan 
Talwar (CFO).

Daughter of Mr. Kishorechand Talwar 
(Chairman and Managing Director) and 
sister of Mr. Kundan Talwar (CFO).

Names of listed entities in which the 
person also holds the directorship and 
the membership of Committees of the 
Board

None None

No. of Shares held in the Company 53,25,446 shares 3,62,200 shares
Membership & Chairmanships of 
Committees of the Board

Refer to Report on Corporate 
Governance

Refer to Report on Corporate 
Governance.

Name of Director Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan Mr. Sriram Shrinivasan
Director Identification Number (DIN) 08129657 08129642
Date of Birth May 19, 1962 March 29, 1958
Age 60 years 64 years
Brief resume & Nature of expertise in 
specific functional areas

He is a Qualified Chartered Account 
and has experience of 29 years, as 
practicing Chartered Accountant. 
He is professionally interacting 
with entrepreneurs from the fields 
of Pharmaceuticals, Bulk Drugs, 
Chemicals, Gems & Jewellery, IT, 
Infrastructure, Education and Housing 
Societies.

He is a Master of Financial 
Management from Jamnalal Bajaj 
Institute of Management Studies, 
B.E. (Electrical) from University of 
Mumbai, Certified Project Management 
Professional and IBM Certified Complex 
Program Manager. He has experience 
of over 36 years, in the IT Industry 
and has managed large and complex 
system integration and technology 
transformation projects across diverse 
industries.

Disclosure of relationship between 
directors inter-se

Not related to any Director of the 
Company

Not related to any Director of the 
Company

Names of listed entities in which the 
person also holds the directorship and 
the membership of Committees of the 
Board

Refer to Report on Corporate 
Governance

Refer to Report on Corporate 
Governance

No. of Shares held in the Company NIL NIL
Membership & Chairmanships of 
Committees of the Board

Refer to Report on Corporate 
Governance

Refer to Report on Corporate 
Governance
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Route Map to the venue of AGM:
Address : Sangam Banquets, Plot No. 366-386, RSC 37, Mangalmurti Road, 
Opposite Mangalmurti Hospital, Gorai - II, Borivali (W), Mumbai - 400 092
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34th Annual General Meeting to be held on Tuesday, September 27, 2022 at 11.00 a.m. IST at 
Sangam Banquets, Plot No. 366-386, RSC 37, Mangalmurti Road, Opposite Mangal Murti Hospital, 

Gorai–II, Borivali (W), Mumbai – 400 092

ATTENDANCE SLIP

DP ID* Registered Folio No.

Client ID* No. of Share(s)

Name & Address of Shareholder:………………………………………………………………..…………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………….......................................................…………………….
I/We hereby record my / our presence at the 34th Annual General Meeting at Sangam Banquets, Plot No. 366-386, RSC 37, Mangalmurti 
Road, Opposite Mangal Murti Hospital, Gorai–II, Borivali (W), Mumbai – 400 092 on Tuesday, September 27, 2022 at 11.00 a.m. IST

 _____________________________
 Signature of Shareholder / Proxy
*Applicable for investors holdings shares in electronic form.

FORM NO. MGT-11

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration), 2014]

CIN: L31200MH1988PLC047946
Name of the Company: Rexnord Electronics and Controls Limited (“RECL”)

Registered Office: 92-D, Govt. Ind. Estate, Charkop, Kandivli (W) Mumbai 400067.

Name of the Member(s):__________________________________________________________________________
Registered Address:_____________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________ E-Mail Id:____________________________________________
Folio No./Client id: 
DP ID:

I/We being the member(s) of _________________________________ shares of RECL hereby appoint:

1) Name: _____________________________________________ Email id: __________________________________________

 Address: ___________________________________________________________________________________ or failing him

2) Name: _____________________________________________ Email id: __________________________________________

 Address: ___________________________________________________________________________________ or failing him

3) Name: _____________________________________________ Email id: __________________________________________

 Address: ___________________________________________________________________________________ or failing him
 and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf 

at the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, September 27, 2022 at 11.00 a.m. IST Sangam 
Banquets, Plot No. 366-386, RSC 37, Mangalmurti Road, Opposite Mangal Murti Hospital, Gorai–II, Borivali (W), Mumbai – 
400 092, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated below.

 ** I wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

REXNORD ELECTRONICS & CONTROLS LIMITED
Regd. Office: 92-D, Govt. Ind. Estate, Charkop, Kandivli [West], Mumbai - 400 067. Tel. No.: 91-22-62401800

CIN : L31200MH1988PLC047946
Website : www.rexnordindia.com  |  Email Id: finance@rexnordindia.com

" "

"

"

http://www.rexnordindia.com/
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Resolution 
No. Particulars For Against

Ordinary Business:
1. a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 

31, 2022, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 
31, 2022, together with the Auditors Reports thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Nainy Kunal Tanna (DIN 00351762), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint Statutory Auditors, M/s. R. S. Agrawal & Associates, Chartered Accountants in place of M/s. 
Rakesh Soni & Co, Chartered Accountants, who retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and to 
fix their remuneration.

Special Business:
4. Re-appointment of Mr. Krishnamoorthy Krishnan, Independent Non-Executive Director for a second 

term of 5 consecutive years, existing term expires on May 15, 2023.
5. Re-appointment of Mr. Sriram Shrinivasan, Independent Non-Executive Director for a second term of 5 

consecutive years, existing term expires on May 15, 2023.
6. Re-appointment of Mr. Kishorechand Talwar as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company for 

another term of 3 years.
7. Re-appointment of Mrs. Nainy Kunal Tanna as Whole Time Director of the Company for another term 

of 3 years.
8. Consideration and approval for entering into contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with related 

party.

Signed this……………. Day of …………2022

Signature of shareholder: ____________________

Signature of Proxy holder(s): ____________________

Note: 
(1) This form duly completed should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company Not later than 48 hours before the 

commencement of Annual General Meeting of the Company.
(2) For the resolution, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to Notice of the 34th Annual General Meeting.
(3) ** This is only optional. Please put a ‘X’ in the appropriate column against a resolutions indicated in the box.
(4) Please complete all details including details of Members(S) in above box before Submission.

Affix 
Revenue
Stamp of 

Rs. 1
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